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Standard Chartered Bank (“SCB”) are the Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners of the Offer. China Banking Corporation
(“CBC”) and SB Capital Investment Corporation (“SB Capital”) are Co-Lead Underwriters of the Offer. Maybank ATR Kim Eng
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South Luzon Tollway Corporation
Km 44 Sitio Latian, Barangay Mapagong,
Calamba City, Laguna, Philippines
Telephone Number (632) 584 4688
South Luzon Tollway Corporation (“SLTC” or the “Issuer” or the “Company”) intends to offer for subscription
and issue bonds (the “Bonds”) with aggregate principal amount of up to P7,300,000,000(the “Offer” or the
“Offering”). The Bonds will be issued in three (3) Series. The Series A Bonds shall have a term beginning on
May 22, 2015 (the “Issue Date”) and ending 5 years and 3 months from the Issue Date or on August 22,
2020, with a fixed interest rate equivalent to 4.9925% per annum. The Series B Bonds shall have a term
beginning on the Issue Date and ending seven (7) years from the Issue date or on May 22, 2022, with a fixed
interest rate equivalent to 5.5796% per annum. The Series C Bonds shall have a term beginning on the
Issue Date and ending ten (10) years from the Issue date or on May 22, 2025, with a fixed interest rate
equivalent to 6.4872% per annum. Interest on the Series A Bonds, Series B Bonds and Series C Bonds
(collectively the “Bonds”) shall be payable quarterly in arrears starting on August 22, 2015 for the first
Interest Payment Date, and November 22, February 22 , May 22 and August 22 of each year thereafter, for
as long as the Bonds remain outstanding or the subsequent Business Day without adjustment if such
Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day, as set out in “Description of the Bonds” – “Interest” on page
40.
Subject to the consequences of default as may be contained in the Trust Agreement, and unless otherwise
redeemed or purchased prior to the relevant Maturity Date, the Bonds will be redeemed at par or 100% of
the face value thereof on the relevant Maturity Date, as set out in “Description of the Bonds” – “Redemption
and Purchase” on page 41.
Upon issue, the Bonds shall constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated, and unsecured obligations of
the Company and shall at all times rank pari passu and without preference among themselves and among
any present and future unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company, except for any statutory
preference or priority established under Philippine law. The Bonds will effectively be subordinated in right of
payment to all of the secured debts of the Company, as allowed under the Trust Agreement, to the extent of
the value of the assets securing such debt and all of its debts evidenced by a public instrument under Article
2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines. As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company has no existing
secured debt or debts evidenced by a public instrument under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the
Philippines, as set out in “Description of the Bonds” – “Ranking” on page 40.
The Bonds are offered to the public at face value through the Joint Issue Managers named below with the
Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation (“PDTC”) as the Registrar of the Bonds. It is intended that upon
issuance, the Bonds shall be issued in scripless form, with PDTC maintaining the scripless Register of
Bondholders, and listed in the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation (“PDEx”). The Bonds shall be
issued in minimum denominations of P50,000.00 each, and in integral multiples of P10,000.00 thereafter.
The Bonds shall be traded in denominations of P10,000.00 in the secondary market.
The Bonds have been rated PRS Aaa by the Philippine Rating Services Corporation (“PhilRatings”) in April
6, 2015. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision,
suspension or withdrawal at any time by the rating agency concerned.
SLTC expects to raise gross proceeds amounting up to P7,300,000,000 and the net proceeds are estimated
to be at least P7,210,753,313 after deducting fees, commissions and expenses relating to the issuance of
the Bonds. The net proceeds of the Offer shall be used primarily by the Company to prepay its existing Peso
denominated Corporate Notes, as discussed further in the section entitled “Use of Proceeds” on page 29 of
this Prospectus.
Participating financial institutions in the existing Peso denominated Corporate Notes include Bank of
Commerce (“BOC”), Banco De Oro, Unibank Inc. (“BDO”), Maybank Philippines, Inc. (“Maybank”),
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (“Metrobank”), Philippine National Bank (“PNB”), Rizal Commercial
Banking Corporation (“RCBC”), and Security Bank Corporation (“Security Bank”) (collectively as the “Existing
Lenders”).
BDO Capital & Investment Corporation (“BDO Capital”), PNB Capital and Investment Corporation (“PNB
Capital”) and Standard Chartered Bank (“SCB”) are the Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners of the
Offer. China Banking Corporation (“CBC”) and SB Capital Investment Corporation (“SB Capital”) are CoLead Underwriters of the Offer. Maybank ATR Kim Eng Capital Partners, Inc. (“Maybank ATR”) and RCBC
Capital Corporation (“RCBC Capital”) are Participating Underwriters of the Offer.
BDO Capital, PNB Capital, SB Capital, Maybank ATR and RCBC Capital are affiliated with BDO, PNB,
Security Bank, Maybank and RCBC, respectively. BDO, PNB, Security Bank, Maybank and RCBC will
receive prepayment out of the proceeds of the Offer as the Existing Lenders under the Peso denominated
Corporate Notes described in the Sections entitled “Plan of Distribution” on Page 32 and “Use of Proceeds”
on Page 29.
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On March 10, 2015, SLTC filed a registration statement (the “Registration Statement”) with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), in connection with the offer and sale to the public of the Bonds. The
SEC is expected to issue an order rendering the registration statement effective and a corresponding permit
to offer securities for sale covering the Offer.
There can be no assurance in respect of: (i) whether SLTC would issue such debt securities at all; (ii) the
size or timing of any individual issuance or the total issuance of such debt securities; or (iii) the specific terms
and conditions of any such issuance. Any decision by SLTC to offer such debt securities will depend on a
number of factors at the relevant time, many of which are not within the control of SLTC, including but not
limited to: prevailing interest rates, the financing requirements of business and prospects of SLTC, market
liquidity and the state of the domestic capital market, and the Philippine, regional and global economies in
general.
SLTC confirms that this Prospectus contains all material information relating to the Company and its
affiliates, as well as material information on the issue and offering of the Bonds as may be required by the
applicable laws of the Republic of the Philippines. No facts have been omitted that would make any
statement in this Prospectus misleading in any material respect. SLTC confirms that it has made all
reasonable inquiries with respect to any information, data and analysis(ses) provided to it by its advisors and
consultants or which is otherwise publicly available for inclusion into this Prospectus. SLTC, however, has
not independently verified any or all such publicly available information, data or analysis(ses).
The price of securities can and does fluctuate, and any individual security may experience upward or
downward movements, and may even become valueless. There is an inherent risk that losses may be
incurred rather than profit made as a result of buying and selling securities. An investment in the Bonds
described in this Prospectus involves a certain degree of risk. A prospective purchaser of the Bonds should
carefully consider several factors inherent to the Company (detailed in “Risk Factors and Other
Considerations” section of this Prospectus) such as risks pertinent to the industry and operational risks
relevant to the Philippines vis-à-vis risks inherent to the Bonds, in addition to the other information contained
in this Prospectus, in deciding whether to invest in the Bonds.
Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made pursuant to the Offering shall, under any
circumstance, create any implication that the information contained or referred to in this Prospectus is
accurate as of any time subsequent to the date hereof. The Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners do not
make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this Prospectus.
The information contained in this Prospectus relating to the Company, its operations and those of its affiliates
has been supplied by the Company, unless otherwise stated herein. To the best of its knowledge and belief,
the Company (which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) confirms that the
information contained in this Prospectus relating to it, its operations and those of its affiliates is correct, and
that there is no material misstatement or omission of fact which would make any statement in this
Prospectus misleading in any material respect and that the Company hereby accepts full and sole
responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. The Joint Issue Managers assume no liability
for any information contained in this Prospectus. Unless otherwise indicated, all information in this
Prospectus is as of the date of this Prospectus. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made
pursuant to this Prospectus shall, under any circumstance, create any implication that the information
contained herein is correct as of any date subsequent to the date hereof or that there has been no change in
the affairs of the Company since such date.
No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made or given by the Joint Issue Managers, the
Trustee or the Registry and Paying Agent or their respective affiliates or legal advisers as to the accuracy,
completeness or sufficiency of the information contained in this Prospectus, and nothing contained in this
Prospectus is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise, representation or warranty by the Joint Issue Managers,
the Trustee or the Registry and Paying Agent or their respective affiliates or legal advisers. This Prospectus
is not intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation nor should it be considered as a
recommendation by either the Issuer, the Joint Issue Managers, the Trustee or the Registry and Paying
Agent or their respective affiliates or legal advisers that any recipient of this Prospectus should purchase the
Bonds. Each potential purchaser of the Bonds should determine for itself the relevance of the information
contained in this Prospectus and its purchase of the Bonds should be based upon such investigation with its
own tax, legal and business advisers as it deems necessary.
No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this
Prospectus. If given or made, any such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by the Company or any of the Joint Issue Managers. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer
of any securities, or any offer to sell, or a solicitation of any offer to buy any of the securities of the Company
in any jurisdiction, to or from any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction.
In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Company and the
terms of the Offer, including the risks involved. The Offer is being made on the basis of this Prospectus only.
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The Bonds are offered subject to receipt and acceptance of any order by the Company and subject to the
right of the Company to reject any order in whole or in part.
Each investor in the Bonds must comply with all laws applicable to it and must obtain the necessary consent,
approvals or permission for its purchase, offer or sale under the laws and regulations in force in any
jurisdiction to which it is subject, and neither the Company nor the Joint Issue Managers shall have any
responsibility therefore.
This Prospectus includes forward-looking statements. The Company has based these forward-looking
statements largely on its current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends
affecting its business. Words including, but not limited to, “believes,” “may,” “will,” “estimates,” “continues,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “expects” and similar words are intended to identify forward-looking statements. In
light of the risks and uncertainties associated with forward-looking statements, investors should be aware
that the forward looking events and circumstances discussed in this Prospectus might not occur. The actual
results of the Company could differ substantially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements of
the Company.
SLTC is organized under the laws of the Philippines. Its principal office is at Km 44 Sitio Latian, Barangay
Mapagong, Calamba City, Laguna, Philippines with telephone number (632) 584 4688.
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ALL REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET AND ALL
INFORMATION CONTAINED THEREIN IS TRUE AND CURRENT.
South Luzon Tollway Corporation
By:
(Original Signed)
ERY SHADIK WAHONO
President and Chief Executive Officer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this [•], affiant exhibiting to me his [•] issued on [•] at Manila,
Philippines.

Doc. No. _____;
Page No. ____;
Book No._____;
Series of 2015.
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DEFINITION OF TERMS
In this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the
meanings set out below:
AADT

:

Annual Average Daily Traffic

AAIBV

:

Atlantic Aurum Investments, B.V.

AJVA

:

Amended Joint Venture Agreement dated May 2000 between
HCII and PNCC

ATR

:

Authorized Toll Rates

BDO Capital

:

BDO Capital & Investment Corporation

BIR

:

Bureau of Internal Revenue

Bonds

:

The Philippine Peso denominated fixed rate bonds with terms of
five, seven and ten years to be issued by the Issuer with an
aggregate principal amount of P7,300,000,000 consisting of
Series A Bonds, Series B Bonds and Series C Bonds, which the
Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners have agreed to
distribute on the Issue Date, and underwrite on a firm
commitment basis, with features set out in the Terms and
Conditions.

Bondholder

:

A Person whose name appears, at any time, as a holder of the
Bonds in the Register of Bondholders.

BSP

:

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas

CALABARZON

:

Cavite, Laguna, Batangas, Rizal and Quezon

Cash Settlement
Account

:

An account designated by a Bondholder into which shall be
credited the interests, principal, and other payments on the
Bonds.

Government

:

The Government of the Republic of the Philippines

Grantor

:

The Republic of the Philippines acting by and through the TRB

HCII

:

Hopewell Crown Infrastructure, Inc.

IMUA

:

Issue Management and Underwriting Agreement

Joint Issue
Managers

:

BDO Capital, PNB Capital, and SCB

Joint Lead
Underwriters and
Bookrunners

:

BDO Capital, PNB Capital, and SCB, the entities appointed as
joint lead underwriters for the Bonds pursuant to the Underwriting
Agreement.
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Lien

:

Any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance, hypothecation,
set-off or preferential arrangement of any kind or nature, on or
with respect to any asset, whatsoever, howsoever and wherever
created or arising and whether consensual or non-consensual, in
each case to the extent securing payment or performance of any
indebtedness prior to any general creditor of the Issuer
notwithstanding that it may be documented as a sale or absolute
assignment of such assets under the laws applicable to the
transfer of such assets.

MATES or Operator

:

Manila Toll Expressway Systems, Inc.

Maturity Date

:

For the Series A Bonds, August 22, 2020, which is five (5) years
and three (3) months from Issue Date, for the Series B Bonds,
May 22, 2022, which is seven (7) years from Issue Date and for
the Series C Bonds, May 22, 2025, which is ten (10) years from
the Issue Date; provided that, in the event that any of the Maturity
Dates falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the Maturity Date
shall be automatically extended to the immediately succeeding
Business Day.

MIMAROPA

:

Mindoro, Marinduque, Romblon and Palawan

MTDME

:

MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.

O&M

:

Operations and maintenance

Offer

:

The issuance of Bonds by the Issuer under the conditions as
herein contained.

Offer Period

:

The period, commencing within two (2) Business Days from the
date of the issuance of the SEC Permit to Sell Securities in
connection with the Offer, during which the Bonds shall be offered
to the public.

OMA

:

Operations and Maintenance Agreement, dated August 18, 2010,
between SLTC and MATES, as amended.

Padma

:

Padma Funds LP

Payment Account

:

The account to be opened and maintained by the Paying Agent
designated by the Issuer and solely managed by the Paying
Agent, in trust and for the irrevocable benefit of the Bondholders,
into which the Issuer shall deposit the amount of the interest
payments, principal payments, and all other payments due on the
Bonds on a relevant Payment Date and exclusively used for such
purpose, the beneficial ownership of which shall always remain
with the Bondholders.

Payment Date

:

Each date on which payment for interest, principal, and all other
payments due on the Bonds become due.

PDEx

:

The Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.
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PDTC or Registrar
and Paying Agent

:

The Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation, the central
depository and clearing agency of the Philippines which provides
the infrastructure for handling the lodgment of the scripless Bonds
and the electronic book-entry transfers of the lodged Bonds in
accordance with the PDTC Rules, and its successor-in-interest.

P.D. 1112

:

The Presidential Decree (P.D.) No. 1112 issued on March 31,
1977 creating the Toll Regulatory Board

P.D. 1113

:

The Presidential Decree (P.D.) No. 1113 issued on March 31,
1977 granting the franchise to PNCC

P.D. 1894

:

The Presidential Decree (P.D.) No. 1894 issued on December 22,
1983 amending P.D. 1113

PDTC Rules

:

The SEC-approved rules of the PDTC, including the PDTC
Operating Procedures and PDTC Operating Manual, as may be
amended, supplemented, or modified from time to time.

Pesos, P, PhP and
:
Philippine currency

The legal currency of the Republic of the Philippines.

Philippines or ROP

:

The Republic of the Philippines

PNB Capital

:

PNB Capital and Investment Corporation

PNCC

:

The Philippine National Construction Corporation (formerly
Construction and Development Corporation of the Philippines)

PhilRatings, PRS

:

The Philippine Rating Services Corporation

PFRS

:

The Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

Project

:

The financing, construction,
maintenance of SLEX.

RFID

:

Radio Frequency Identification

RPAA

:

Registry and Paying Agency Agreement

SCB

:

Standard Chartered Bank

SEC

:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of the Philippines

Security Interest

:

The mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, assignment, hypothecation or
security interest or any other agreement or arrangement having
the effect of conferring security howsoever and wherever created
or arising and whether consensual or nonconsensual.

Series A Bonds

:

Bonds to be issued by the Issuer having a term beginning on the
Issue Date and ending five (5) years and three (3) months from
Issue Date or on August 22, 2020 with a fixed Interest Rate
equivalent to 4.9925% per annum.
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completion,

operation

and

Series B Bonds

:

Bonds to be issued by the Issuer having a term beginning on the
Issue Date and ending seven (7) years from Issue Date or on
May 22, 2022 with a fixed Interest Rate equivalent to 5.5796%
per annum.

Series C Bonds

:

Bonds to be issued by the Issuer having a term beginning on the
Issue Date and ending ten (10) years from Issue Date or on May
22, 2025 with a fixed Interest Rate equivalent to 6.4872% per
annum.

SGV & Co.

:

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the Independent Auditors of the
Company

Skyway System

:

Skyway Stage 1 & 2 which consists of 13.4 km At-grade section
from Magallanes to Alabang and a 16.2 km elevated section from
Buendia to Alabang.

SLEX

:

South Luzon Expressway, a toll road from Alabang Viaduct to
Lucena City in Quezon.

SLTC, Company or
the Issuer

:

South Luzon Tollway Corporation

SMC

:

San Miguel Corporation

SMHC

:

San Miguel Holdings Corp.

STAR

:

Southern Tagalog Arterial Road

STOA

:

The Supplemental Toll Operation Agreement dated February 1,
2006 by and among the ROP acting through the TRB as Grantor,
PNCC, SLTC as Investor, and MATES as Operator (together with
its annexes).

SRC

:

The Securities Regulation Code of the Philippines

Tax Code

:

The Tax Reform Act of 1997, as amended

Taxes

:

Any present or future taxes, including, but not limited to,
documentary stamp tax, levies, imposts, filing and other fees or
charges imposed by the Republic of the Philippines or any
political subdivision or taxing authority thereof, including
surcharges, penalties and interests on said taxes, but excluding
final withholding tax, gross receipts tax, taxes on the overall
income of the underwriter or of the Bondholders, value added tax,
and taxes on any gains realized from the sale of the Bonds.

TOA

:

The Toll Operations Agreement between PNCC and TRB

TOC

:

The Toll Operation Certificate

TR4

:

Project Toll Road 4

TRB

:

The Toll Regulatory Board of the Philippines
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Trustee

:

BDO Unibank Inc. – Trust and Investments Group, the entity
appointed by the Issuer which shall act as the legal title holder of
the Bonds and shall monitor compliance and observance of all
covenants of and performance by the Issuer of its obligations
under the Bonds and enforce all possible remedies pursuant to
such mandate.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information, including
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and notes relating thereto. For
a discussion of certain matters that should be considered in evaluating an investment in the
Bonds, see the section of this Prospectus entitled “Risk Factors and Other Considerations.”
Investors are recommended to read this entire Prospectus carefully.
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY
SLTC was incorporated in the Philippines on July 26, 2000, by virtue of a joint venture
agreement between MTD Manila Expressways, Inc. (“MTDME”) and the Philippine National
Construction Corporation (“PNCC”), primarily to engage in the rehabilitation, construction
and expansion of the South Luzon Expressway (“SLEX”) from the Alabang Viaduct to
Lucena City in Quezon, and other allied businesses such as the upgrading, replacing, and
enlarging, repairing, improving, modernizing, developing, or otherwise engaging in any work
upon the toll roads, including all approaches, interchanges, overpasses, bridges, toll plazas,
sewerage and drainage system, and related civil works, and for such purpose provide the
necessary site survey, traffic studies and investigations, materials and equipment, and
supply, and install a toll collection system for the toll roads, traffic toll and data management
system, weighing sensors, central computers, CCTV systems and related equipment,
without engaging in activities or the operation of a public utility except contracts for
construction of locally-funded government projects.
On February 1, 2006, the Republic of the Philippines (“ROP”) thru the Toll Regulatory Board
(“TRB”) (the “Grantor”) awarded to SLTC a 30-year concession ending on February 1, 2036,
to finance, design and construct the toll road, and to Manila Toll Expressway Systems, Inc.
(“MATES”) the concession to operate and maintain the toll road.
SLTC is an 80%-owned entity of MTDME, a domestic corporation engaged in general
construction, project management and administration. ROP owns the remaining 20% of the
shares in SLTC.
The parent company of SLTC is San Miguel Holdings Corp. (“SMHC”), a 100.0% owned
subsidiary of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC”). SMHC owns 95.0% of Atlantic Aurum
Investments, B.V. (“AAIBV”), a company incorporated in the Netherlands which in turn owns
100.0% of MTDME.
Strengths of the Company
The Company believes that its principal strengths are the following:





Well-positioned gateway to Southern Luzon;
Sustainable stream of cashflows;
Strong parent company support; and
Experienced management team.
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Business Strategy
SLTC employs the following strategies as it pursues its business:




Continually adopt efficiency programs and systems;
Expand further the toll road portfolio of SLTC; and
Sustain strong financial position that will maximize shareholder value.

Corporate Information
The principal place of business of the Company is at Km 44, Sitio Latian, Barangay
Mapagong, Calamba City, Laguna, Philippines, with telephone number (632) 584 4688.
Information on the Company may be obtained at www.sltc.com.ph
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following tables present summary financial information for the Company and should be
read in conjunction with the report of independent auditors, historical financial statements
and notes thereto of the Company contained in this Prospectus and the section entitled
“Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.”
The information below is not indicative of the results of future operations.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31

In thousand pesos

Revenue from Toll Operations
Costs and Expenses
Other Income (Charges)
Income Before Income Tax
Less: Provision for Income Tax
(Benefit)
Net Income
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
for the Year, net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income

2012
3,958,698
(1,578,198)
(669,382)
1,711,118

2013
4,195,133
(1,640,542)
(445,855)
2,108,736

2014
4,400,854
(1,574,961)
(415,802)
2,410,091

(462,388)
2,173,506

14,812
2,093,924

(28,199)
2,438,290

299
2,173,805

410
2,094,334

(181)
2,438,110

Balance Sheet
As at December 31

In thousand pesos
2012

2013

2014

Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

2,964,152
13,544,166
16,508,318

3,113,109
13,005,785
16,118,894

3,182,344
12,546,846
15,729,190

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

1,750,319
9,547,965
11,298,284
5,210,034
16,508,318

2,225,476
8,256,551
10,482,027
5,636,867
16,118,894

2,124,195
6,635,643
8,759,838
6,969,352
15,729,190

Please refer to the section entitled “Financial Information” on page 114.
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SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING
The following summary is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with
the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus.
Issuer……………………..…..

South Luzon Tollway Corporation.

Instrument……………….……

The Philippine Peso denominated fixed rate bonds with
terms of five (5) years and three (3) months seven (7) years
and ten (10) years to be issued by the Issuer with an
aggregate principal amount of P7,300,000,000 consisting of
Series A Bonds, Series B Bonds and Series C Bonds.

Use of Proceeds……………..

The net proceeds of the Offer will be used by the Company to
prepay its existing Peso denominated Corporate Notes.

Offer Price ……………….…..

100% of face value.

Form and Denomination of the
Bonds ………………….………

The Bonds shall be issued in scripless form in minimum
denominations of P50,000.00 each, and in integral multiples
of P10,000.00 thereafter.

Offer Period..........................

The Offer shall commence at 9:00 a.m. on May 8, 2015 and
end at 12:00 noon on May 14, 2015 or such other date as
may be determined by the Issuer, Joint Issue Managers and
Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners.

Issue Date………………..…..

May 22, 2015 or such other date as the Issuer, Joint Issue
Managers and Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners
may agree in writing , provided that such date shall be a date
which is within the validity of the SEC Permit to Sell
Securities.

Maturity Date…………….…..

Series A Bonds : August 22, 2020 or five (5) years and three
(3) months from Issue Date
Series B Bonds: May 22, 2022 or seven (7) years from Issue
Date
Series C Bonds: May 22, 2025 or ten (10) years from Issue
Date

Interest Rate……………..…..

Series A Bonds: Fixed interest rate of 4.9925% p.a.
Series B Bonds: Fixed interest rate of 5.5796% p.a.
Series C Bonds: Fixed interest rate of 6.4872% p.a.
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Interest Payment…………....

Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on a 30/360-day
count basis and shall be paid quarterly in arrears starting on
August 22, 2015 for the first Interest Payment Date, and
November 22, February 22, May 22 and August 22 of each
year thereafter, for as long as the Bonds remain outstanding.

Early Redemption Option…..

The Issuer shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
redeem in whole (and not in part), any series of the
outstanding Bonds on the relevant dates as set forth below.
The amount payable to the Bondholders upon the exercise of
the Early Redemption Option by the Issuer shall be
calculated, based on the principal amount of Bonds being
redeemed, as the sum of:
(i)

accrued interest computed from the last Interest
Payment Date up to and including the relevant Early
Redemption Option Date; and

(ii)

the product of the principal amount of the Bonds being
redeemed and the Early Redemption Price in
accordance with the following schedule:

Early Redemption Option Date on
Series A Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Three (3) Years from Issue Date

101.0%

Four (4) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

Early Redemption Option Date on
Series B Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Five (5) Years and Three (3) Months
from Issue Date

101.0%

Six (6) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

Early Redemption Option Date on
Series C Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Seven (7) Years from Issue Date

102.0%

Eight (8) Years from Issue Date

101.0%

Nine (9) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

The Issuer shall give not more than 60 days nor less than 30
days’ prior written notice of its intention to redeem the Bonds,
which notice shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Issuer
to effect such early redemption of the Bonds on the Early
Redemption Date stated in such notice.
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Redemption due to
Taxation………………………

If payments under the Bonds become subject to additional or
increased taxes other than the taxes and rates of such taxes
prevailing on the Issue Date as a result of certain changes in
law, rule or regulation, or in the interpretation thereof, and
such additional or increased rate of such tax cannot be
avoided by use of reasonable measures available to the
Issuer, the Issuer may redeem the Bonds in whole, but not in
part, on any Interest Payment Date (having given not more
than sixty (60) days nor less than thirty (30) days’ prior
written notice) at par, plus accrued interest.

Final Redemption……………

The Bonds shall be redeemed at par or 100% of face value
on their respective Maturity Dates, unless earlier redeemed
by the Company.

Status of the Bonds………..

The Bonds shall constitute the direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of SLTC and shall
at all times rank pari passu and ratably without any
preference or priority amongst themselves and at least pari
passu with all other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations of SLTC, other than obligations
preferred by law.

Negative Pledge……………..

The Bonds will have the benefit of a negative pledge on all
existing and future assets of the Issuer, subject to the
exceptions as may be mutually agreed upon by the Issuer,
the Joint Issue Managers and Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners, including but not limited to debt raising
activities for the construction of Project Toll Road 4 (“TR4”)
and any other project finance arrangement to fund any other
requirements as mandated under the STOA.

Listing ………………………..

The Issuer intends to list the Bonds in the PDEx on Issue
Date.

Governing Law………………

Philippines

Joint Issue
Managers………………

BDO Capital & Investment Corporation
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
Standard Chartered Bank

Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners…………………

BDO Capital & Investment Corporation
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
Standard Chartered Bank
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Registry and Paying Agent…

Philippine Depository & Trust Corp.

Trustee……………………….

BDO Unibank Inc. – Trust and Investments Group
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RISK FACTORS AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
An investment in the Bonds involves a number of risks. The price of securities can and does
fluctuate, and any individual security may experience upward or downward movements and
may even become valueless. There is an inherent risk that losses may be incurred rather
than profit made as a result of buying and selling securities. Past performance is not a guide
to future performance. There may be a large difference between the buying price and the
selling price of these securities. Investors deal with a range of investments, each of which
may carry a different level of risk. This section entitled “Risk Factors and Other
Considerations” does not purport to disclose all of the risks and other significant aspects of
investing in these securities. Investors should undertake independent research and study the
trading of securities before commencing any trading activity. Investors may request publicly
available information on the Bonds and the Company from the SEC. Each Investor should
seek professional advice if he or she is uncertain of, or has not understood any aspect of,
the securities to be invested in or the nature of risks involved in the trading of securities.
Prospective investors should carefully consider the risks described below, in addition to the
other information contained in this Prospectus, before making any investment decision
relating to the Bonds. The occurrence of any of the events discussed below and any
additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that are currently
considered immaterial could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial
performance, financial position and prospects of the Company and the investors may lose all
or part of their investment.
The means by which the Company plans to address the risks discussed herein are
principally presented in the sections of this Prospectus entitled “Description of the BusinessStrengths of the Company,” “Description of the Business — Business Strategy” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.”
RISKS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
Enforceability, Amendment, Revocation, Requisition or Termination of the STOA
The continuity of operations of SLTC is highly dependent on the validity and enforceability of
the STOA which contains all the obligations and responsibilities of the Company over the 30year concession to SLEX which will expire on February 1, 2036.
Under the STOA, SLTC was granted the exclusive privilege, right and obligation to construct,
design and finance SLEX, while MATES was assigned the exclusive privilege, right and
responsibility to operate and maintain said toll road. Non-performance of the said obligations
may result to either the termination, in whole or in part, of the agreement. Such termination
may adversely affect the operations, financial condition and future plans of the Company.
Depending on the ground for termination of the STOA, SLTC may be entitled to receive just
compensation or the fair market value of the SLEX, whichever is higher. Furthermore, in the
event of dispute arising out of or in connection with the STOA, the Company endeavors to
amicably settle the same with the Government and if necessary exhaust all legal remedies
available to it.
To date, SLTC has always been compliant with and continues to perform its obligations
under the STOA. The Company intends to continue the faithful performance of its obligations
to construct, design and finance the SLEX.
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Inability of the Operator to Perform its Responsibilities
MATES as the Operator of SLEX may not be able to perform its obligations under the
Operations and Maintenance Agreement (“OMA”). There is no assurance that MATES will
not experience future disruptions in its operations due to factors such as labor disputes and
inability to timely procure materials necessary to undertake the repair and maintenance of
the SLEX. In addition, any changes in labor laws and regulations may result in MATES
having to incur substantial additional cost to comply with minimum wage increase and other
labor laws. Any of these events may have a material adverse effect on the business,
financial condition and results of operations of SLTC.
In the event that MATES will not be able to fulfill its obligations as set out in the OMA, SLTC
shall nominate a qualified substitute operator under the STOA.
Changes in the Legal and Regulatory Environment
The operations of the Company is subject to a number of national and local laws. In
particular, SLTC is heavily regulated by the TRB and is subject to certain permits and
consents from government agencies. Though the STOA specifically outlines the obligations
and responsibilities of TRB, failure of TRB to comply with said obligations and
responsibilities may have a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. See Section on “Regulatory Framework” on page 106.
The operations of SLTC is also subject to other taxes. While SLTC believes that the
Company should not be made liable for real property tax or local business tax based on the
provisions of Presidential Decree No. 1894, which grants fiscal incentives to, among others,
the concession holder of SLEX, it may still be made liable for and required to pay local taxes.
Thus, the revenue stream of SLTC may be vulnerable to these changes in interpretation of
tax laws by various taxing authorities, both local and national.
There is no assurance that changes in laws, rules or regulations or the interpretation thereof,
including the imposition of increased taxes and tariffs, the withdrawal of valuable tax
holidays and/or concessions, the imposition of exchange controls, and the other changes
that may adversely impact obligation of counterparties with respect to the Project, will not
result in SLTC having to incur substantial additional costs or capital expenditures to upgrade
or supplement its existing facilities. Failure to comply may result in financial penalties,
administrative and/or legal proceedings against SLTC.
The Company is in constant consultation and coordination with the relevant government
agencies and other approving bodies to ensure that all requirements, permits and approvals
are anticipated and obtained in a timely manner. Further, the Company maintains a strong
compliance culture and has processes in place in order to manage adherence to laws and
regulations. In the event that the Company becomes involved in future litigation or other
proceedings or be held responsible in any future litigation or proceedings, the Company
endeavors to amicably settle the legal proceedings and in the event of any adverse ruling or
decision, diligently exhaust all legal remedies available to it.
Inability to Secure Toll Rate Adjustments
The commercial success of the infrastructure business and projects of SLTC depends in part
on its ability to implement toll rate adjustments. While toll rate adjustments are permitted
pursuant to pricing formulas set forth in the STOA, these are still subject to the review and
approval of the TRB. Any constraint on the ability of the Company to adjust toll rates may
have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
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In the case of SLTC, the Company has filed two petitions for periodic toll rate adjustment to
the TRB, the first of which was filed last July 20, 2012 which was subsequently amended last
October 24, 2012 and November 28, 2012. The application submitted in 2012 was due for
implementation beginning January 1, 2013 but has yet to be acted upon by the TRB.
The latest petition for periodic toll rate adjustment was received by the TRB last September
30, 2014. However, a Motion for Leave to Amend the Petition was filed by SLTC last
November 19, 2014 for the purpose of clarifying and further supporting the basis for the
computation of the adjusted toll rate. To date, SLTC has not yet submitted a revised petition
for periodic toll rate adjustment to the TRB.
The Company continues to engage in comprehensive discussions and good working
relationship with the TRB to obtain proper resolution of pending toll rate adjustments.
Decrease in Utilization and Traffic Volume
The commercial success of SLTC depends on its ability to maintain or increase utilization of
SLEX. The revenue of SLTC is primarily dependent on traffic volume, which, in turn, may be
affected by a variety of external factors. These factors may include the following: existence
or construction of alternative routes, movement of oil prices and development of alternative
means of transportation such as railways. These events may decrease the number of
vehicles that utilize the infrastructure facilities of SLTC. In particular, rising oil prices could
result in less passenger vehicle volume, which could decrease revenue received from the toll
road operation. Any decrease in utilization or any factor that would decrease utilization could
have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects of SLTC.
SLTC continually adopts efficiency programs and systems thereby increasing vehicle
throughput and toll road utilization by motorists. For more information on the efficiency
programs and systems of SLTC, please refer to “Business Strategies of the Company” on
page 72.
Disruption of Operations
The operation of SLEX could be severely disrupted by many factors, including accidents,
breakdown or failure of equipment, interruption in power supply, human error, natural
disasters and other unforeseen events. These disruptions can result to a decrease in traffic
volume that could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and
results of operations of SLTC.
SLTC undertakes necessary precautions to minimize risk of any significant operational
problems at the SLEX through effective maintenance practices and inculcation of a culture of
continuous improvement. The Company also has protocols and mechanisms in place to
address these disruptions.
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Technology and Obsolescence
The future success of the modernization of the operations of SLTC may depend, in part, on
its ability to adapt to changes and developments in technology, such as Radio Frequency
Identification (“RFID”) and security and safety devices. SLTC may not be able to obtain new
technologies on a timely basis or on satisfactory terms or implement them in an appropriate
or effective manner. There is no assurance that SLTC would be able to adopt and
successfully implement new technologies. In addition, there is no assurance on how
emerging and future technological changes could affect the efficiency of operation and future
prospects of the Company.
The Company undertakes prudent review and due diligence in the adoption of new
technologies. SLTC constantly monitors the market to detect emerging technological
changes and allow it to react to the external environment appropriately.
Uninsured Losses
SLTC may not be able to avail full insurance coverage for unexpected losses caused by
natural disasters, breakdowns or other events that could affect the infrastructure facilities of
SLEX.
Any accident (including but not limited to vehicular accidents) that may occur in the
infrastructure facilities could result in significant losses. It could suffer a decline in traffic
volume, receive adverse publicity and be forced to invest significant resources in addressing
such losses, both in terms of time and money. There is no assurance that there will be no
such accidents in the future.
Any unexpected losses caused by such events could have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition and results of operations of SLTC.
While the Company has not experienced any major downturns in its operations brought
about by unexpected losses caused by natural disasters or other events that could affect the
infrastructure facilities of SLEX, the Company believes that it can withstand such events with
its business strategies in place, including the continued adoption of efficiency programs and
systems, expansion of toll road portfolio, and sustained strong financial position that will
maximize shareholder value.
The Company also has in place a system of financial prudence and corporate governance
that provides the foundation for its risk management initiatives.
Access to Financing
The future projects of SLTC are expected to be funded through a combination of internally
generated funds and external fund raising activities through debt and capital markets. The
access of SLTC to financing to fund new projects and for refinancing of maturing debts is
subject to many factors which may include, but not limited to: Philippine banking regulations,
limiting bank exposure to a single borrower or related group of borrowers; compliance with
existing debt covenants, perception in the capital markets regarding SLTC and the industry
in which it operates in. These may also include other factors which are out of the control of
the Company such as general conditions in the debt and equity capital markets, political
instability, economic downturn, social unrest and changes in the Philippine regulatory
environment. In addition, while there are growing signs of recovery from the current
disruptions in the global, capital and credit markets which began in the second half of 2007,
such disruption may recur, continue indefinitely and intensify and such disruption could
adversely affect the access of SLTC to financing. Any inability of SLTC to obtain financing
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from banks, other financial institutions and capital markets may adversely affect the financial
ability of SLTC to continue on-going business and execute its future plans, financial
conditions and future prospects.
The Company believes that it can withstand such events with a system of financial prudence
and corporate governance that provides the foundation for its risk management initiatives.
The Company can also rely on its strengths, which include a sustainable stream of cashflow,
strong parent company support, and an experienced management team, to navigate and
address its inability to obtain financing. For further discussion on these strengths, please
refer to “Strengths of the Company” on page 68.
Non-Delivery of Right of Way (“ROW”)
The construction of a toll road, including expansion works, is highly dependent on the
delivery of the ROW which is the responsibility of the government. Inability of the
government to acquire the properties included in the coverage of the ROW may result to a
delay in the delivery of the ROW. Such delay may significantly affect the schedule of
construction or non-completion of the toll road which may have an impact on the operation,
financial condition and future projects of the Company.
The Company is in constant consultation and coordination with the relevant government
agencies and other approving bodies to ensure the timely delivery of the ROW.
Compliance with Environmental Standards
The construction of major roads and bridges are considered environmentally critical projects
for which an Environmental Impact Study (“EIS”) and an Environmental Compliance
Certificate (“ECC”) are mandatory. Environmental laws and regulations in the Philippines
have become increasingly stringent and it is possible that these laws and regulations will
become significantly more stringent in the future. The adoption of new laws and regulations,
new interpretations of existing laws, increased governmental enforcement of environmental
laws or other developments in the future may require additional capital expenditures or the
incurrence of additional operating expenses in order to comply with such laws and to
maintain current operations as well as any costs related to fines and penalties.
The strong compliance culture of the Company and the processes in place to manage
adherence with laws and regulations mitigate this risk. For further information, see Section
on the “Regulatory Framework” on page 106 and “Compliance with Environmental Laws” on
page 72.
RISKS RELATING TO THE PHILIPPINES
Political or Social Instability and Acts of Terrorism
The Philippines has from time to time experienced political and social instability, including
acts of political violence and terrorism. In December 2011, the House of Representatives
voted to impeach then Chief Justice Renato Corona, making him the first head of the
Philippine judiciary to be impeached and put on trial. The impeachment complaint accused
Chief Justice Corona of improperly issuing decisions that favored former President Gloria
Macapagal-Arroyo, as well as failure to disclose certain properties, in violation of rules
applicable to all public employees and officials. On May 29, 2012, a verdict was given by the
Senate of the Philippines acting as an impeachment court, finding the former Chief Justice
guilty of impeachable acts. More recently, several key officials of the Philippine government
are currently under investigation on corruption charges stemming from allegations of misuse
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of public funds. Although there has been no major public protest or disruption caused by
these investigations, there can be no assurance that the political environment in the
Philippines will continue to be stable. Allegations of tax evasion and corruption with respect
to some government officials may result in political and social uncertainty in the Philippines
and may adversely affect economic activity within the country.In July 2013, a major
Philippine newspaper exposed a scam relating to the diversion and misuse of the Priority
Development Assistance Fund by some members of Congress through pseudo-development
organizations headed by Janet Lim Napoles. As a result of this exposé, a number of
investigations, including one in the Senate, have been launched to determine the extent of
the diversion of the Priority Development Assistance Fund and the Government officials and
the private individuals responsible for the misappropriation of public funds. On September
16, 2013, cases of plunder and malversation of public funds were filed with the Office of the
Ombudsman against Janet Lim Napoles, three Senators, a few members of the House of
Representatives and other Government personnel. In the 2nd quarter of 2014, separate
cases were filed by the Ombudsman before the Sandiganbayan (the Philippine Court that
tries certain public officials and other individuals) against three Senators and other coaccused.
On July 1, 2014, the Philippine Supreme Court declared that certain acts done in furtherance
of the Disbursement Acceleration Program (DAP) of the Executive Branch, National Budget
Circular No. 541 and related executive issuances were unconstitutional for having violated
the doctrine of separation of powers particularly, (a) the withdrawal of unobligated allotments
and the declaration of such withdrawn unobligated allotments and unreleased appropriations
as “savings” without having complied with the statutory definition of savings under the
General Appropriations Act, (b) the cross-border transfers of the savings of the Executive to
augment appropriations of other offices outside the Executive; and (c) the funding of
projects, activities and programs that were not covered by any appropriation in the General
Appropriations Act. The Supreme Court also declared as void the use of unprogrammed
funds despite the absence of a certification by the National Treasurer that the revenue
collections exceeded the revenue targets for non-compliance with the conditions in the
relevant General Appropriations Acts.
The Philippines has also been subject to a number of terrorist attacks since 2000, and the
Armed Forces of the Philippines have been in conflict with groups which have been identified
as being responsible for kidnapping and terrorist activities in the Philippines. In addition,
bombings have taken place in the Philippines, mainly in cities in the southern part of the
country. For example, in September 2013, a faction of the Moro National Liberation Front
allegedly lead by Nur Misuari, a former governor of the Autonomous Region of Muslim
Mindanao, staged an armed uprising in Zamboanga City. The incident resulted in, among
others, hostage situations and renewed tension between the Philippine Armed Forces and
the Moro National Liberation Front in the southern part of the country. In an operation to
capture wanted international terrorist Zulkifli Bin Hir alias Marwan on January 25, 2015, 44
police commandos were killed in a 12-hour fire fight with two (2) Muslim rebel groups: Moro
Islamic Liberation Front and Bangsamoro Islamic Freedom Fighters in the Southern
Philippines. An increase in the frequency, severity or geographic reach of these terrorist
acts, violent crimes, bombings and similar events could have a material adverse effect on
investment and confidence in, and the performance of, the Philippine economy.
No assurance can be given that the future political or social environment in the Philippines
will be stable or that current or future governments will adopt economic policies conducive to
sustaining economic growth. Political or social instability in the Philippines could negatively
affect the general economic conditions and operation environment in the Philippines, which
could have a material impact on the business, financial position and results of operation of
the Company.
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Economic Instability
Economic instability could have a negative effect on the financial results of the Company and
its ability to service debt.
The government of President Benigno S. Aquino III has taken steps toward economic
reforms and good governance. Reform measures in the fiscal and banking sectors have
resulted in the improvement of investor confidence and increased economic activities. With
the upcoming 2016 Presidential election, there may be no assurance that the new
administration will continue to implement or adopt economic policies conducive to sustained
economic growth or which will not impact adversely on the current regulatory environment
for the tollway business. Any change in the economic and development policies of the new
administration could have a material and adverse effect on the business, financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.
Recently, the Philippines cemented its position as an investment grade credit. In October
2013, Moody’s Investor Services (“Moody’s) upgraded the Philippines’ rating from Ba1 to
Baa3, with a positive outlook. In May 2013, Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) raised the Philippines’
long-term foreign currency denominated debt rating by one notch to BBB- from BB+. The
rating upgrade by S&P came shortly after Fitch Ratings upgraded the Philippines to BBBfrom BB+ in March 2013. More recently, S&P upgraded the long-term sovereign credit rating
of the Philippines from BBB- to BBB while Moody’s upgraded the rating of the Philippines by
one notch to Baa2 from Baa3.
The sovereign ratings of the Government may directly affect companies operating in the
Philippines, as international credit rating agencies issue credit ratings by reference to that of
the sovereign. No assurance can be given that international credit rating agencies will not
downgrade the credit ratings of the Government in the future. Any such downgrades could
have an adverse impact on the liquidity in the Philippine financial markets, the ability of the
Government and Philippine companies, including the Company, to raise additional financing.
Territorial Disputes with Neighboring Countries
The Philippines, China and several Southeast Asian nations have been engaged in a series
of long standing territorial disputes over certain islands in the West Philippine Sea, also
known as the South China Sea. The Philippines maintains that its claims over the disputed
territories are supported by recognized principles of international law consistent with the
United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea (“UNCLOS”). The Philippines made
several efforts during the period of 2011 to 2012 to establish a framework for resolving these
disputes, calling for multilateral talks to delineate territorial rights and establish a framework
for resolving disputes.
Despite efforts to reach a compromise, a dispute arose between the Philippines and China
over a group of small islands and reefs known as the Scarborough Shoal. In January 2013,
the Philippines sent notice to the Chinese embassy in Manila that it intended to seek
international arbitration to resolve the dispute under UNCLOS. China has rejected and
returned the notice sent by the Philippines requesting arbitral proceedings.
As there has been no resolution of these disputes to date, should these territorial disputes
continue or escalate further, the Philippines and its economy may be disrupted and the
operations of the Company could be adversely affected as a result.
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Natural Disasters
The Philippines has experienced a number of major natural catastrophes in recent years
including typhoons, volcanic eruptions, earthquakes, mudslides, droughts, storm surges and
severe floods. The Philippines has also experienced power outages, both from insufficient
power generation and from disruptions such as typhoons. These types of events may impair
the economic conditions in the affected areas, as well as the overall Philippine economy,
and may materially disrupt and adversely affect the business and operations of the
Company.
While the Company carries insurance for certain catastrophic events, of types, in amounts
and with deductibles that the Company believes are in line with general industry practices in
the Philippines, there are losses for which the Company cannot obtain insurance at a
reasonable cost or at all. In addition, the Company carries business interruption insurance;
however, should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, the Company
could lose all or a portion of the capital invested, as well as anticipated future turnover, while
remaining liable for any costs or other financial obligations related to the business. Any
material uninsured loss could materially and adversely affect the business, financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.
MANAGEMENT OF RISKS
While the Company has not experienced any major downturns in its operations brought
about by domestic and international developments, the Company believes that it can
withstand such events with its business strategies in place, including the continued adoption
of efficiency programs and systems, expansion of toll road portfolio and sustained strong
financial position that will maximize shareholder value.
The Company is in constant consultation and coordination with the relevant government
agencies and other approving bodies to ensure that all requirements, permits and approvals
are anticipated and obtained in a timely manner. Further, the Company maintains a strong
compliance culture and has processes in place in order to manage adherence to laws and
regulations. In the event that the Company becomes involved in future litigation or other
proceedings or be held responsible in any future litigation or proceedings, the Company
endeavors to amicably settle the legal proceedings and in the event of any adverse ruling or
decision, diligently exhaust all legal remedies available to it.
Constant monitoring of the market allows the Company to detect risk exposures and react to
the external environment appropriately. Although there is no assurance that the Company
will be able to fully overcome the adverse effects of any or all crisis, it has in place a system
of financial prudence and corporate governance that provides the foundation for its risk
management initiatives.
RISKS RELATING TO THE BONDS
Liquidity
The Company plans to list the Bonds in the PDEx to provide price transparency and liquidity
to the Bondholders. As with other fixed income securities, the Bonds could trade at prices
higher or lower than the initial offering price due to prevailing interest rates, the operations of
the Company, the overall market for debt securities, political and economic developments in
the Philippines and other regions, among others. It is possible that a selling Bondholder
would receive sales proceeds lower than his initial investment should a Bondholder decide to
sell his Bonds prior to maturity.
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In addition, there can be no assurance that an active secondary market for the Bonds will
develop or how the Bonds will perform. The liquidity and the market prices for the Bonds can
be expected to vary with changes in market and economic conditions, the financial position
and prospects of the Company and other factors that generally influence the market prices of
securities.
Reinvestment
Upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in Philippine tax or regulatory laws
or their general application or interpretation having an effect on the Company, the Bonds
could be redeemed in whole but not in part prior to the Maturity Date. In such an event, the
Bonds shall be redeemed at the relevant Issue Price plus accrued interest.
The Company may also exercise its redemption option. The amount payable to the
Bondholders in respect of such redemptions shall be calculated based on the principal
amount of the Bonds being redeemed, as the sum of (i) accrued interest on the Bonds on
the Optional Redemption Date; and (ii) the product of the principal amount and the
applicable Optional Redemption Price in accordance with the following schedule:
Early Redemption Option Date on
Series A bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Three (3) Years from Issue Date

101.0%

Four (4) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

Early Redemption Option Date on
Series B Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Five (5) Years and Three (3) Months
from Issue Date

101.0%

Six (6) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

Early Redemption Option Date on
Series C Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Seven (7) Years from Issue Date

102.0%

Eight (8) Years from Issue Date

101.0%

Nine (9) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

There is no assurance that investors will be able to reinvest in alternative securities with
comparable yields.
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Pricing
The market value of the Bonds moves (either up or down) depending on the change in
interest rates prevailing in the market. The Bonds when sold in the secondary market may
be worth more if such interest rates decrease if the Bonds have a higher interest rate relative
to the market. Likewise, if the prevailing interest rates increase, the Bonds may be worth less
when sold in the secondary market. Therefore, an investor may sustain losses if he decides
to sell.
Retention of Ratings
There is no assurance that the rating of the bonds will be retained throughout the life of the
bonds. The rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold securities and may be
subject to revision, suspension, or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
organization.
Bonds have no Preference under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code
No other loan or other debt facility currently or to be entered into by the Issuer is notarized,
such that no other loan or debt facility to which the Issuer is a party shall have preference of
priority over the Bonds as accorded to public instruments under Article 2244(14) of the Civil
Code of the Philippines, and all banks and lenders under any such loans or facilities have
waived the right to the benefit of any such preference or priority. However, should any bank
or Bondholder hereinafter have a preference or priority over the Bonds as a result of
notarization, then at the option of the Issuer, either procure a waiver of the preference
created by such notarization or equally and ratably extend such preference to the Bonds.
RISKS RELATING TO STATEMENTS MADE IN THIS PROSPECTUS
Certain statistics in this Prospectus relating to the Philippines, the industries and markets in
which the business of the Company operates, including statistics relating to market size and
market share, are derived from various Government and private publications, including those
produced by industry associations and research groups. This information has not been
independently verified and may not be accurate, complete, up-to-date or consistent with
other information compiled within or outside the Philippines.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
The Company intends to use the net proceeds of this Offer to prepay the outstanding Pesodenominated Floating Rate Corporate Notes and Security Agreement drawn on April 4, 2012
in the amount of P11.0 Billion. The Floating Rate Corporate Notes refinanced the
outstanding debt and advances due to related parties of the Company which were in turn
effectively utilized to partially finance the construction, rehabilitation, expansion, operations
and maintenance of the SLEX.
Participating financial institutions in the existing Peso denominated Corporate Notes include
Bank of Commerce (“BOC”), Banco De Oro, Unibank Inc. (“BDO”), Maybank Philippines, Inc.
(“Maybank”), Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (“Metrobank”), Philippine National Bank
(“PNB”), Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (“RCBC”), and Security Bank Corporation
(“Security Bank”) (collectively as the “Existing Lenders”).
BDO Capital & Investment Corporation (“BDO Capital”), PNB Capital and Investment
Corporation (“PNB Capital”) and Standard Chartered Bank (“SCB”) are the Joint Lead
Underwriters and Bookrunners of the Offer. China Banking Corporation (“CBC”) and SB
Capital Investment Corporation (“SB Capital”) are Co-Lead Underwriters of the Offer.
Maybank ATR Kim Eng Capital Partners, Inc. (“Maybank ATR”) and RCBC Capital
Corporation (“RCBC Capital”) are Participating Underwriters of the Offer.
BDO Capital, PNB Capital, SB Capital, Maybank ATR and RCBC Capital are affiliated with
BDO, PNB, Security Bank, Maybank and RCBC, respectively. The Existing Lenders will
receive prepayment out of the proceeds of the Offer under the Peso denominated Corporate
Notes.
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporate Notes has an outstanding balance of P7.150
Billion.
The Company expects that the net proceeds of the Offering shall amount to approximately
P7.211 Billion after payment of fees, commissions and expenses.
Net proceeds from the Offering are estimated to be at least as follows:

Estimated proceeds from the sale of Bonds
Less: Commissions and Expenses
Documentary Stamp Tax
Philippine SEC Registration Fee
Philippine SEC Legal Research Fee
Publication Fee
Gross Underwriting and other Professional Fees
Rating Fee
Listing Application Fee
Listing Maintenance Fee
Trustee Fees
Paying Agency and Registry Fees
Miscellaneous Fees*
Total estimated expenses
Estimated net proceeds
*Includes marketing fees and printing costs.
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Total
P7,300,000,000
P36,500,000
2,387,500
23,875
150,000
46,247,312
2,688,000
300,000
450,000
30,000
90,000
380,000
P89,246,687
P7,210,753,313

In the event of any substantial deviation/adjustment in the planned use of proceeds, the
Company shall inform the SEC and the Bondholders within a reasonable period of time prior
to its implementation.
Pending disbursement for the above, the Company intends to invest the net proceeds from
the Offer in short-term liquid investments including, but not limited to, short-term government
securities, bank deposits and money market placements which are expected to earn
prevailing market rates.
No material amount of proceeds shall be used to reimburse any officer, director, employee,
or shareholder for services rendered, assets previously transferred, money loaned or
advanced, or otherwise.

30

DETERMINATION OF OFFER PRICE
The Bonds shall be issued at 100% of principal amount or face value.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
SLTC plans to issue the Bonds to institutional and retail investors through a general public
offering to be conducted through the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners.
JOINT ISSUE MANAGERS,
BOOKRUNNERS

JOINT

LEAD

UNDERWRITERS

AND

JOINT

BDO Capital, PNB Capital and SCB (collectively the “Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead
Underwriters and Bookrunners”), pursuant to an Issue Management and Underwriting
Agreement with SLTC executed on May 7, 2015, and amended on May 15, 2015, (the
“Underwriting Agreement”), have agreed to act as the Underwriters for the Offer and as
such, distribute and sell the Bonds at the Offer Price. Subject to the fulfillment of the
conditions provided in the Underwriting Agreement, the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead
Underwriters and Bookrunners have committed to underwrite the following amounts on a
firm basis:
Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead
Underwriters and Bookrunners
BDO Capital
PNB Capital
SCB
TOTAL

Underwriting Commitment
P2,433,340,000.00
P2,433,330,000.00
P2,433,330,000.00
P7,300,000,000.00

There is no arrangement for any of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners to put back to the Issuer any unsold Bonds.
The Issuer shall pay each of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners a fee of 0.35% to 0.40% based on its underwriting commitment, which shall be
grossed up for gross receipts tax of 7%. The fees due to the Joint Issue Managers, Joint
Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners together with any applicable gross receipts tax or its
equivalent less any applicable withholding tax arising in respect of such fee, shall be due
and payable by the Issuer to the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners immediately upon receipt of confirmation from the bank of the Issuer that
cleared funds representing payments for all accepted Applications to Purchase have been
credited to the account designated by the Issuer.
The Issue Management and Underwriting Agreement may be terminated or suspended by
the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners under certain
circumstances prior to the issuance of the Bonds and payment being made to the Company
of the net proceeds of the Bonds. The Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners are duly licensed by the SEC to engage in underwriting or distribution of the
Bonds. The Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners may, from time
to time, engage in transactions with and perform services in the ordinary course of business
for the Company. The Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners have
no direct relations with the Company in terms of ownership by either of their respective major
stockholder(s), and have no right to designate or nominate any member of the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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BDO Capital was incorporated in the Philippines in December 1998. It is duly licensed by the
SEC to operate as an investment house and was licensed by the SEC to engage in
underwriting or distribution of securities to the public. As of December 31, 2013, its total
assets amounted to P2.8 billion and its capital base amounted to approximately P0.8 billion.
It has an authorized capital stock of P400 million, of which approximately P300 million
represents its paid-up capital.
PNB Capital, an investment house with a non-bank, non-quasi-banking license, was
incorporated on July 30, 1997 and commenced operations on 8 October 1997. It is a whollyowned subsidiary of the Bank. As of December 31, 2013, it had an authorized and paid-up
capital of P350.0 million or 3,500,000 shares at P100.0 par value. Its principal business is
providing investment banking services, namely: debt underwriting (bonds, commercial
papers), equity underwriting, private placements, loan syndications and financial advisory
services. PNB Capital is authorized to buy and sell for its own account, securities issued by
private corporations and the government of the Philippines. As of December 31, 2013, total
assets of PNB Capital was P560.6 million while total capital was P548.1.0 million.
BDO Capital is affiliated with BDO and PNB Capital is affiliated with PNB. Both BDO and
PNB will receive prepayment out of the proceeds of the Offer as the Existing Lenders under
the Peso denominated Corporate Notes.
SCB is a banking corporation duly organized and incorporated in England with limited liability
by Royal Charter in 1853, and licensed to act as a banking institution under and by virtue of
the laws of the Republic of the Philippines through its Branch Office, with principal offices in
Makati City. It has operated for over 150 years in some of the world’s most dynamic markets
and earns more than 90% of its profits in Asia, Africa, and Middle East. Operating in the
Philippines since 1872, SCB is a universal bank and is the longest established foreign bank
in the country. The principal banking products include deposits, lending and related services,
treasury and capital market operations, trade services, payments and cash management,
credit cards, and custodial services. The bank also provides capital raising solutions such as
local currency and G3 currency fixed income and loan syndications.
SALE AND DISTRIBUTION
The sale and distribution of the Bonds shall be undertaken by the Joint Issue Managers,
Joint Lead Underwriters and Joint Bookrunners who shall sell and distribute the Bonds to
third party buyers/investors. Nothing herein shall limit the rights of the Joint Issue Managers,
Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners from purchasing the Bonds for their own
respective accounts.
There are no persons to whom the Bonds are allocated or designated. The Bonds shall be
offered to the public at large and without preference.
Each Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner may, under such terms and conditions not
inconsistent with the provision of the Issue Management and Underwriting Agreement, enter
into sub-underwriting agreements, participation agreements or other like agreements with
other underwriters for the sale and distribution to the public of the Bonds; provided, that the
Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners shall remain solely responsible to the Company in
respect of their obligations under the Issue Management and Underwriting Agreement
entered into by them with the Company, and except as otherwise provided in the Issue
Management and Underwriting Agreement, the Company shall not be bound by any of the
terms and conditions of any agreements entered into by the Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners and sub-underwriters. The Company has no obligation to any sub-underwriter
for the payment of any fee, underwriting or participating commissions.
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The Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners have entered into participation agreements
with (i) CBC and SB Capital as Co-Lead Underwriters and (ii) Maybank ATR and RCBC
Capital as Participating Underwriters.

The Co-Lead Underwriters and Participating Underwriters are duly licensed by the SEC to
engage in underwriting or distribution of the Bonds. The Co-Lead Underwriters and
Participating Underwriters may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform
services in the ordinary course of business for the Company. The Co-Lead Underwriters and
Participating Underwriters have no direct relations with the Company in terms of ownership
by either of their respective major stockholder(s), and have no right to designate or nominate
any member of the Board of Directors of the Company.
CBC has been in the business for over 90 years and has extensive operations in lending,
treasury, trust, investment banking, investment advisory services and insurance. It has
significant presence across corporate, commercial, middle and retail markets, and has a
strong niche in the Chinese-Filipino commercial sector. CBC is a key player in major capital
market transactions across various industries in the Philippines. CBC, through its Investment
Banking Group, offers a wide array of advisory and capital-raising services to institutional
clients. CBC’s dedicated team of seasoned investment bankers develops tailor-made
funding structures and liability management solutions for all types of corporations, and
carries out placements for the entire range of capital markets products.
SB Capital is a Philippine corporation organized in October 1995 as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Security Bank Corporation. It obtained its license to operate as an investment
house in 1996 and is licensed by the SEC to engage in underwriting and distribution of
securities to the public. SB Capital provides a wide range of investment banking services
including financial advisory, underwriting of equity and debt securities, project finance,
privatizations, mergers and acquisitions, loan syndications and corporate advisory services.
SB Capital is also involved in equity trading through its wholly-owned stock brokerage
subsidiary, SB Equities, Inc. Its senior executives have extensive experience in the capital
markets and were involved in a lead role in a substantial number of major equity and debt
issues, both locally and internationally.
Maybank ATR was incorporated in the Philippines on September 4, 1990. It is duly licensed
by the SEC to operate as an investment house and was licensed by the SEC to engage in
underwriting or distribution of securities to the public. As of December 31, 2014, its total
assets amounted to P3.5 billion and its capital base (or equity) amounted to approximately
P1.5 billion. It has authorized capital shares of 15.94 million (9,940,000 common shares and
6,000,000 preferred shares), of which approximately P870.8million represents its paid-up
capital. Its senior executives have extensive experience in the capital markets and were
involved in a lead role in a substantial number of major equity and debt issues, both locally
and internationally.
RCBC Capital is a licensed investment house providing a complete range of capital-raising
and financial advisory services. Established in 1974, RCBC Capital has over 40 years of
experience in the underwriting of equity, quasi-equity and debt securities, as well as in
managing and arranging the syndication of loans, and in financial advisory. RCBC Capital is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation and a part of the
Yuchengco Group of Companies, one of the country’s largest fully integrated financial
services conglomerates.
SB Capital, Maybank ATR and RCBC Capital are affiliated with Security Bank, Maybank,
and RCBC, respectively. Similar to BDO and PNB, Security Bank, Maybank, and RCBC will
receive prepayment out of the proceeds of the Offer as the Existing Lenders under the Peso
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denominated Corporate Notes.
TERM OF APPOINTMENT
The engagement of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners
shall subsist in accordance with the terms of the Issue Management and Underwriting
Agreement. The obligations of each of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters
and Bookrunners will be several, and not solidary, and nothing in the Underwriting
Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between and among any
of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners. Unless otherwise
expressly provided in the Underwriting Agreement, the failure by a Joint Issue Manager,
Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner to carry out its obligations thereunder shall neither
relieve the other Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners of their
obligations under the same Underwriting Agreement, nor shall any Joint Issue Managers,
Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunners be responsible for the obligation of another Joint
Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunners.
MANNER OF DISTRIBUTION
The Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners and the Issuer shall
agree on the procedure for application, acceptance, or rejection of the Applications to
Purchase, whether in whole or in part (the “Allocation Plan”). Consistent with bank
procedures and the Allocation Plan, each of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead
Underwriters and Bookrunners shall observe the policies and procedures regarding
acceptance of Applications to Purchase, evaluation and assessment of such applications
and supporting documentary requirements, allocations of the Bonds to clients and
acceptance of deposits of its potential investors.
OFFER PERIOD
The Offer Period shall commence at 9:00 a.m. on May 8, 2015 and end at 12:00 noon on
May 14, 2015 or such other dates as may be determined by the Issuer and Joint Issue
Managers and Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners.
APPLICATION TO PURCHASE
All Applications to Purchase the Bonds shall be evidenced by a duly completed and signed
Application to Purchase, together with two fully executed signature cards authenticated by
the Corporate Secretary or any equivalent authorized officer with respect to corporate and
institutional investors. The purchase price must be paid in full in Pesos upon the submission
of the duly completed and signed Application to Purchase and signature card together with
the requisite attachments. Payment for the Bonds shall be made either by: (i) a personal or
corporate check drawn against an account with an authorized bank of the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (“BSP”) at any of its branches located in Metro Manila; or (ii) a manager’s or
cashier’s check issued by an authorized bank. All checks should be made payable to “SLTC
Bonds Offering”, crossed “Payee’s Account Only,” and dated the same date as the
Application. The Applications and the related payments will be received at any of the offices
of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners. Applicants
submitting their Application to a Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunner may also remit payment for their Bonds through the Real Time Gross Settlement
(“RTGS”) facility of the BSP to the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners to whom such Application was submitted or via direct debit to their deposit
account maintained with such Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and
Bookrunners. Cash payments shall not be accepted.
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Should the Applicant elect to pay through RTGS, the Application should be accompanied by
an instruction issued by the Applicant to effect payment through RTGS in an amount equal
to the total Offer Price of the Bonds applied for, to be effected and fully funded not later than
5:00 p.m. on May 14, 2015.
Should the Applicant elect to pay by a debit memo or instruction, the Application should be
accompanied by a debit memo or instruction issued by the Applicant in an amount equal to
the total Offer Price applied for in favor of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters
and Bookrunners to whom the Application is submitted, to be effected no later than 5:00 p.m.
on May 14, 2015.
Corporate and institutional purchasers must also submit a copy of SEC-certified or corporate
secretary (or any equivalent authorized officer) certified true copy of the SEC Certificate of
Registration, Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, General Information Sheet, or such other
relevant organizational or charter documents, and the original or corporate secretary or any
equivalent officer-certified true copy of the duly notarized certificate confirming the resolution
of the board of directors and/or committees or bodies authorizing the purchase of the Bonds
and designating the authorized signatory/ies therefore. Individual Applicants must also
submit a photocopy of any one of the following identification cards (“ID”): passport/driver's
license, company ID, Social Security System/Government Service and Insurance System ID
and/or Senior Citizen's ID or such other ID and documents as may be required by or
acceptable to the selling bank.
An Applicant who is exempt from or is not subject to withholding tax or who claims reduced
tax treaty rates shall, in addition, be required to submit the following requirements to the
relevant Joint Issue Manager, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner (together with their
Applications) who shall then forward the same to the Registrar and Depository Agent,
subject to acceptance by the Company as being sufficient in form and substance: (i) certified
true copy of the original tax exemption certificate, ruling or opinion issued by the BIR on file
with the Applicant as certified by its duly authorized officer; (ii) with respect to tax treaty
relief, proofs to support applicability of reduced treaty rates, consularized proof of tax
domicile issued by the relevant tax authority of the Bondholder, and original or SEC-certified
true copy of the SEC confirmation that the relevant entity is not doing business in the
Philippines; (iii) an original of the duly notarized undertaking, in the prescribed form,
declaring and warranting its tax exempt status, undertaking to immediately notify the
Company and the Registrar and Depository Agent of any suspension or revocation of its tax
exempt status and agreeing to indemnify and hold the Company, the Registrar and
Depository Agent and the Paying Agent free and harmless against any claims, actions, suits,
and liabilities resulting from the non-withholding or reduced withholding of the required tax;
and (iv) such other documentary requirements as may be required under the applicable
regulations of the relevant taxing or other authorities.
The Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners shall be responsible
for accepting or rejecting any Application or scaling down the amount of Bonds applied for.
The Application, once accepted, shall constitute the duly executed purchase agreement
covering the amount of Bonds so accepted and shall be valid and binding on the Company
and the Applicant.
MINIMUM PURCHASE
A minimum purchase of Fifty Thousand Pesos (P50,000.00) shall be considered for
acceptance. Purchases in excess of the minimum shall be in multiples of Ten Thousand
Pesos (P10,000.00).
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ALLOTMENT OF THE BONDS
If the Bonds are insufficient to satisfy all Applications to Purchase, the available Bonds shall
be allotted in accordance with the chronological order of submission of properly completed
and appropriately accomplished Applications to Purchase on a first-come, first-served basis,
without prejudice and subject to the right of rejection of SLTC.
ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS
SLTC and the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters and Bookrunners reserve the
right to accept or reject applications to subscribe in the Bonds, and in case of
oversubscription, allocate the Bonds available to the applicants in a manner they deem
appropriate. If any application is rejected or accepted in part only, the application money or
the appropriate portion thereof will be returned without interest by the relevant Joint Issue
Manager, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner.
REFUNDS
In the event an Application to Purchase is rejected or the amount of Bonds applied for is
scaled down, the relevant Joint Issue Manager, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner,
upon receipt of the Allocation Report, shall notify the applicant concerned that his application
has been rejected or that the amount of Bonds applied for is scaled down. Payments made
by the applicants whose Applications to Purchase are rejected or scaled down will be
returned to them no later than three Business Days after the Issue Date by the relevant Joint
Issue Manager, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner to whom the Application to
Purchase was submitted, in full (in case of a rejection) or in a proportionate sum
corresponding to the amount of the Bonds partially rejected (in case of a scale down), but in
both instances without any interest whatsoever. Refund shall be made either (i) through the
issuance of a check payable to the order of the applicant and crossed “Payee’s Account
Only” and mailed or delivered, at the risk of the applicant, to the address specified in the
Application to Purchase; or (ii) through the issuance of instructions for automatic credit
payments to the accounts of the relevant applicants, as indicated in their respective
Applications to Purchase. The Issuer and the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Lead Underwriters
and Bookrunners shall not be liable in any manner to the applicant for any refund
corresponding to any rejected or scaled-down Application to Purchase which is not
transmitted by the relevant Joint Issue Manager, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner. In
such case, the relevant Joint Issue Manager, Joint Lead Underwriter and Bookrunner shall
be responsible directly to their respective applicants for the actual refund of the payment.
REGISTER OF BONDHOLDERS
The Bonds shall be issued in scripless form and shall be registered in the scripless Register
of Bondholders maintained by the Registrar. A Master Certificate of Indebtedness
representing the Bonds sold in the Offer shall be issued to and registered in the name of the
Trustee, on behalf of the Bondholders.
Legal title to the Bonds shall be shown in the Register of Bondholders to be maintained by
the Registrar. The names and addresses of the Bondholders and the particulars of the
Bonds held by them and of all transfers of Bonds shall be entered into the Register of
Bondholders. Transfers of ownership shall be effected through book-entry transfers in the
scripless Register of Bondholders.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS
The following does not purport to be a complete listing of all the rights, obligations, or
privileges of the Bonds. Some rights, obligations, or privileges may be further limited or
restricted by other documents. Prospective investors are enjoined to carefully review the
articles of incorporation, by-laws and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of SLTC submitted to the SEC, the information contained in this Prospectus, the Trust
Agreement, Registry and Paying Agency Agreement, Issue Management and Underwriting
Agreement, and other documents relevant to the Offer. Prospective investors are likewise
encouraged to consult their legal counsels and accountants in order to be better advised of
the circumstances surrounding the issued Bonds.
The issue of the Bonds was authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Issuer
passed on March 5, 2015. The Bonds shall be governed by a Trust Agreement executed on
May 7, 2015, and amended on May 15, 2015, between the Issuer and BDO Unibank, Inc. –
Trust & Investments Group (the “Trustee”). The Trustee has no interest in or relation to the
Issuer which may conflict with the performance of its functions. The description of the terms
and conditions of the Bonds set out below includes summaries of, and is subject to, the
detailed provisions of the Trust Agreement. A Registry and Paying Agency Agreement was
executed on May 7, 2015, and amended on May 15, 2015, between the Issuer and PDTC.
The Bonds will be offered and sold through a general public offering in the Philippines, and
issued in minimum principal amounts of P50,000.00, and multiples of P10,000.00 in excess
thereof, and traded in amounts of P10,000.00 as a minimum, and in multiples of P10,000.00
in excess thereof. The Series A Bonds shall mature on August 22, 2020, Series B Bonds
shall mature on May 22, 2022 and the Series C Bonds shall mature on May 22, 2025, (the
“Maturity Dates”), unless earlier redeemed by the Issuer pursuant to the terms thereof and
subject to the provisions on redemption and payment as summarized below.
Copies of the Trust Agreement and the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement will be
available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified offices of the Trustee.
The Bondholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice
of, all the provisions of the Trust Agreement and the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement
applicable to them.
FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE
Form and Denomination
The Bonds are in scripless form, and will be issued in denominations of P50,000.00 each, as
a minimum, and in multiples of P10,000.00 in excess thereof.
Title
Legal title to the Bonds will be shown in the electronic records of the Registrar bearing the
official information on the names and addresses of the Bondholders and the number of
Bonds they respectively hold, including all transfers of the Bonds and the names of
subsequent transferee Bondholders (the “Register of Bondholders”). A notice confirming the
principal amount of the Bonds purchased by each applicant in the offer for sale, distribution
and issuance of the Bonds by the Issuer will be issued by the Registrar to all Bondholders
after the Issue Date. Upon any assignment, title to the Bonds shall pass by recording of the
transfer from the transferor to the transferee in the Register of Bondholders Settlement with
respect to such transfer or change of title on the Bonds, including the settlement of any cost
arising from such transfers, including, but not limited to, documentary stamp taxes, if any,
arising from subsequent transfers, shall be for the account of the relevant Bondholder.
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BOND RATING
The Bonds have been rated Aaa by PhilRatings. The rating is subject to regular annual
review, or more frequently as market developments may dictate, for as long as the Bonds
are outstanding.
TRANSFER OF BONDS
Register of Bondholders
The Issuer will cause the Register of Bondholders to be kept by the Registrar, in electronic
form. The names and addresses of the Bondholders and the particulars of the Bonds held by
them and of all transfers and assignments of the Bonds, including any liens and
encumbrances thereon, shall be entered into the Register of Bondholders. As required by
Circular No. 428-04 issued by the BSP, the Registrar shall send each Bondholder a written
statement of registry holdings at least every quarter (at the cost of the Issuer) and a written
advice confirming every receipt or transfer of the Bonds that is effected in the system of the
Registrar (at the cost of the relevant Bondholder). Such statement of registry holdings shall
serve as the confirmation of ownership of the relevant Bondholder as of the date thereof.
Any requests of Bondholders for certifications, reports or other documents from the
Registrar, except as provided herein, shall be for the account of the requesting Bondholder.
No transfer of the Bonds may be made during the period commencing on a Record Date as
defined in the Section on “Interest Payment Date” until the relevant Payment Date.
Transfers; Tax Status
The Bonds may be transferred upon exchange of confirmation of sale and confirmation of
purchase, or by book entry in recording platforms maintained by approved securities dealers.
The Registrar shall ultimately and conclusively determine all matters regarding the evidence
necessary to effect any such transfer. Settlement in respect of such transfer or change of
title to the Bonds, including the settlement of any documentary stamp taxes, if any, arising
from subsequent transfers, shall be settled directly between the transferee and/or the
transferor Bondholders.
Subject to the provisions of the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement, Bondholders may
transfer their Bonds at anytime to a transferee of the same tax status. Bondholders may
only transfer their Bonds to a transferee of different tax status if such transfer is made on an
Interest Payment Date which is a Business Day.
A Bondholder claiming tax-exempt status is required to submit a written notification of the
sale or purchase to the Trustee and the Registrar, including the tax status of the transferor or
transferee, as appropriate, together with the supporting documents specified under the
Registry and Paying Agency Agreement within three (3) Business Days from the settlement
date for such transfer. Such Bondholder must also submit the documents for claiming tax
exemption or entitlement to preferential tax rates as required under the Registry and Paying
Agency Agreement to the Registrar no later than three (3) Business Days prior to the Record
Date. Otherwise, the Bondholders will be treated as taxable on Record Date. Transfers
taking place in the Register of Bondholders after the Bonds are listed on PDEx shall be
allowed between tax-exempt and non tax-exempt entities and observing the tax exemption
of tax-exempt entities, if and/or when so allowed under and in accordance with these Terms
and Conditions and the relevant rules, conventions and guidelines of PDEx and PDTC.
However, notwithstanding the submission by the Bondholder, or the receipt by the Issuer,
the Registrar, the Joint Lead Managers of documentary proof of tax-exempt status of a
Bondholder, the Issuer may, in its sole and reasonable discretion, determine that such
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Bondholder is taxable and require the Registrar and Paying Agent to proceed to apply the
tax due on the Bonds. Any question on such determination shall be referred to the Issuer.
The Bondholders shall be responsible for monitoring and accurately reflecting their tax status
in the Register of Bondholders. The payment report to be prepared by the Registrar and
submitted to the Issuer in accordance with the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement,
which shall be the basis of payments on the Bonds on any Payment Date, shall reflect the
tax status of the Bondholders as indicated in their accounts as of the Record Date.
SECONDARY TRADING
The Issuer intends to list the Bonds in PDEx for secondary market trading. The Bonds will be
traded in a minimum board lot size of P10,000.00 as a minimum, and in multiples of
P10,000.00 in excess thereof for so long as any of the Bonds are listed in PDEx. Secondary
market trading in PDEx shall follow the applicable PDEx rules and conventions and
guidelines, including rules, conventions and guidelines governing trading and settlement
between Bondholders of different tax status, and shall be subject to the relevant fees of
PDEx and PDTC, all of which shall be for the account of the Bondholders.
RANKING
The Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer and will rank pari passu and ratably without any preference or priority amongst
themselves and at least pari passu with all other present and future, contingent or otherwise,
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, except for any statutory preference
or priority established by law.
INTEREST
Interest Payment Dates
Each Series A Bond bear interest on its principal amount from and including Issue Date at
the rate of 4.9925% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears on August 22, November 22,
February 22, and May 22 in each year commencing on August 22, 2015 or the subsequent
Business Day without adjustment if such Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day (each
of which, for purposes of this clause is an “Interest Payment Date”).
Each Series B Bond bear interest on its principal amount from and including Issue Date at
the rate of 5.5796% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears on August 22, November 22,
February 22, and May 22 in each year commencing on August 22, 2015 or the subsequent
Business Day without adjustment if such Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day (each
of which, for purposes of this clause is an “Interest Payment Date”).
Each Series C Bond bear interest on its principal amount from and including Issue Date at
the rate of 6.4872% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears on August 22, November 22,
February 22, and May 22 in each year commencing on August 22, 2015 or the subsequent
Business Day without adjustment if such Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day (each
of which, for purposes of this clause is an “Interest Payment Date”).
The cut-off date in determining the existing Bondholders entitled to receive interest, principal
or any amount due under the Bonds shall be the second (2nd) Business Day immediately
preceding the relevant Payment Date (the “Record Date”). No transfers of the Bonds may be
made during this period intervening between and commencing on the Record Date and the
relevant Interest Payment Date.
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Interest Accrual
Each Bond will cease to bear interest on the Maturity Date, unless, upon due presentation,
payment of the full amount due is improperly withheld or refused or default is otherwise
made in respect of such payment, in which case, the Penalty Interest (see “Penalty Interest”
below), will apply.
Determination of Rate of Interest
The interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30
days each and, in the case of an incomplete month, the number of days elapsed on the
basis of a month of 30 days.
REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE
Final Redemption
Unless earlier redeemed, purchased and cancelled in accordance with the Trust Agreement,
the Series A Bonds, Series B Bonds and Series C Bonds will be redeemed at par or
100.00% of their face value on their respective Maturity Dates. However, payment of all
amounts due on the Bonds on such dates may be made by the Issuer through the Paying
Agent, without adjustment, on the succeeding Business Day if the relevant Maturity Date is
not a Business Day.
Early Redemption due to Taxation, Change in Law or Circumstance
If payments under the Bonds become subject to additional or increased taxes other than the
taxes prevailing on the Issue Date as a result of certain Changes in Law, and such additional
or increased rate of such tax cannot be avoided by use of reasonable measures available to
the Issuer, then the Issuer may redeem the Bonds in whole, but not in part, on any Interest
Payment Date (having given not more than 60 days nor less than 30 days’ notice to the
Trustee, the Registrar and the Paying Agent) at par plus accrued interest; provided that if the
Issuer does not redeem the Bonds then all payments of principal and interest in respect of
the Bonds shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any
such new or additional taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges, unless such
withholding or deduction is required by law. In that event, the Issuer shall pay to the
Bondholders concerned, such additional amount as will result in the receipt by the
Bondholders of such amounts as would have been received by them had no such
withholding or deduction for new or additional taxes been required.
In the event that there shall hereafter occur any Change in Law, or any approval, permit,
license, consent, authorization, registration, exemption, concession, franchise, privilege, or
any other right to be granted or granted by the Government to the Issuer now or hereafter
necessary for the conduct of the business or operations of the Issuer is not obtained, or is
subsequently terminated, withdrawn, rescinded, or amended, and the result of any of the
foregoing, as determined by the Issuer, will materially and adversely affect the ability of the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Bonds or the Trust Agreement or the financial
position or operations of the Issuer, then the Issuer may redeem the Bonds at any time in
whole, but not in part (having given not more than 60 days’ nor less than 30 days’ notice to
the Trustee, the Registrar and the Paying Agent from the time of the occurrence of the
event) at par plus accrued interest.
If any provision of the Issue Management and Underwriting Agreement, Trust Agreement, or
the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement shall become, for any reason, invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, or any act or condition or thing required to be done, fulfilled or performed at
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any time by the Issuer is not done, fulfilled or performed, to the extent that it will become
unlawful for the Issuer to give effect to its rights and obligations under the Issue
Management and Underwriting Agreement, Trust Agreement, the Registry and Paying
Agency Agreement, or the Bonds or to enforce the provisions of the Issue Management and
Underwriting Agreement, Trust Agreement, the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement or
the Bonds in whole or in part, then the Issuer may redeem the Bonds at any time in whole,
but not in part (having given not more than 60 days nor less than 30 days’ notice to the
Trustee, the Registrar and the Paying Agent from the time of illegality) at par plus accrued
interest.
Early Redemption due to Change of Control
Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, Bondholders holding at least two-thirds (2/3) of
the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds may require the Issuer to repurchase all (but
not some) of the Bonds, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds
being redeemed and accrued interest thereon (the “Change of Control Redemption Price”).
Within fifteen (15) days following a Change of Control, the Issuer shall notify the Trustee,
which shall, in turn, notify the Bondholders (i) that a Change of Control has occurred and that
the Bondholders holding at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding principal amount of the
Bonds may require the Issuer to repurchase all (but not some) of the Bonds at the Change of
Control Redemption Price, and (ii) the date set by the Issuer for such repurchase (which
shall not be earlier than forty-five (45) days and no later than sixty (60) days from the date
notice is received by the Trustee). The decision of the Bondholders holding at least twothirds (2/3) of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds shall be conclusive and binding
upon all the Bondholders.
Change of Control for purposes of this Section shall mean San Miguel Corporation (and/or
its Affiliates) ceasing to, whether directly or indirectly, have an aggregate economic interest
of more than 50.0% in the Issuer or ceasing to have control over the Issuer. For purposes of
this definition, “Affiliate” means, with respect to San Miguel Corporation, any person that
directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by, or is
under common control with, San Miguel Corporation. In this context, “control” means the
possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct, or cause the direction of, the
management and policies of such person, whether through ownership of voting shares,
by contract, or otherwise.
Early Redemption Option
The Issuer may (but shall not be obliged to) redeem all (and not a part only) of any series of
the outstanding Bonds on the following relevant dates (each date, an “Early Redemption
Option Date”).
The amount payable to the Bondholders in respect of such redemptions shall be calculated
based on the principal amount of the Bonds being redeemed, as the sum of (i) the accrued
interest on the Bonds computed from the last Interest Payment Date up to the relevant Early
Redemption Option Date; and (ii) the product of the principal amount and the applicable
Early Redemption Price in accordance with the following schedule:
Early Redemption Option Date on
Series A Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Three (3) Years from Issue Date

101.0%

Four (4) Years from Issue Date

100.5%
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Early Redemption Option Date on
Series B Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Five (5) Years and Three (3) Months
from Issue Date

101.0%

Six (6) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

Early Redemption Option Date on
Series C Bonds

Early
Redemption
Price

Seven (7) Years from Issue Date

102.0%

Eight (8) Years from Issue Date

101.0%

Nine (9) Years from Issue Date

100.5%

The Issuer shall give not more than 60 days’ nor less than 30 days’ prior written notice of its
intention to redeem the Bonds to the Trustee, which notice shall be irrevocable and binding
upon the Issuer to effect such early redemption of the Bonds at the Optional Redemption
Date stated in such notice.
Purchase and Cancellation
The Issuer may purchase the Bonds at any time in the open market or by tender or by
contract, in accordance with PDEX Rules, without any obligation to make pro rata purchases
from all Bondholders. Bonds so purchased shall be redeemed and cancelled and may not be
re-issued. Upon listing of the Bonds in the PDEX, the Issuer shall disclose any such
transaction in accordance with the applicable PDEX disclosure rules.
Payments
The principal of, interest on, and all other amounts payable on the Bonds shall be paid to the
Bondholders through the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall credit the proper amounts
received from the Issuer via RTGS, net of final taxes and fees (if any), to the Philippine Peso
cash account maintained and designated by or on behalf of the Bondholder in his/her
Application to Purchase. The principal of, and interest on, the Bonds shall be payable in
Philippine Pesos. The Issuer shall ensure that so long as any of the Bonds remain
outstanding, there shall at all times be a Paying Agent for purpose of disbursing payments
on the Bonds.
Taxation
Under the Philippine law prevailing as of the Issue Date, interest income on the Bonds is
subject to a final withholding tax at rates between 20% and 30% depending on the tax status
of the relevant Bondholder under relevant law, regulation, or tax treaty. Except for such final
withholding tax and as otherwise provided below, all payments of principal and interest are
to be made free and clear of any deductions or withholding for or on account of any present
or future taxes or duties imposed by or on behalf of the Republic of the Philippines, including
but not limited to, issue, registration or any similar tax or other taxes and duties, including
interest and penalties, if any. If such taxes or duties are imposed, the same shall be for the
account of the Issuer; provided however that, the Issuer shall not be liable for the following:

43

(a) Income tax on any gain by a holder of the Bonds realized from the sale, exchange or
retirement of the said Bonds;
(b) The applicable final withholding tax on interest earned on the Bonds prescribed
under the Tax Reform Act of 1997, as amended and its implementing rules and
regulations as may be in effect from time to time. Interest income on the Bonds is
subject to a final withholding tax at rates between 20% and 30%, depending on the
tax status of the relevant Bondholder and subject to its claim of tax exemption or
preferential withholding tax rates under relevant law, regulation or tax treaty;
(c) Gross Receipts Tax under Section 121 of the Tax Code;
(d) Taxes on the overall income of any securities dealer or Bondholder, whether or not
subject to withholding; and
(e) Value Added Tax (“VAT”) under Sections 106 to 108 of the Tax Code, and as
amended by Republic Act No. 9337.
Any documentary stamp tax for the primary issue of the Bonds and the execution of the
Issue Management and Underwriting Agreement, Trust Agreement, and the Registry and
Paying Agency Agreement, if any, shall be for the account of the Issuer.
FINANCIAL COVENANTS
So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the Issuer covenants and agrees that,
unless the Majority Bondholders shall otherwise consent in writing, it shall maintain:
(a) Debt-to-Equity Ratio of not more than 2.5x
(b) Interest Coverage Ratio of not less than 3.0x
For purposes of this Section, the following defined terms shall have the respective meanings
set forth below:
Debt means the sum of interest-bearing debt of the Issuer, as reflected in its financial
statements.
Debt-to-Equity Ratio means Debt divided by stockholder’s equity.
EBITDA means the net income before (i) any provision on account of taxation; (ii) before any
interest, commission, discount or other fees incurred or payable, received or receivable in
respect of the total indebtedness for borrowed money; (iii) before any items treated as
exceptional or extraordinary items; and (iv) before any amount attributable to the
amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of tangible assets, and so that no amount
shall be included or excluded more than once and all as determined in conformity with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Interest Cover Ratio means the beginning cash balance plus the EBITDA less dividends
paid for the Relevant Period divided by its total Interest Expense over the next twelve (12)
months

Interest Expense means for any Relevant Period, the aggregate amount of interest,
commissions, fees, discounts, prepayment penalties or premiums or other finance payments
in respect of the total indebtedness of the Issuer for borrowed money whether accrued, paid
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or payable or whether or not capitalized by the Issuer in respect of that Relevant Period: (i)
including the interest element of leasing and hire purchase payments; (ii) including any
amounts paid, payable or accrued by the Issuer to counter parties under any interest rate
hedging instrument; and (iii) deducting any amounts paid, payable or accrued by counter
parties to the Issuer under any interest rate hedging instrument.
Relevant Period means each period of twelve (12) months ending on the last day of the
financial year of the Issuer and each period of twelve (12) months ending on the last day of
each quarter of the financial year of the Issuer.
NEGATIVE PLEDGE
Until redemption or payment in full of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the
Bonds, SLTC shall not, without the prior written consent of the Majority Bondholders, directly
or indirectly, incur or suffer to exist any Lien upon any of its assets and revenues, present
and future, or enter into any loan facility agreement secured by or to be secured by a Lien
upon any of its assets and revenues, present and future, unless it has made or will make
effective provisions, satisfactory to the Majority Bondholders, whereby the Lien thereby
created will secure, on an equal first ranking and ratable basis, any and all the obligations of
SLTC under the Bonds and such other Debt which such Lien purports to secure; provided,
that the foregoing restriction shall not apply to the following (the “Permitted Liens”):
(a) Liens existing as of the date of the Trust Agreement;
(b) Liens granted to a bank or other institution solely in connection with the issuance of a
bid security for use in the bidding for or acquisition of assets or concessions by the
Issuer, which Lien shall be released automatically when such bank or other institution
is paid or reimbursed for payments made under such bid security;
(c) Any netting or set-off arrangement entered into in the ordinary course of banking
arrangements for the purpose of netting debit and credit balance;
(d) To meet any margin requirement in respect, or any netting or set-off arrangement in
the ordinary course of derivative transactions for hedging purposes;
(e) Over the shares owned by the Issuer in a new investee corporation where the Lien is
created to secure an indebtedness obtained by such investee corporation for the
purpose of financing a project of that investee corporation, where such financing is a
non-recourse basis against the Issuer;
(f) Over any and all of the assets, concessions, rights, and/or interests of the Issuer in
TR4 of the SLEX granted or created by the Issuer in favor of any lender, in relation to
any debt raising activities for the construction of TR4;
(g) Granted or created in favor of any lender in relation to any project financing
arrangement entered into by the Issuer to fund any and all capital expenditure
requirements mandated under the STOA;
(h) Any extension, renewal or replacement (or successive extensions, renewals or
replacements) in whole or in part of any Lien referred to in paragraphs (a) to (e)
inclusive, or of any indebtedness secured thereby; provided, that such extension,
renewal or replacement is limited to all or any part of the same property that secured
the Lien extended, renewed or replaced (plus any construction, repair or
improvement on such property) and shall secure no larger amount of financial
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indebtedness than that existing at the time of such extension, renewal or
replacement; and
(i) Liens created with the prior written consent of the Majority Bondholders.
GOVERNING LAW
The Bonds and the Trust Agreement are governed by and are construed in accordance with
Philippine law. Any dispute arising out of or relating to the Terms and Conditions shall be
brought before the proper courts of Mandaluyong City or Makati City, to the exclusion of all
other courts and venues of equal and competent jurisdiction.
DEFAULT
Events of Default
The Issuer shall be considered in default under the Bonds and the Trust Agreement in case
any of the following events (each an “Event of Default”) shall occur and is continuing:
(a)

the Issuer defaults in the payment when due of any amount payable under the Trust
Agreement, the Bonds, or any other Transaction Document unless such failure arises
solely as a result of an administrative or technical error or a Disruption Event and
payment is made within three (3) Business Days after the date such payment is due
(a “Payment Default”);

(b)

the Issuer fails to perform, comply with, or violates any material provision, term,
condition, covenant or obligation contained in the Transaction Documents (other than
by reason of paragraph (a) above), and any such failure, non-compliance or violation
is not remediable or, if remediable, continues unremedied for a period of 30 days (or
such longer curing period granted to the Issuer by the Majority Bondholders) from the
date after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Issuer by the Trustee;

(c)

any representation or warranty which is made or deemed to be made by the Issuer or
any of the directors or officers of the Issuer herein or otherwise in connection
herewith, or in any certificate delivered by the Issuer hereunder or in connection
herewith, shall prove to have been untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of
the time it was made or deemed to have been made;

(d)

an event of default shall have occurred under any Material Agreement and shall not
have been remedied as provided therein;

(e)

any Concession or Material Agreement is terminated, withdrawn or suspended, but in
case of suspension, only where such suspension will have a Material Adverse Effect;

(f)

the Issuer transfers, conveys, assigns, encumbers or creates any security interest
over its rights and interests in the Material Agreements where such transfer,
conveyance, assignment, encumbrance or creation of any security interest has a
Material Adverse Effect;

(g)

any Indebtedness of the Issuer, whether singly or in the aggregate, in excess of Five
Hundred Million Pesos (P500,000,000.00) or its equivalent in other currencies is not
paid on its due date or within any applicable grace period or is declared to be due
and payable prior to its stated date of payment (except where liability for payment of
that Indebtedness is being contested in good faith by appropriate means);
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(h)

any act, deed or judicial or administrative proceedings in the nature of an
expropriation, sequestration, confiscation, nationalization, intervention, acquisition,
seizure, or condemnation of, or with respect to, the business and operations of the
Issuer or its property or assets, shall be undertaken or instituted by any
Governmental Authority, present or future, unless such act, deed or proceedings are
otherwise contested in good faith by the Issuer or will not have a Material Adverse
Effect;

(i)

a decree or order by a court or other Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over
the premises is entered without the consent or application of the Issuer:
(1) adjudging the Issuer bankrupt or insolvent;
(2) approving a petition seeking a suspension of payments by or a reorganization
of the Issuer under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization
law;
(3) appointing a receiver, liquidator or trustee or assignee in bankruptcy or
insolvency of the Issuer or of all or substantially all of the business or assets
of the Issuer;
(4) providing for the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Issuer;
(5) with a view to the rehabilitation, administration, liquidation, winding-up or
dissolution of the Issuer; or
(6) taking other action under Applicable Law which is similar to any of the events
mentioned in paragraphs (1) to (5) above (inclusive);
Provided, that the issuance of any such decree or order shall not be an Event of
Default if the same shall have been dismissed or stayed by injunction or otherwise
within ninety (90) days from issuance thereof;

(j)

the Issuer:
(1) institutes voluntary proceedings to be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent or
consents to the filing of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding against it;
(2) files a petition seeking a suspension of payments by it or its reorganization
under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization law or
consents to the filing of any such petition;
(3) seeks or consents to the appointment of a receiver or liquidator or trustee or
assignee in bankruptcy or insolvency of it or of all or substantially all of its
business or assets;
(4) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors or admits in writing its
inability to pay its debts generally as they become due;
(5) files a petition seeking the winding up or liquidation of its affairs or consents
to the filing of any such petition;
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(6) takes any other step with a view to its rehabilitation, administration,
liquidation, winding-up or dissolution or a suspension of payments by it; or
(7) takes other action under Applicable Law which is similar to any of the
events mentioned in paragraphs (1) to (6) above (inclusive);
(k)

final and executory judgment(s) or order(s) are rendered by a court of competent
jurisdiction against the Issuer or its properties or assets for the payment of money
which will have a Material Adverse Effect and such judgment or order shall continue
unsatisfied or undischarged after ninety (90) days;

(l)

it becomes unlawful for the Issuer to perform any of its obligations under the
Transaction Documents;

(m)

the Issuer shall suspend or discontinue all or a substantial portion of its business
operations, whether voluntarily or involuntarily for a period of 30 consecutive days
except in the cases of strike or lockout when necessary to prevent business losses,
or when due to fortuitous events or force majeure, provided that in any such event of
strikes, lockouts or closure due to force majeure events, there is no material and
adverse effect on the business operations or financial condition of the Issuer;

(n)

any event or circumstance that will have a Material Adverse Effect has occurred;

(o)

any Governmental Approval now or hereafter necessary to enable the Issuer to
comply with its obligations under any Material Agreement to which it is party is not
issued when required or is revoked, cancelled, withdrawn or withheld, not renewed,
modified or amended or otherwise ceases to remain in full force and effect and such
cancellation, withdrawal withholding, non-renewal, modification or amendment has a
Material Adverse Effect; provided, that if the same is capable of being remedied, it
shall not be an Event of Default if remedied within 90 days from occurrence thereof;
and

(p)

any Material Agreement or any provision thereof is or becomes invalid, illegal or
unenforceable and there is a Material Adverse Effect as a result thereof which has
not been remedied within 30 days of the occurrence thereof.
Wherein:
Governmental Approval means any authorization, consent, concession, grant,
approval, right, franchise, privileges, registration, filing, certificate, license, permit or
exemption from, by or with any Governmental Authority, whether given or withheld by
express action or deemed given or withheld by failure to act within any specified time
period.
Governmental Authority means the Philippine government or political subdivision
thereof, and any entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or
administrative functions of or pertaining to the Philippine government.
Indebtedness means, for any person:
(a)

all financial obligations of such person for borrowed money;

(b)

all financial obligations evidenced by a promissory note or other instrument;
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(c)

all financial obligations for the deferred purchase price of property or services
except trade accounts payable arising in the ordinary course of business;

(d)

all financial obligations of any other corporation, person or other entity, the
payment or collection of which such person has guaranteed (except by
reason of endorsement for collection in the ordinary course of business), or
otherwise, including without limitation, liability, by way of agreement to
purchase entered into by, to provide funds for payment to, to supply funds to,
or otherwise invest in, such other corporation, person, or entity;

(e)

all financial obligations of any other corporation, person or other entity for
borrowed money evidenced by a promissory note or other instrument or for
the deferred purchase price of property or services except trade accounts
payable arising in the ordinary course of business secured by (or for which
the holder of such financial obligations has an existing right, contingent or
otherwise to be secured by) any Lien (including without limitation, accounts
receivable and other contract rights) owned by such person, whether or not
such person has assumed or become liable for the payment of such financial
obligation or obligation(s);

(f)

obligations treated as capitalized lease obligations of such person in
accordance with PFRS; and

(g)

any other arrangement assuring a creditor against loss.

Provided, that in determining the amount of Indebtedness, no amount shall be taken
into account more than once in the same calculation, and where the amount is to be
calculated on a consolidated basis in respect of a corporate group, monies borrowed
or raised, or other indebtedness, as between members of such group shall be
excluded;
Provided, further, that as used herein, the term “financial obligation” shall be
construed as to include any obligation (whether incurred as principal or surety) for the
payment or repayment of money, whether present or future, actual or contingent.
Majority Bondholders means, (a) with respect to matters relating only to the Series
A Bonds, Bondholders representing more than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding
principal amount of the Series A Bonds, (b) with respect to matters relating only to
the Series B Bonds, Bondholders representing more than fifty percent (50%) of the
outstanding principal amount of the Series B Bonds, (c) with respect to matters
relating only to the Series C Bonds, Bondholders representing more than fifty percent
(50%) of the outstanding principal amount of the Series C Bonds, and (d) with
respect to matters affecting all Bonds, Bondholders representing more than fifty
percent (50%) of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds.
Material Adverse Effect means, in the reasonable opinion of the Majority
Bondholders, acting in good faith and in consultation with the Issuer, a material
adverse effect on (a) the ability of the Issuer to observe and comply with the
provisions of and perform its financial obligations under the Bonds and the
Transaction Documents; or (b) the validity or enforceability of the Bonds or any
Transaction Document; or (c) the financial condition, business or operations of the
Issuer taken as a whole.
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Material Agreements means each of the following agreements, as may be amended
or supplemented from time to time:
(a)
(b)

the Supplemental Toll Operations Agreement; and
the Operations and Maintenance Agreement.

Notice of Default
The Trustee shall, within five (5) Business Days after receipt of written notice on the
occurrence of an Event of Default from the Issuer or the Majority Bondholders give all
Bondholders written notice of any such Event of Default unless the same shall have been
cured before the giving of such notice; provided, that in the case of a Payment Default, the
Trustee shall immediately notify the Bondholders upon the occurrence of such payment
default.
The existence of a written notice required to be given to the Bondholders under the
preceding paragraph shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation in Metro
Manila, Philippines indicating in the published notice that the Bondholders or their duly
authorized representatives any information relating to such occurrence of an Event of
Default at the principal office of the Trustee upon presentation of sufficient and acceptable
identification.
Declaration of Default
If any one or more of the Events of Default shall have occurred and be continuing after the
lapse of the period given to the Issuer within which to cure such Event of Default under these
Terms and Conditions, if any, or upon the occurrence of such Event of Default for which no
cure period is provided, (i) the Trustee upon the written direction of the Majority
Bondholders, by notice in writing delivered to the Issuer or (ii) the Majority Bondholders, by
notice in writing delivered to the Issuer and the Trustee, may declare the Issuer in default
and declare the principal of the Bonds then outstanding, together with all interest accrued
and unpaid thereon and all amounts due thereunder, to be due and payable not later than
five (5) Business Days from the receipt of the declaration.
All the unpaid obligations under the Bonds, including accrued Interest, and all other amounts
payable thereunder, shall be declared to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon all such
amounts shall become and be forthwith due and payable without presentment, demand,
protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Issuer.
Penalty Interest
In case any amount payable by the Issuer under the Bonds, whether for principal, interest,
fees due to Trustee or Registrar or otherwise, is not paid on due date, the Issuer shall,
without prejudice to its obligations to pay the said principal, interest and other amounts, pay
penalty fee on the defaulted amount(s) at the rate of 12% per annum (the “Penalty Interest”)
from the time the amount fell due until it is fully paid.
Payment in the Event of Default
Upon a declaration of default and acceleration of payment of the Bonds by the Majority
Bondholders pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Issuer shall pay to the
Paying Agent for the benefit of the Bondholders the whole amount which shall then have
become due and payable on such outstanding Bonds with interest at the rate borne by the
Bonds on the overdue principal and with Penalty Interest, where applicable.
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Application of Payments
Subject to the provisions of the Trust Agreement or the Registry and Paying Agency
Agreement, any money collected by the Trustee from the Issuer upon a declaration of
default and any other funds held by it shall be applied by the Trustee in the order of
preference as follows:
(a)

To the pro-rata payment to the Trustee, the Registrar and the Paying Agent of the
reasonable and documented costs, expenses, fees, and other charges of collection,
including reasonable compensation to them, their agents, attorneys, and all
reasonable and documented expenses and liabilities incurred or disbursements
made by them, without gross negligence or bad faith in carrying out their respective
obligations under their respective agreements with the Issuer in connection with the
Bonds.

(b)

To the payment of all outstanding interest, including any Penalty Interest, in the order
of maturity of such interest.

(c)

To the payment of the principal amount of the Bonds then due and payable.

(d)

The remainder, if any, shall be paid to the Issuer, its successors, or assigns, or to
whoever may be lawfully entitled to receive the same, or as a court of competent
jurisdiction may direct.

Prescription
Claims in respect of principal and interest or other sums payable under the Bonds will
prescribe unless made within ten (10) years (in the case of principal or other sums) or five
(5) years (in the case of interest) from the date on which the payment becomes due.
Remedies
All remedies conferred by the Trust Agreement upon the Trustee and the Bondholders shall
be cumulative and not exclusive and shall not be so construed as to deprive the
Bondholders of any legal remedy by judicial or extra judicial proceedings appropriate to
enforce the conditions and covenants under the Trust Agreement.
No delay or omission by the Trustee or any Bondholder, to exercise any right or power
arising from or on account of any default shall impair any such right or power, or shall be
construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence thereto; and every power
and remedy provided under the Trust Agreement to the Trustee and Bondholders may be
exercised from time to time and as often as may be necessary or expedient.
Waiver
The Majority Bondholders may direct the time, method and place of conducting any
proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any trust or power
conferred upon the Trustee, or the Majority Bondholders may decide for and in behalf of the
Bondholders, upon the written request of the Issuer, to waive the application of the Events of
Default and its consequences except for Events of Default (a), (h), (j), (k), and (m) cannot be
waived by the Bondholders. No such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other default
or impair any right consequent thereto. Any such waiver by the Majority Bondholders shall
be conclusive and binding upon all the Bondholders and upon all future holders and owners
thereof.
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Ability to File Suit
No Bondholder shall have any right by virtue or by availing of any provision of the Trust
Agreement to institute any suit, action or proceeding for the collection of any sum due from
the Issuer on account of principal or interest, or for the appointment of a receiver or Trustee,
or for any other remedy hereunder, unless (i) such holder shall previously have given to the
Trustee a written notice of default and of the continuance thereof and the related request for
the Trustee to convene a meeting of the Bondholders to take up matters related to their
rights and interests under the Bonds, and (ii) the Majority Bondholders shall have decided
and made a written request upon the Trustee to institute such suit, action or proceeding in its
own name, and (iii) the Trustee for 60 days after receipt of such notice and request shall
have neglected or refused to institute any such suit, action or proceeding, and (iv) no
directions inconsistent with such written request or rescission and annulment of a declaration
of default by the Bondholders has been made.
No Bondholder shall have any right in any manner whatsoever by virtue of or by availing of
any provision of the Trust Agreement to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of the holders
of any other such Bonds or to obtain or seek to obtain priority over or preference to any other
such holder or to enforce any right under the Trust Agreement, except in the manner
provided under the Trust Agreement and for the equal, ratable and common benefit of all
Bondholders.
TRUSTEE
Appointment of Trustee
The Issuer has appointed BDO Unibank, Inc. – Trust & Investments Group as Trustee for
and on behalf and benefit of the Bondholders, in connection with the distribution and sale by
the Issuer of the Bonds.
Duties and Responsibilities of the Trustee
The Trustee shall be responsible for performing, among others, the following duties for the
benefit of the Bondholders, including but not limited to:
(a)

Monitor compliance by the Issuer with its obligations under the Trust Agreement;

(b)

Report regularly to Bondholders any non-compliance by the Issuer with the Trust
Agreement and any developments with respect to the Issuer that adversely affect the
interest of the Bondholders and advise the Bondholders of the course of action that
they may take to protect their interest; and

(c)

Act on behalf of the Bondholders including calling for and/or attending meetings of
the Bondholders.
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Resignation and Change of Trustee
The Trustee may resign at any time by giving the Issuer at least 90 calendar days’ prior
written notice to that effect. Upon receipt of such notice of resignation, the Issuer shall
immediately appoint a replacement trustee (the “Replacement Trustee”) by written
instrument in duplicate, one copy of which instrument shall be delivered to the resigning
Trustee and one copy to the Replacement Trustee. If no Replacement Trustee shall have
been so appointed and have accepted appointment within 30 days after the giving of such
notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee or any Bondholder who has been a bona fide
holder for at least six (6) months may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the
appointment of a Replacement Trustee. Such court may thereupon after such notice, if any,
as it may deem proper and prescribe, appoint a Replacement Trustee.
The Issuer may, subject to the occurrence of certain events as specified in the Trust
Agreement, within 30 days, remove the Trustee and appoint a Replacement Trustee, by
written instrument in duplicate, one copy of which instrument shall be delivered to the
Trustee so removed and one copy to the Replacement Trustee. If the Issuer fails to remove
the Trustee and appoint a Replacement Trustee, any Bondholder may, on behalf of himself
and all other Bondholders, petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the removal of the
Trustee and the appointment of a Replacement Trustee. Such court may thereupon after
such notice, if any, as it may deem proper and prescribe, remove the Trustee and appoint a
Replacement Trustee.
The Majority Bondholders may at any time remove for cause the Trustee and with the
consent of the Issuer, appoint a Replacement Trustee in accordance with the terms of the
Trust Agreement, without prejudice to whatever remedies may be available to the Majority
Bondholders under the law or in equity.
Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and the appointment of a Replacement Trustee
pursuant to any of the provisions of the Trust Agreement shall become effective upon the
earlier of: (i) acceptance of appointment by the Replacement Trustee as provided in the
Trust Agreement; or (ii) the effectivity of the resignation notice sent by the Trustee under the
Trust Agreement (the “Resignation Effective Date”) provided, however, that after the
Resignation Effective Date and, as relevant, until such Replacement Trustee is qualified and
appointed, the resigning Trustee shall discharge duties and responsibilities solely as a
custodian of records for turnover to the Replacement Trustee promptly upon the
appointment thereof by SLTC.
Within ten (10) days from the effectiveness of the resignation or removal of the outgoing
trustee and the appointment of the Replacement Trustee, the outgoing trustee shall transfer
and turn over to the Replacement Trustee, and shall make an accounting of, all the assets,
documents or instruments which are in the custody of the outgoing trustee pursuant to the
Trust Agreement, if any.
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Replacement Trustee
The Replacement Trustee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Issuer and to the
outgoing Trustee an instrument accepting his/her appointment, and thereupon the
resignation or removal of the outgoing Trustee shall become effective and the Replacement
Trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become vested with all the rights,
powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor under the Trust Agreement. The
foregoing notwithstanding, on the written request of the Issuer or of the Replacement
Trustee, the Trustee ceasing to act as such shall execute and deliver an instrument
transferring to the Replacement Trustee, all the rights, powers and duties of the Trustee so
ceasing to act as such. Upon request of any such Replacement Trustee, the Issuer shall
execute any and all instruments in writing as may be necessary to fully vest in and confer to
such Replacement Trustee all such rights, powers and duties.
Upon acceptance of appointment by the Replacement Trustee, the Issuer shall notify the
Bondholders in writing and/or by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in Metro
Manila, Philippines of the succession of such Replacement Trustee to the duties of the
outgoing Trustee. If the Issuer fails to notify the Bondholders within ten (10) days after
acceptance of appointment by the Replacement Trustee, the latter shall cause the
Bondholders to be so notified at the expense of the Issuer.
MEETING OF BONDHOLDERS
The Trustee may at any time call a meeting of the Bondholders, on its own accord or upon
the written request of the Issuer or the Majority Bondholders, for purposes of taking any
actions authorized under the Trust Agreement.
Notice of Meetings
Notice of every meeting of the Bondholders, setting forth the time and the place of such
meeting and the purpose of such meeting in reasonable detail, shall be sent by the Trustee
to the Issuer and to each of the registered Bondholders not earlier than 45 days nor later
than 15 days prior to the date fixed for the meeting. Each of such notices shall be published
in a newspaper of general circulation as provided in the Trust Agreement. All reasonable and
documented costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee for the proper dissemination of the
requested meeting shall be reimbursed by the Issuer within ten (10) days from receipt of the
duly supported billing statement.
Failure to Call a Meeting
The failure of the Trustee to call a meeting upon the written request of either the Issuer or
the Majority Bondholders within three (3) days from such request shall entitle the requesting
party to send the appropriate notice of Bondholders’ meeting and the costs therefrom shall
be charged to the account of the Trustee.
Quorum for Meetings
The Trustee shall determine and record the presence of the Majority Bondholders,
personally or by proxy. The presence of the Majority Bondholders shall be necessary to
constitute a quorum to do business at any meeting of the Bondholders.

54

Procedure for Meetings
The Trustee shall preside at all the meetings of the Bondholders, unless the meeting shall
have been called by the Issuer or by the Bondholders, in which case the Issuer or the
Bondholders calling the meeting, as the case may be, shall move for the election of the
chairman and secretary of the meeting.
Any meeting of the Bondholders may be adjourned from time to time for a period not to
exceed in the aggregate one (1) year from the date for which the meeting shall have been
originally called, and the meeting as so adjourned may be held without further notice. Any
such adjournment may be ordered by persons representing a majority of the aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds represented at the meeting and entitled to vote, whether or
not a quorum shall be present at the meeting.
Voting Rights
To be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Bondholders, a person should be a registered
holder of the Bonds as reflected in the Register of Bondholders or a person appointed by a
public instrument in writing as proxy or agent by any such Bondholder (and, in case of
corporate or institutional Bondholders, duly supported by the resolutions of its board of
directors or equivalent body authorizing the appointment of the proxy or agent duly certified
by its corporate secretary or an authorized officer) as of the date of the meeting. For
avoidance of doubt, P5,000.00 is equal to one vote.
Voting Requirements
All matters presented for resolution by the Bondholders in a meeting duly called for the
purpose shall be decided or approved by the affirmative vote of the Majority Bondholders
present or represented in a meeting at which there is a quorum, except as otherwise
provided in the Trust Agreement. Any resolution of the Bondholders which has been duly
approved with the required number of votes of the Bondholders shall be binding upon all the
Bondholders and the Trustee.
Action of the Bondholders
In cases where, pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the holders of a specified percentage of
the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Bonds are allowed to take any action
(including the making of any demand or request, the giving of any notice or consent, or the
taking of any other action), the fact that at the time of taking any such action the
Bondholders of such specified percentage have joined such action may be evidenced by: (i)
any instrument executed by the Bondholders in person or by the agent or proxy appointed in
writing; (ii) the duly authenticated record of voting in favor thereof at the meeting of the
Bondholders duly called and held in accordance with the Trust Agreement; or (iii) a
combination of such instruments and any such record of meeting of the Bondholders.
Non-Reliance
Each Bondholder represents and warrants to the Trustee and to the Issuer that it has
independently and, without reliance on the Trustee or the Issuer, made its own credit
investigation and appraisal of the financial position and affairs of the Issuer on the basis of
such documents and information it has deemed appropriate and that it has subscribed to the
Bonds on the basis of such independent appraisal, and that it shall continue to make its own
credit appraisal without reliance on the Trustee or the Issuer.

55

Notices to Bondholders
Except where a specific mode of notification is provided for in the Issue Management and
Underwriting Agreement, Trust Agreement, or the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement,
notices to Bondholders shall be sufficient when made in writing and transmitted in any one of
the following modes: (i) registered mail; (ii) ordinary mail; (iii) by publication for at least once
a week for two (2) consecutive weeks in at least two (2) newspapers of general circulation in
the Philippines; or (iv) personal delivery to the address of record in the Register of
Bondholders. If notices to Bondholders shall be sent by mail or personal delivery, such
notices shall be sent to the mailing address of the Bondholders as set forth in the Register of
Bondholders All notices shall be deemed to have been received: (i) ten (10) days from
posting, if transmitted by registered mail; (ii) 15 days from mailing, if transmitted by ordinary
mail; (iii) on date of last publication, if notice is made through publication; or (iv) on date of
delivery, for personal delivery.
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INTERESTS OF NAMED EXPERTS
LEGAL MATTERS
All legal issues relating to the issuance of the Bonds which are subject of this Offer shall be
passed upon by SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan for the Joint Issue Managers, Lead
Underwriters and Joint Bookrunners, and Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos for the
Company. SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan and Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos
have no direct or indirect interest in SLTC. SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan and
Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos may, from time to time be engaged by SLTC to advise in
the transactions of the Company and perform legal services on the same basis that SyCip
Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan and Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos provide such
services to its other clients.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
SGV & Co., the independent auditors, audited the financial statements of the Company as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, which are all included in this
Prospectus. SGV & Co. has no shareholdings in the Company, or any right, whether legally
enforceable or not, to nominate or to subscribe to the securities of the Company, in
accordance with the professional standards on independence set by the Board of
Accountancy and Professional Regulation Commission.
The named independent auditor has not acted and will not act as promoter, underwriter,
voting trustee, officer or employee of the Company.
The aggregate fees billed by SGV & Co. are shown below (with comparative figures for
2014, 2013 and 2012):

Audit and Audit Related Fees

2014
P1,190,000

(Amount in Pesos)
2013
P1,200,160

2012
P1,380,160

SLTC has no disagreements with SGV & Co. on any matter of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.
The Audit Committee has an existing policy to review and pre-approve audit and non-audit
services rendered by the independent auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee does
not allow SLTC to engage independent auditors for certain non-audit services expressly
prohibited by SEC regulations to be performed by an independent auditor for its audit clients.
This is to ensure that such independent auditors maintain the highest level of independence
from the SLTC, both in fact and appearance. To date, SLTC has not engaged its
independent auditors to render non-audit services.
.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
COMPANY OVERVIEW
SLTC was incorporated in the Philippines on July 26, 2000, by virtue of a joint venture
agreement between MTDME and PNCC, primarily to engage in the rehabilitation,
construction and expansion of SLEX from the Alabang Viaduct to Lucena City in Quezon,
and other allied businesses such as the upgrading, replacing, and enlarging, repairing,
improving, modernizing, developing, or otherwise engaging in any work upon the toll roads,
including all approaches, interchanges, overpasses, bridges, toll plazas, sewerage and
drainage system, and related civil works, and for such purpose provide the necessary site
survey, traffic studies and investigations, materials and equipment, and supply, and install a
toll collection system for the toll roads, traffic toll and data management system, weighing
sensors, central computers, CCTV systems and related equipment, without engaging in
activities or the operation of a public utility except contracts for construction of locally-funded
government projects.
On February 1, 2006, the Grantor awarded to SLTC a 30-year concession ending on
February 1, 2036, to finance, design and construct the toll road, and to MATES the
concession to operate and maintain the toll road.
SLTC is an 80%-owned entity of MTDME; a domestic corporation engaged in general
construction, project management and administration. ROP owns the remaining 20% of the
shares in SLTC.
The parent company of SLTC is SMHC, a 100.0% owned subsidiary of SMC. SMHC owns
95.0% of AAIBV, a company incorporated in the Netherlands which in turn owns 100.0% of
MTDME.
Company Milestones
March 1977 ..................................................
Pursuant to P.D. 1113 issued on 31 March 1977, the PNCC, known
previously as the Construction and Development Corporation of the
Philippines, was granted the franchise to undertake the construction,
operation and maintenance of the North Luzon Expressway and the
South Luzon Expressway.
December 1983 ...........................................
Subsequently, or on 22 December 1983, the franchise was amended
by P.D. 1894, to include the scope thereof the Metro Manila
Expressway. In implementation of the grant of the original Franchise,
and as required thereunder, PNCC executed with the TRB the Toll
Operation Agreement in October 1977 (“TOA)”.
January 1995 ...............................................
In order to satisfy the conditions imposed by the TRB in respect of the
construction and expansion of the expressways under the PNCC
franchise and the TOA, PNCC submitted a proposal for undertaking
the financing, construction, completion, operation and maintenance of
the SLEX, through separate joint ventures with private proponents.
October 1999 ..............................................
The rehabilitation and extension of the South Luzon Tollway has been
entered into by PNCC through a joint venture agreement and
subsequently an Amended Joint Venture Agreement (“AJVA”) on May
2000, with Hopewell Crown Infrastructure, Inc. (HCII), the objective of
which is to refurbish the Alabang segment (including the Alabang
viaduct) to Calamba, Laguna segment of SLEX and extend the same
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to Lucena City in Quezon Province.
As an alternative to the joint venture agreement with HCII, if the same
does not materialize, PNCC between 2003 and 2005 held negotiations
with the National Development Corporation (“NDC”) to develop,
design, construct, finance, operate, and maintain the SLEX Project.
The proposed Project involved the rehabilitation of Alabang Viaduct
and the extension of the SLEX from Calamba to Sto. Tomas,
Batangas. AJVA was entered into with NDC on 11 October 2004
which should have paved the way for the Joint Investment Proposal
and STOA.
The option for the financing of NDC of the SLEX did not materialize as
further negotiations with HCII was pursued in the second quarter of
20052.
July 2000 .....................................................
In consonance with the PNCC-HCII joint venture agreement entered
into on October 11, 1999, SLTC was incorporated by PNCC and HCII
on July 26, 2000, as the joint venture company that will undertake the
rehabilitation, expansion, operation, and maintenance of the SLEX.
December 2004 ..........................................
MTD Equity Sdn Bhd (“MTD Equity”), a Malaysian company
expressed interest and commitment to provide the requisite financial &
technical resources for the Project by participating as an equity
partner in HCII, and has since taken over HCII as the principal
investor. Subsequently, HCII, MTD Equity and PNCC entered into a
Preliminary Agreement to a Shareholder’s Agreement dated June 29,
2005.
September 2005 .........................................
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of HCII were officially amended
to change the name of the Company to MTD Manila Expressways,
Inc. PNCC and MTDME submitted a Joint Investment Proposal that
was accepted by ROP, acting through the TRB subject to the terms
and conditions of the STOA. MTDME has taken over the HCII interest
and now holds 80% while PNCC holds 20%.
February 2006 .............................................
PNCC and SLTC executed a STOA between and among the ROP
through TRB, and the MATES, the latter being the operation and
maintenance company established by PNCC and HCII pursuant to
their joint venture agreement. Said STOA was approved on February
3, 2006 giving a 30-year life of the project. PNCC holds 40% in
MATES.

2

In an Order issued by the TRB on November 28, 1994 in TRB Case No. 94-01, entitled “Petition for Adjustment
of Toll Rates on the Burol to Sta. Ines & Alabang to Calamba Segments of the North and South Luzon Tollways”,
filed by the PNCC, the TRB, without calling PNCC in default, conditioned the approval of the aforesaid petition on
the submission by the PNCC and the approval by the TRB of a financing and implementation plan for
rehabilitation, extension and expansion of the tollways subject of the said petition .
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July 2006 .....................................................
The Project commenced in July 2006 for the rehabilitation and
widening of SLEX (Alabang to San Pedro) and in November 2006 for
the rehabilitation of the Alabang Viaduct.
April 2010.....................................................
TRB issued the Certificate of Substantial Completion (“CSC”) for Toll
Roads 1 and 2 (from Alabang, Muntinlupa to Calamba, Laguna).
TRB issued the Toll Operation Permit for Toll Roads 1 and 2.
May 2010 ....................................................
Handover of Operation and Maintenance of SLEX from PNCC to
SLTC and MATES.
December 2010 ..........................................
TRB approved the implementation of the new toll rate of PhP3.03/km
for Phase 1 (from Alabang, Muntinlupa to Sto. Tomas, Batangas) of
SLEX.
TRB confirmed the approval of the issuance of Toll Operation
Certificate for the entire Phase 1 of SLEX.
TRB issued the CSC for the entire Phase 1 of SLEX.
January 2011 ..............................................
Staggered implementation of the Php3.03/km new toll rate of SLEX,
until March 2011.
April 2011 ....................................................
Full implementation of the new toll rates of SLEX
December 2011 ..........................................
Consortium comprising of SMHC and Padma, successfully acquired
80% of SLTC and 60% of MATES from the MTD Group of Malaysia.
December 2014 ..........................................
Submission to the TRB for approval of the Detailed Engineering
Design of Sections A, B and C of Toll Road 4 (from Sto. Tomas,
Batangas to Lucena City in Quezon).
The SLEX Concession
SLTC is the concessionaire of the SLEX which currently spans 36.1 km from Alabang,
Muntinlupa to Sto. Tomas, Batangas. The SLEX is one of the three major expressways that
links Metro Manila to the key southern provinces of the Philippines, including Cavite,
Laguna, Batangas, Rizal and Quezon (“CALABARZON”). To the north of the SLEX is the
Skyway system, and to the south is the Southern Tagalog Arterial Road (“STAR”). SLEX
connects with the Skyway System and STAR and is a key logistical backbone to the
southern corridor of Metro Manila.
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An illustration of the three tollways is seen on the map below:

Source: SLTC Company Records

SLEX is composed of four toll road segments, namely TR1, TR2, TR3 and TR4 which are
intended to operate as an integrated expressway. Currently operational are TR1, TR2 and
TR3. These were classified into four segments to clearly define the scope of work (including
rehabilitation and/or construction works) for each.
Project Toll Road 1 (“TR1”): The Alabang Viaduct – 1.2 kms
TR1 involved the rehabilitation and upgrade of the Alabang viaduct which included the
widening of the at-grade portion of the roads, retrofitting of the existing structure, and the
replacement and expansion of the elevated portion from 6 to 8 lanes.
Project Toll Road 2 (“TR2”): Expansion from Filinvest Exit to Calamba, Laguna – 27.3 kms
TR2 involved the widening of the SLEX segment between Filinvest exit and Sta. Rosa,
Laguna from 4 to 8 lanes and segment between Sta. Rosa, Laguna to Calamba, Laguna
from 4 to 6 lanes.
Project Toll Road 3 (“TR3”): Extension of the SLEX from Calamba, Laguna to Sto. Tomas,
Batangas – 7.6 kms
TR3 involved the construction of a 4-lane roadway from Calamba, Laguna to Sto. Tomas
Batangas. The construction of this section connected Metro Manila, SLEX, and STAR.

61

Number of Toll Gates and Toll Plazas

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

ENTRY
Toll Plaza
No. of Toll Gates
Alabang / Filinvest SB
3
Susana Heights
3
San Pedro
1
Southwoods NB
5
Southwoods SB
3
Carmona
3
Mamplasan NB
3
Mamplasan SB
3
Sta. Rosa NB
3
Sta. Rosa SB
3
Eton NB
3
Eton SB
3
Cabuyao NB
3
Cabuyao SB
2
Silangan NB
2
SIlangan SB
3
Calamba
4

EXIT
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Toll Plaza
Filinvest
Alabang NB
Susana Heights
San Pedro
Southwoods NB
Southwoods SB
Carmona SB
Mamplasan NB
Mamplasan SB
Sta. Rosa NB
Sta. Rosa SB
Eton NB
Eton SB
Cabuyao NB
Cabuyao SB
Silangan NB
SIlangan SB
Calamba
Ayala Greenfield

No. of Toll Gates
4
3
4
3
3
5
6
3
3
5
6
3
3
3
4
3
3
12
9

LAY-BY / EMERGENCY LANES
Particulars
Location
San Pedro (Monark) Sta. Km. 28 + 543 (SB)
San Pedro (Alaska) Sta. Km. 28 + 100 (NB)
Carmona
Sta. Km. 34 + 400 (SB)
Sta. Km. 33 + 900 (NB)
Sta. Rosa
Sta. Km. 38 + 900
Caltex (SB)
Sta. Km. 36 + 577 - Km. 36 + 830

NB - North Bound
SB - South Bound

Source: SLTC Company Records

Supplemental Toll Operation Agreement (STOA)
On February 1, 2006, the STOA with the MATES, PNCC and the ROP through the “TRB
awarded to SLTC a 30-year concession ending on February 1, 2036, to finance, design and
construct the toll road, and to MATES the concession to operate and maintain the toll road. It
includes the period of construction which began in June 2006.
The STOA authorizes the Company to carry out the rehabilitation, construction and
expansion of the SLEX Project, comprising of Toll Roads (TR).
On December 14, 2010, the TRB issued the Toll Operations Certificate for Phase I of the
SLEX, i.e. TR1, TR2 and TR3, and approved the implementation of the initial toll rate of the
Company, for the said Phase I.
Under the STOA, toll revenue collected from SLEX is the property of SLTC. On the other
hand, MATES shall collect and retain custody of, and remit the toll revenue collected to
SLTC. Toll rates are subject to periodic adjustment based on the formula provided under
Section 8.07(1) of the STOA, subject to the conditions thereunder.
The STOA allows SLTC and MATES to assign absolutely to the Lenders all or any part of
the toll revenue provided that expenses for the operation and maintenance of SLEX are met.
However, any assignment of the toll revenue must comply with the conditions set forth under
the STOA.
The STOA may be terminated as a result of occurence of events of default as enumerated in
Section 11 thereof. In addition to default on the part of MATES, SLTC or the Grantor, the
STOA may be terminated in whole or in part by reason of requisition, a final decision by a
court of competent jurisdiction and force majeure. Depending on the ground for termination,
SLTC may be entitled to just compensation for or the fair market value of the SLEX, as the
case may be.
The STOA includes provisions for Material Adverse Grantor Action (“MAGA”), which refers to
any action, inaction, representation, issuance or operation of the Grantor which has a
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material adverse effect on (i) any of the rights, privileges, enjoyment, exercise thereof by
SLTC and MATES; (ii) the ability of SLTC to comply with the financial and contractual
obligations of the Company relative to the toll road. Among events (included but not limited)
considered as MAGA are:


Non-delivery, late delivery or incomplete delivery of the road right-of-way, where the
parties have failed to agree on a solution to address the same pursuant to a
prescribed procedure;



Failure or refusal by the Grantor to adjust the toll rate as a result of the imposition of
new or amended regulations that are treated as a variation under the STOA;



Any unjustifiable refusal by the Grantor to allow MATES to operate the toll road or
segment for which a CSC or Toll Operation Permit (“TOP”) has been issued;



The failure or refusal of the Grantor to compensate SLTC for the non-implementation
by the Grantor of the periodic toll rate adjustment;



Any change in any applicable law, regulation or policy which makes it unlawful or
impossible for SLTC and MATES to comply with its obligation under the STOA;



Any unjustified failure to cause the issuance, re-issuance or replacement of permits,
licenses, certificates or registrations within a period of 3 months from the date of the
Notice to Proceed;



Any failure by the Grantor to make an agreed variation payment; and



Any failure by the Grantor to meet an obligation arising from a force majeure event.

Toll Collection System
SLEX is using two (2) types of toll collection system – the open and closed system.
An open system type of toll collection system is a method of collecting tolls on highways or
expressways at regularly spaced intervals on the mainline of the road. Motorists are charged
a fixed or flat toll rate upon entry into the system, regardless of the distance travelled or
destination exit. Meanwhile, a closed system type of toll collection allows motorists to pay a
variable toll rate based on the distance travelled from their origin to their destination exit.
TR1 and TR2 are under the closed toll collection system while TR3 is under an open toll
collection system. Toll payment by motorists is either done thru cash or E-Pass/ RFID
systems.
The tables below set out the current type of toll collection system per toll road and the SLTC
revenue mix.

Source: SLTC Company Records
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SLTC Revenue Mix
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
Cash
78.9% 78.4% 77.7% 76.4%
E-Pass 21.1% 21.6% 22.3% 23.6%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Source: SLTC Company Records

E-pass transactions account for approximately 22.0% of total revenue. In terms of collection
efficiency, E-pass payments would take about 6.7 seconds per vehicle while cash
transactions would take about 21.0 seconds per vehicle.
SLTC is migrating to a more affordable RFID sticker for motorists. As a result, the Company
expects a reduction in cash and E-pass transactions. To date, the RFID system is on its
testing stage.
The toll rates vary depending on the type of vehicle being utilized by the motorist, which are
classified as follows:
Class of Vehicle
Class 1
Class 2
Class 3

Description
Light vehicles, including cars, motorcycles (400cc above), and SUVs, and
Jeepneys without trailers
Buses and light trucks
Heavy trucks

The table below sets out the Authorized Toll Rates (“ATR”) from 2011 to 2015:

Toll Revenues/Traffic Performance
The table below shows the historical traffic volume of SLEX per vehicle class.
SLTC Historical Traffic Volume
In AADT

2011

%

Class 1
Class 2
Class 3
Total

170,245 81%
29,213 14%
10,848 5%
210,306 100%

2012

%

175,785 81%
29,598 14%
11,918 5%
217,301 100%

Source: SLTC Company Records
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2013

%

188,093 81%
30,383 13%
12,759 6%
231,235 100%

2014

%

202,693 82%
30,303 12%
14,128 6%
247,124 100%

Majority of vehicles that utilize SLEX come from the Class 1 category which account for
about 81%-82% of total traffic volume from 2011 to 2014 indicating high consumer socioeconomic activity within SLEX. Traffic volume growth for Class 3 vehicles can also be
observed as evidenced by an 8.9% CAGR during the same period with the strong economic
activity in Batangas. Overall, the growth of the Annual Average Daily Traffic (“AADT”) in
SLEX registered a CAGR of 6.6% for period 2011 to 2014.
Toll Adjustment Mechanism
SLTC is entitled to apply for a toll rate adjustment every two (2) years from 2011 based on
the toll rate adjustment formula as provided for in the STOA. The adjustment on the toll rate
primarily takes into consideration changes in Consumer Price Index.

On or before September 30 of the relevant year, SLTC, in coordination with MATES shall
submit to TRB, a written petition for the adjustment of the authorized toll rates applying the
periodic toll rate adjustment formula. Approved periodic toll rate adjustment shall be
published once a week for three (3) consecutive weeks in a general circulation newspaper,
the first publication being not later than November 30 of the relevant year. Resulting current
ATR shall be enforceable and collectible by SLTC effective January 1 of the immediately
succeeding year.
Other Sources of Income
SLTC and MATES also generate income through locator and royalty fees from providing
access to gasoline stations and retail outlets along the highway. Additional fees are also
generated from the lease of ad space located through the highway and on the toll booths.
The income from the said sources forms part of the other income of the Company.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE / PROJECT CONSORTIUM
SLTC is 80.0% owned by MTDME and 20.0% owned by the ROP. MTDME is 100.0% owned
by MTD Bahrain Holding Company W.L.L. (“MTD Bahrain”), which in turn, is 100.0% owned
by AAIBV. AAIBV is 95.0% owned by SMHC and the remaining 5.0% is owned by Padma.
A diagram of the corporate structure of SLTC as follows:

On March 5, 2015, Padma conveyed and transferred to SMHC its shares in AAIBV
equivalent to 48.47% of the outstanding AAIBV shares. Said conveyance resulted to SMHC
owning 95.0% of the outstanding shares of AAIBV. This effectively increased the ownership
of SMHC in the various subsidiaries of AAIBV including SLTC and MATES.
As of the date of this Prospectus, SLTC does not have any subsidiaries.
MTD Manila Expressway Inc.
MTDME was incorporated in the Philippines on January 9, 1998, primarily to engage in
general construction, project management and administration. MTDME is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MTD Bahrain, a company organized and existing under the laws of Bahrain.
MTD Bahrain is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AAIBV, a company organized and existing
under the laws of the Netherlands.
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Philippine National Construction Corporation / Republic of the Philippines ROP
PNCC is a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the ROP,
known previously as the Construction and Development Corporation of the Philippines
(“CDCP”), was granted the franchise to construct, operate and maintain the North Luzon
Expressway, South Luzon Expressway and Metro Manila Expressway by virtue of P.D. No.
1113 issued on March 31, 1977, as amended by P.D. No. 1894 issued on December 22,
1983.
PNCC was not involved in the construction and financing activities of SLEX Project, but
invested as an equity partner in SLTC and MATES and operation and maintenance
companies.
On April 25, 2012, SLTC received a written notice from the Department of Finance of the
conveyance of the interest of PNCC in SLTC to the ROP by way of a Deed of Assignment.
San Miguel Holdings Corp.
SMHC is a wholly owned subsidiary of SMC, one of the largest and most diversified
conglomerates in the Philippines. SMHC has investments in various infrastructure
companies which hold toll road concessions such as:


45.0% stake in Private Infra Dev Corp which holds a 35-year concession to build and
operate an 88.85km four lane expressway that will connect Tarlac and Pangasinan to
Rosario, La Union;



99.7% stake in TransAire Development Holdings Corp., the company which holds a 25year contract-add-operate-transfer concession for the rehabilitation and operation of the
existing terminal and other facilities, construction and operation of a new terminal at the
Caticlan airport;



51.0% stake in Universal LRT Corp. (BVI) Limited which holds a 25-year build-gradual
transfer-operate-maintain-and manage concession on the Metro Rail Transit Line 7
project, extending the metro rail system servicing Metro Manila up to San Jose Del
Monte, Bulacan;



99.9% stake in Vertex Tollways Dev’t, Inc. which holds a 30-year build-operate-transferconcession of the NAIA Expressway (approximately 7.75 kms) that will link the Skyway
system to the following: Roxas Boulevard, Diosdado Macapagal Blvd., Pagcor City and
the 3 Ninoy Aquino International Airport terminals; and



53.3% stake in Star Infrastructure Development Corporation which holds a 30-year buildtransfer-operate concession on the STAR (41.9 kms.) from Sto. Tomas to Batangas City.

Padma Funds LP
Padma is a limited partnership which has various investments in leading infrastructure
companies in Indonesia and operates a number of toll roads in Indonesia. Padma is directly
owned by Padma Investments Pte. Ltd. and managed by a general partner, Parallax Capital
Management.
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Jointly, Padma and SMHC (through AAIBV) also have interests in various toll road
companies such as (i) 87.8% interest in Citra Metro Manila Tollways Corporation
(“CMMTC”), the company which holds a 30-year concession over the Skyway system, which
spans from Buendia, Makati to Alabang, Muntinlupa and (ii) 80.0% interest in Citra Central
Expressway Corp.(“CCEC”), the company which holds a 30-year concession over Skyway
Stage 3, which extends from Buendia, Makati to Balintawak, Quezon City.
STRENGTHS OF THE COMPANY
Well-Positioned Gateway to Southern Luzon
The Southern Luzon toll road network is a combination of three tolled expressways that link
Metro Manila with the CALABARZON economic region. It comprises three main toll roads
namely, the Skyway system, SLEX and STAR.
SLEX effectively serves as the main thoroughfare directly connecting Metro Manila to the
CALABARZON region. As a result, SLTC has a virtual monopoly of vehicle movement in the
southern part of the metro with no practical and viable alternative route available.
Aside from SLEX, the only alternative road being used by the motoring public is the Manila
South Road, where heavy traffic volume is usually observed due to slow moving public
transports like jeepneys, buses and tricycles which results to longer and unpredictable travel
time for motorists.
SLTC has encouraged the use of SLEX due to lower vehicle operating cost, faster travel
time and convenience. According to the TRB website (www.trb.gov.ph), the benefits of
utilizing SLEX include value of time saved of almost 50% and vehicle-operating cost saved
of P1.38 per km.
CALABARZON as a Strategic Growth Area
The CALABARZON area accounts for a significant portion of the economic base of the
country. Based on National Statistics Coordination Board data, CALABARZON is the second
biggest contributor (after National Capital Region) to the total GDP of the country with a
share of 17.4% as seen in the table below.
Gross Regional Domestic Product, 2011- 2013
Percent Distribution, in Percent (at constant 2000 prices)

Source: National Statistics Coordination Board
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SLTC believes that SLEX is instrumental to the rapid economic development of the
CALABARZON region. SLEX facilitates regional transportation and residential or industrial
development in the Southern Luzon areas, by connecting the Skyway system and STAR that
link Metro Manila to CALABARZON region. This paved the way to the decentralization of
economic activity away from Metro Manila thereby generating a considerable amount of new
jobs in the process.
CALABARZON posted a rapid growth rate of about 1.7% from 2010-2011 to 6.7% in 20122013. As presented in the table below, CALABARZON went from being the second lowest in
terms of Gross Regional Domestic Product growth, to becoming the fourth highest in the
country.
Gross Regional Domestic Product, 2011 - 2013
Growth Rates, in Percent (at constant 2000 prices)

REGION/YEAR
PHILIPPINES

2010-11
3.6

2011-12
6.8

2012-13
7.2

NCR
CAR
I
II
III

METRO MANILA
CORDILLERA
ILOCOS
CAGAYAN VALLEY
CENTRAL LUZON

3.1
1.3
2.4
5.6
7.1

7
1
5.2
8.1
6.5

9.1
6
7.7
6.6
4.3

IVA

CALABARZON

1.7

7.3

6.7

IVB
V

MIMAROPA
BICOL

3.1
1.9

4.8
6.9

1.7
9.4

Source: National Statistical Coordination Board

Economic growth is evident not only in the CALABARZON area, but also in other parts of
Luzon. Other toll roads also experienced traffic growth from 2012 to 2014 as seen below.
SLTC Traffic Growth vs. Other Toll Roads
2014 Traffic in AADT

*Compounded Annual Growth Rate
Source: SMHC, SLTC Company Records
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Throughout the concession period of the Company, SLEX has always maintained its traffic
volume and has not suffered any significant reduction in traffic volume.

In AADT
2012
2013
2014
CAGR

Class 1
175,785
188,093
202,693
6.50%

Class 2
29,598
30,383
30,303
0.50%

Class 3
11,918
12,759
14,128
8.90%

Source: SLTC Company Records

Sustainable Stream of Cash Flows
Historical traffic numbers have consistently supported strong revenue growth while costs and
expenses are kept well managed, providing the Company with a high and predictable cash
flow.
The growth trajectory is even more promising especially with the flourishing real estate and
commercial developments along the alignment of SLEX. Road capacity and efficiency are
also being expanded and upgraded to help support the anticipated increase in traffic volume.
It is expected that these developments will provide revenue growth and stable margins
enabling SLTC to have a healthier financial position, thus meeting all of the financial
obligations of the Company.
Strong Parent Company Support
SLTC is supported by parent companies that are front runners in the infrastructure industry.
SMHC is a wholly owned subsidiary of SMC, one of the largest and most diversified
conglomerates in the Philippines by revenue and total assets. The business interests of
SMC are highly diversified, beginning from market-leading beverage, food, and packaging
business with a globally recognized beer brand to market leading businesses and
investments in fuel and oil, power generation, infrastructure, telecommunication and
banking.
SMHC has ownership in various toll road companies which hold concession rights in
infrastructure projects such as the Tarlac-Pangasinan-La Union Expressway, NAIA
Expressway and STAR.
Padma has various investments in leading infrastructure companies and has expertise in
operating a number of toll roads in Indonesia.
Jointly, Padma and SMHC thru AAIBV, also have interest in various toll road companies
such as Skyway system, which spans from Buendia, Makati to Alabang, Muntinlupa and
Skyway Stage 3, which extends from Buendia, Makati to Balintawak, Quezon City.
Experienced Management Team
SLTC is composed of highly experienced management team with an extensive knowledge of
the Philippine Infrastructure Industry. Since the start of the operation of the company in
2010, SLTC management has gained further expertise in the regulatory, business
development and financial aspect of the infrastructure business. Moreover, the management
team of SLTC has strong professional relationships with key industry participants, such as
PNCC and TRB.
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Likewise, the management team of MATES, the operator of SLEX, is composed of experts in
the business of operating and maintaining toll roads and toll road facilities including toll
collection systems operation and management.
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BUSINESS STRATEGIES OF THE COMPANY
Continually Adopt Efficiency Programs and Systems
The Company is migrating to the RFID system which will decrease the average transaction
time at the toll booths. In addition, SLTC plans to initiate the Seamless Integration System
(“SIS”) wherein SLEX will be directly linked to STAR. All these enhancements in the toll
collection system will translate to a more efficient flow of traffic, increased vehicle throughput
and more predictable travel time for the motorists.
Expand Further the Toll Road Portfolio of SLTC
SLTC aims to extend the reach of SLEX by accomplishing full construction of TR4, a new
57.6 km 4-lane toll road from TR3 in Sto. Tomas, Batangas to Lucena City in Quezon
thereby extending SLEX to around 93.5 km. SLTC may also consider the possibility of an
extension of the concession period for SLEX.
Sustain Strong Financial Position that will Maximize Shareholder Value
SLTC continues to engage in a comprehensive discussion and maintain a good working
relationship with the regulators such as the TRB, other toll road operators and stakeholders
in order to obtain the proper resolution of pending toll rate adjustments which is essential to
augmenting the existing strong and stable cashflows.
COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS
The Company is in compliance with environmental laws, except where such non-compliance
will not have a material adverse effect on the business of SLTC. On an annual basis,
operating expenses incurred by SLTC to comply with environmental laws are nominal
relative to the total costs and revenues of the Company.
EMPLOYEES
As of December 31, 2014, SLTC has 22 employees. All employees are based in Philippines.
Divisions/
Business Units
Executive Office
HR & Admin
Technical
Finance
Safety, Health and Environment
TOTAL

Number of Employees
Executives

Managers

2

2

1
1
1
3

Supervisors

Rank & File

TOTAL

2
2
3

1
6
1
2

7

10

5
8
2
6
1
22

Employees of SLTC are not members of any labor union since 2005. The Company has not
experienced any work stoppages. The Company considered its relationship with its
employees to be good. In addition to the statutory benefits, SLTC initiates benefits to provide
for the increased security of its employees in the following areas: healthcare, leaves,
miscellaneous benefits, loans and financial assistance applicable to a variety of uses,
retirement benefits and survivor security and death benefits.
With the ensuing 12 months, SLTC may require additional hiring of employees to support its
business expansion, the number of which cannot be determined.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Operation and Management
The construction, operation and maintenance of the SLEX was executed between PNCC
and MTDME on October 11, 1999, as amended by an AJVA executed on May 2000, both of
which were duly approved by the Government Corporate Monitoring and Coordinating
Committee (“GCMMC”), the joint venture agreement and the AJVA and the President of the
Philippines. The GCMCC is chaired by the Executive Secretary and its members are the
Secretary of Finance, the Head of the Presidential Management Staff, the Secretary of
Trade and Industry, the Director General of the National Economic Development Authority,
the Governor of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, the Secretary of Budget and Management,
the Chief Presidential Legal Adviser, the Chief Government Corporate Counsel.
PNCC, MTDME and Alloy Manila Toll Expressway, Inc. (“AMTEX”), the latter being a toll
operations specialist, have further established MATES, the operations and maintenance
company of the SLEX. As provided for under the AJVA, MTDME, AMTEX and PNCC holds
30%, 30% and 40% equity in MATES, respectively. PNCC has further granted to MATES
the usufruct over the franchise with respect to the operation and maintenance of the SLEX,
which has likewise been duly approved by the President of the Philippines, in compliance
with the express requirements of the franchise.
Manila Tollway Expressway Systems, Inc.
MATES is the toll road operator for SLEX. MATES was incorporated in the Philippines on
January 13, 2006 and was organized to engage in the business of operating and maintaining
toll roads and toll road facilities, interchanges, and related facilities, including the operation
and management of toll collection systems, traffic control systems, and such other systems
located or found within the toll roads.
In December 2011, SMC, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, SMHC and AAIBV, the joint
venture corporation of SMHC and Padma, concluded the agreements for purchase and
acquisition of an indirect equity interest equivalent to 60% in MATES.
MATES is subject to the guidelines and standards prescribed in the Operations &
Maintenance Manual, the Basic Design and such additional regulations or standards
imposed by the TRB. Pursuant to the OMA, MATES conducts the 24-hour operation of SLEX
and is responsible for the physical collection of toll revenues, toll monitoring and revenue
validation, establishment and implementation of rules and regulations on the highway,
information service and customer service programs for motorists, and traffic management. It
is accountable for the routine and periodic maintenance of the roadway, utilities, and
facilities of SLEX. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance of the
following systems and facilities provided by SLTC:
(a) Toll collection systems;
(b) Traffic control systems;
(c) Toll road patrol and vehicle control with communication systems;
(d) Facilities for assistance of disabled vehicles in case of emergencies;
(e) Information and message sign boards;
(f) Vehicle regulation facilities (e.g., Load, height, detectors, etc.);
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(g) Emergency facilities;
(h) Emergency operations facilities;
(i) Selection, supply, installation and upgrading and maintenance of all toll collection
facilities; and
(j) Maintenance of the toll collection system, including all equipment, hardware, and
software.
Based on the OMA, between SLTC and MATES, the Company and the Operator mutually
agreed to a fixed annual O&M fee. The O&M fee takes into account the cost to operate and
maintain SLEX and the depreciation and financing charges, if any. In 2014, SLTC and
MATES agreed to an O&M fee of P600 million exclusive of Value-Added-Tax, subject to
annual review by both parties.
Fees Paid to PNCC
Under the AJVA, SLTC is obligated to pay PNCC 1.75% of gross toll revenues which is
scheduled to increase to 3% by May 2015. This shall be maintained until the end of the
concession period.
EXPANSION PLANS
Project Toll Road 4 (“TR4”)
The STOA includes the extension of the operating toll roads from Sto. Tomas, Batangas to
Lucena City in Quezon with a length of 57.6 km (4-lane toll road)
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On-going and Future Projects
SLTC endeavors to continuously pursue improvement projects such as road widening,
additional toll booth plazas, rehabilitation and other road repair works, flood mitigation
activities and other safety features that will ensure the efficiency of operation in the toll road,
taking into account the safety of the motorists. Details of the improvement projects are as
follows:
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DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES
All properties of SLTC, i.e., buildings, toll plazas, toll collection system form part of the
service concession rights under the STOA. At the end of the concession period, these
properties will be turned over to the ROP.
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CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
As of date of this Prospectus, the Company is not a party to any material pending legal
proceeding (including any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings) affecting the
Company or any of its material assets. While not deemed material legal proceedings based
on the amount of the claims involved, the following legal proceedings involving the Company
were the subject of news reports, and therefore generated public interest but Management is
nevertheless of the opinion that should there be any adverse judgment based on these
claims, this will not materially affect the financial position and results of operations of the
Company:
1.

2012 Petition for Periodic Toll Rate Adjustment

In 2012, SLTC and MATES filed (a) a Petition for Periodic Toll Rate Adjustment dated July
20, 2012, which was received by the TRB on July 26, 2012, (b) an Amended Petition dated
October 24, 2012, which was received by TRB on the same date, and (c) a Second
Amended Petition dated November 28, 2012, which was received by the TRB on the same
date (collectively, the “2012 Petition”) pursuant to the right of the Petitioners to a Periodic
Toll Rate Adjustment under 8.07(1) of the STOA. The Petitioners prayed for an adjustment
of the ATR for the SLEX effective January 1, 2013. To date, no action has yet been made on
the 2012 Petition.
2.

2014 Petition for Periodic Toll Rate Adjustment

Pursuant to the STOA which provides that the Company is entitled to a periodic adjustment
of its ATR every two years beginning 2011, SLTC and MATES filed a Petition for Periodic
Toll Rate Adjustment dated September 30, 2014 (the “2014 Petition”), which was received
by the TRB on the same date. SLTC and MATES reiterated that the conditions under
Section 8.07(1) of the STOA have been satisfied; (a) that neither the Investor nor the
Operator is in default under the STOA; and (b) more than 365 days have lapsed since the
date of effectivity of the Toll Operation Permit and the Toll Operation Certificate for Phase 1
of the Project. Considering that the ATR for the South Luzon Expressway had not been
adjusted on the basis of the 2012 Petition, the Petitioners prayed for an adjustment of the
ATR for the SLEX effective January 1, 2015.
The periodic toll rate adjustment was computed by considering the following factors and
circumstances: (a) the application of the Periodic Toll Rate Adjustment formula contained in
Section 8.07(1) of the STOA using the latest available Consumer Price Index as of August
2014; (b) the adjustment in the ATR based on the income tax holiday incentive granted by
the Board of Investments; and (c) the recovery of the uncollected portion of the appropriate
gross toll revenue that the SLTC and MATES should have been able to collect for the period
of January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2014 on the basis of the 2012 Petition.
In the event that the 2014 Petition is not approved in time for the adjusted toll rates to be
implemented by January 1, 2015, the Petitioners likewise prayed for the provisional grant of
the periodic toll rate adjustment effective January 1, 2015, in accordance with the Letter of
Instructions No. 1334-A and Rule 5, Section 2, and Section 5 of the 1995 Rules of Practice
and Procedure of the TRB. To date, the 2014 Petition has not yet been acted upon.
To date, SLTC has not yet submitted a revised petition for periodic toll rate adjustment to the
TRB.
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3.

Rodolfo M. Cuenca vs. The Toll Regulatory Board, The Commission on Audit,
Philippine National Construction Corporation, Manila North Tollways
Corporation, Citra Metro Manila Tollways Corporation, South Luzon Tollway
Corporation, and Manila Toll Expressway Systems, Inc.

(Civil Case No. 13-919, Regional Trial Court, Makati City, Branch 132)
This is a Petition for Injunction filed by Petitioner Rodolfo M. Cuenca (“Petitioner”) against
the TRB, Commission on Audit (“COA”), PNCC, MNTC, CMMTC, MATES and the Company
(collectively the “Defendant Tollway Corporations”).
Petitioner, a shareholder of PNCC, alleged that the TRB failed to prepare and finalize the
implementing rules and guidelines relative to the determination of the net income of PNCC
from the operations of the Defendant Tollway Corporations, which should be remitted to the
National Government (“NG”). According to Petitioner Cuenca, the TRB has only issued the
TRB Interim Rules and Guidelines, which provide a temporary and arbitrary formula.
Petitioner Cuenca also alleged that MNTC, CMMTC, MATES and the Company, as the
assignees of the PNCC, with the consequent obligation to remit its share with the NG, have
been doing so without the final formula to be computed under the final implementing rules
and guidelines that has yet to be issued by the TRB and the COA. Thus, the Defendant
Tollways Corporations may have remitted, and may remit, much more that what should
actually be remitted to the NG as the share of PNCC in their income.
On the basis of the foregoing, Petitioner Cuenca prayed for the (1) TRB and COA to come
up with and release the final implementing rules and guidelines embodying the final formula
relative to the determination of the net income remittable by PNCC to the NG; (2) PNCC and
Defendant Tollways Corporations be enjoined from remitting any and all amounts directly to
the NG until TRB and COA shall have issued the final implementing rules and guidelines
relative to the determination of the net income remittable by the PNCC to the NG; and (3) In
the alternative, for PNCC and Defendant Tollways Corporations be ordered to consign with
the trial court any and all amounts that they are ready to remit to the NG until the TRB and
COA have issued the final implementing rules and guidelines relative to the determination of
the net income remittable by PNCC to the NG.
On September 28, 2013, petitioner filed a Motion for Issuance of Writ of Preliminary
Injunction, which after the court conducted hearings, issued a Resolution dated April 30,
2014 granting Petitioner Cuenca’s application for injunctive relief, enjoining the
implementation of the TRB Interim Rules and Guidelines and directing MNTC and SLTC, et
al. to remit to the PNCC the entire amounts under their respective Supplemental Toll
Operations Agreements. Nonetheless, the TRB and the COA filed a Petition for Certiorari
(With Urgent Prayer for the Issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of
Preliminary Injunction) with the Supreme Court to assail the propriety of the Resolution
granting the preliminary injunction. In due course, the Supreme Court issued a restraining
order, which enjoined the implementation of the injunctive writ issued by the trial court.
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MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDENDS ON COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Market Information
The Company has an authorized capital stock of P4,000,000,000.00 comprised of
4,000,000,000 common shares with par value of P1.00 per common share. As of the date of
this Prospectus, the Company has issued and outstanding 3,625,000,000 common shares.
The common shares of the Company are neither traded in any market, nor subject to
outstanding warrants to purchase, or securities convertible into common shares of the
Company.
Stockholders
As of December 31, 2014, the Company has 11 stockholders, 9 of whom are individuals with
at least one share each. The following sets out the shareholdings of the aforementioned 11
stockholders and the approximate percentages of their respective shareholdings to the total
outstanding common stocks of SLTC:
Name of Stockholder

Class of
Securities

Number of
Shares

% of O/S
Shares

MTD Manila Expressways Inc.

Common

2,899,999,993

80.00%

Republic of the Philippines

Common

724,999,998

20.00%

Ramon S. Ang

Common

1

0.00%

Ery Shadik Wahono

Common

1

0.00%

Mario K. Surio

Common

1

0.00%

Jose P. de Jesus

Common

1

0.00%

Cynthia M. Laureta

Common

1

0.00%

Fema C. Q. Piramide-Sayson

Common

1

0.00%

Nadiya W. Stamboel

Common

1

0.00%

Rosalia V. De Leon

Common

1

0.00%

Toni Angeli V. Coo

Common

1

0.00%
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On March 5, 2015, the Company nominated two (2) Independent Directors. The term of the
Independent Directors took effect on March 16, 2015 when the SEC approved the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company.
Name of Stockholder

Class of
Securities

Number of
Shares

% of O/S
Shares

MTD Manila Expressways Inc.

Common

2,899,999,991

80.00%

Republic of the Philippines

Common

724,999,998

20.00%

Ramon S. Ang

Common

1

0.00%

Ery Shadik Wahono

Common

1

0.00%

Mario K. Surio

Common

1

0.00%

Jose P. de Jesus

Common

1

0.00%

Lorenzo G. Formoso III

Common

1

0.00%

Fema C. Q. Piramide-Sayson

Common

1

0.00%

Nadiya W. Stamboel

Common

1

0.00%

Roberto B. Tan

Common

1

0.00%

Toni Angeli V. Coo

Common

1

0.00%

Consuelo Ynares-Santiago

Common

1

0.00%

Francisco H. Villaruz

Common

1

0.00%

80

Dividend Policy
Dividends shall be declared out of the available unappropriated retained earnings of the
Company, subject to the fulfillment of the following requirements:



Compliance with existing loan covenants including ratios; and
Provision for major capital expenditures as may be provided under existing loan
covenants.

Historically, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved the declaration and
payment of the following dividends to the shareholders in the past three (3) years, as follows:
2014
Date of Declaration
April 3, 2014
August 20, 2014

Amount (P)
435,000,000
670,625,000

Type of Dividend
Cash
Cash

Payment Date
June 25, 2014
September 11, 2014
December 19, 2014

Date of Declaration
May 24, 2013

Amount (P)
870,000,000

Type of Dividend
Cash

November 28, 2013

797,500,000

Cash

Payment Date
June 27, 2013
September 11, 2013
December 20, 2013
March 12, 2014

Amount (P)
750,000,000
779,375,000

Type of Dividend
Cash
Cash

2013

2012
Date of Declaration
August 16, 2012
December 13, 2012

Payment Date
September 1, 2012
December 21, 2012
March 13, 2013

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction
Other than the promissory notes issued in connection with the corporate notes facility of
SLTC, the Company has not sold unregistered or exempt securities nor has it issued
securities constituting an exempt transaction within the past three (3) years as set out in
“Description of Debt” on page 103.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations
should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the related notes as at and
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 included elsewhere in this
Prospectus. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our current
views with respect to future events and our future financial performance. These statements
involve risks and uncertainties, and our actual results may differ materially from those
anticipated in these forward-looking statements.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The preparation of the financial statements of SLTC in compliance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes. In preparing the financial
statements, management has made its best judgments and estimates relating to certain
amounts, giving due consideration to materiality. The estimates and assumptions used in
the financial statements are based upon evaluation of management of relevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Such estimates will be adjusted accordingly when the results become
determinable. Accounting estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
In the process of applying the accounting policies of the Company, management has made
judgments, apart from those involving estimates and assumptions, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements and these are set
forth and discussed in Note 4 to the Audited Financial Statements of SLTC.
DESCRIPTION OF REVENUE, COST AND EXPENSES, AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Revenues
SLTC generates revenue from the use of the toll road and the toll is paid by way of cash or
charges against an E-Pass account. The motorist is charged a fixed rate on a per kilometer
basis and the total amount depends on the distance travelled in between entry and exit
points on the highway. Toll revenues amounted to P3,959 million, P4,195 million, and
P4,401 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.
Costs and Expenses
The costs and expenses of SLTC consist of:


Operations and maintenance fee for the operation and maintenance of the toll roads
and toll road facilities, interchanges, and related facilities, including the operation and
management of toll collection systems, traffic control systems, and such other
systems located or found within the toll roads.



PNCC share which represents the revenue share of PNCC out of the gross toll
revenues of SLTC under the AJVA, as amended by the Preliminary Agreement to A
Shareholders’ Agreement. The current rate is at 1.75% and will increase to 3% from
May 2015 until the end of the concession.
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Repairs and maintenance pertains to the obligation of SLTC under the STOA to
maintain the toll roads within the specified standard of service at all times. Provision
for repairs and maintenance requires an estimation of the periodic cost, generally
estimated to be every five to six years or the expected maintenance dates, to restore
the assets to a level of serviceability during the concession term and in good
condition before turnover to the ROP.



Concession rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over the years stated in the
STOA or approximately 26 years from start of commercial operations and are
charged to the operations. Concession right represents the construction costs,
including borrowing costs during the construction period, of the SLEX Project.



Insurance costs represent annual premiums paid on the insurance coverage for the
toll roads and toll road facilities, interchanges and related structures, including the
Toll Operation Buildings and machinery and equipment.



Salaries and other employee benefits for management and administrative personnel.



Depreciation of property and equipment attributable to administrative expenses.



Repairs and maintenance pertaining to vehicle and equipment repairs.



Taxes and licenses paid to local government units for business taxes and real
property taxes on toll operation buildings and other structures.



Other administrative expenses include land lease for the head office, other
contingencies for claims under ordinary course of business, communication and
transportation expenses, professional fees, entertainment and office supplies.

Cost and expenses amounted to P1,578 million, P1,641 million and P1,575 million in 2012,
2013 and 2014 respectively.
Other Income and Charges


Interest expense and other financing charges include interest and related finance
charges due on corporate notes issued by SLTC.



Interest income is interest received from time deposit placements, short term
investments and cash in banks.



Foreign exchange gain or losses were derived from (i) year-end translation of the US
dollar bank accounts of SLTC and (ii) the short term loan payable denominated in US
Dollar which was settled in 2012.



Other income pertains mainly to regular fees obtained from the service facilities along
the SLEX, such as gasoline stations, as well as locators in the service facilities.

Other charges (net of other income) amounted to P669 million, P446 million and P416
million in 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively.
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Income Tax
The income tax provision of SLTC consists of:



Current income tax
Deferred income tax

On March 3, 2010, SLTC was registered with the BOI for the rehabilitation, construction and
expansion of the SLEX Project under RA No. 6957 “Build-operate-transfer” law as amended
by RA No. 7718 on a pioneer status under the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987,
otherwise known as Executive Order No. 226.
The Income Tax Holiday incentive was granted on November 13, 2012 which entitled SLTC
to the incentive for six (6) years with reckoning date of January 1, 2011. Current income tax
payment is attributed to tax due on fees derived from the service facilities and locators along
the SLEX.
Income tax expense amounting to P4.5 million was recognized for 2013 and 2014 while P58
million was recognized in 2012. An income tax adjustment of P536 million was recognized in
2012 due to the approval of the Income Tax Holiday Incentive. Provision for Deferred income
tax of P16 million and P11 million were recognized in 2012 and 2013 respectively, while
benefit from deferred income tax of P32.6 million was recognized in 2014.
Intangible Assets – Concession Rights
Concession rights represent construction costs, including borrowing costs during the
construction period, of the SLEX Project and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any impairment loss. The SLEX Project comprises of toll roads, toll
plazas and interchanges and related structures as well as the toll collection and the
traffic control and surveillance systems.
Project costs consist of the following:
Segment
Project Toll Road 1 – Alabang Viaduct
Project Toll Road 2 – Filinvest exit to Calamba, Laguna
Project Toll Road 3 – Calamba, Laguna to Sto. Tomas, Batangas
Toll Collection and Traffic Control & Surveillance Systems
Design and Supervision
Other costs including financing costs
Total Project Costs

Amount in
‘000
P 1,542,559
5,620,407
2,340,368
1,321,524
1,235,229
1,923,682
P13,983,769

The concession right is amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
concession period which is approximately 26 years from start of commercial
operations. As of 2014, the remaining useful life of the concession right is 21 years.
Accumulated amortization amounted to P2.4 billion and no asset impairment is
recognized. The carrying values as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted
to P11.58 billion, P12.13 billion and P12.68 billion respectively.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013
Revenues
The toll revenues of SLTC increased by 5% from P4,195 million to P4,401 million due to
increase in traffic volume.
Costs and Expense
The costs and expense decreased by 4% from P1,641 million to P1,575 million, mainly due
to the reduction in operation and maintenance fees. The objective of the reduction is to reallocate the respective rights and obligations of the O&M company and SLTC to be able to
respond to the needs of the motorists in a more efficient manner.
Taxes and licenses also reduced on account of the exemption granted by local government
units to BOI registered companies. Lower costs were offset by an increase in provision for
repair and maintenance which pertain to the periodic repair obligation of SLTC, aimed at
maintaining the road in good condition and restoring the level of serviceability during the
concession term within the standards set by the STOA.
The 5% increase in toll revenue and 4% reduction in costs and expenses resulted to a 12%
increase in EBITDA, from P3,233 million to P3,632 million.
Interest Expense and Other Financing Charges
The reduction in interest expense and other financing charges is primarily due to lower
outstanding loan balance. SLTC paid total principal amortization of P1,375 million in 2014.
Interest Income
Interest income increased by 24% due to higher interest rates from time deposit placements
and short term investments.
Foreign Exchange Gain
Foreign exchange gain in USD bank accounts reduced by 86% due to movement of foreign
exchange rates for the applicable years.
Other income
The increase in other income was mainly due to a one-time payment received as access
fees for the Daang Hari road project. This was slightly offset by lower income earned from
royalty and locator fees.
As a result of the foregoing, income before income tax increased by 14% from P2,109 million
to P2,410 million.
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Income Tax
In 2013, an income tax expense of P4 million was recognized for the income from service
facilities while a provision for deferred tax of P11 million was recognized for the unrealized
foreign exchange gain. In 2014, an income tax expense of P4.5 million was taken up while a
benefit from deferred income tax of P32.6 million was recognized on the tax effect of the
provision for periodic repairs and maintenance.
As a result of the foregoing, Net Income increased by 16% from P2,094 million to P2,438
million.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012
Revenues
The toll revenues of SLTC increased by 6% from P3,959 million to P4,195 million, due to
increase in traffic volume.
Costs and Expenses
Costs and expenses increased by 4% from P1,578 million to P1,641 million, mainly due to
accrued real property taxes on improvements such as toll plazas and other structures. These
were offset by the decrease in provisions for repairs and maintenance.
The increase in toll revenue and costs and expenses resulted to a 6% net increase in
EBITDA, from P2,927 million to P3,233 million.
Interest Expense and Other Financing Charges
In 2012, interest expense and other financing charges pertain to charges on the USD250.0
million short term loan and the P11.0 billion corporate notes issued by SLTC while in 2013,
interest and other financing charges pertain only to the P11.0 billion corporate notes.
Interest Income
Interest income decreased by 17% due to lower placement rates.
Foreign Exchange Gain
In 2012, foreign exchange gain pertains mainly to the gain recognized on the settlement of
the $250.0 million short term loan. In 2013, foreign exchange gain is attributable only to the
USD bank accounts.
Other income
The increase in other income was mainly due to income earned from royalty and locator
fees.
As a result of the foregoing, income before income tax increased by 23% from P1,711
million to P2,109 million.
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Income Tax
Income tax expense in 2013 pertains to tax on income from royalty and locator fees. In 2012,
an adjustment of P536 million was recognized due to the approval of the Income Tax
Holiday incentive.
Net Income
As a result of the foregoing, Net Income decreased by 4% from P2,174 million to P2,094
million.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows
Amount in P Millions

2014
Cash flows provided by operating activities……………..

2,981

2013
3,120

2012
1,231

Cash flows used in investing activities…………………….

(331)

(17)

(170)

Cash flows used in financing activities……………………

(2,989)

(2,632)

(1,206)

3
(335)
2,889
2,554

35
506
2,383
2,889

(19)
(165)
2,548
2,383

Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents…………………………………………
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year……….
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year……………….

Net Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities
January to December 2014
Net cash flows provided by operating activities was P2,981 million. This was mainly the
result of income before tax of P2,410 million, adjusted for non-cash items and changes in
working capital, including depreciation and amortization, of P1,240 million, additions to
deferred project cost of P59 million, a net increase in working capital of P85 million, interest
and finance charges paid of P426 million, interest received of P19 million and payment for
periodic repairs of P117 million. The net increase in working capital was mainly due to
increase in trade receivables an increase in prepayment of P5 million due to advance
payment of real property taxes and an increase in current liabilities of P5 million due to
higher trade payables at year end.
January to December 2013
Net cash flows provided by operating activities was P3,120 million. This was mainly the
result of income before tax of P2,109 million, adjusted for non-cash items and changes in
working capital, including depreciation and amortization, of P1,140 million, additions to
deferred project cost of P9 million, a net decrease in working capital of P419 million, interest
and finance charges paid of P492 million, interest received of P15 million and payment for
periodic repairs of P62 million. The net decrease in working capital was mainly due to
decrease in trade receivables of P369 million due to collection, an increase in prepayment of
P11 million due to advance payment of real property taxes and an increase in current
liabilities of P62 million due to higher trade payables at year end.
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January to December 2012
Net cash flows provided by operating activities was P1,231 million. This was mainly the
result of income before tax of P1,711 million, adjusted for non-cash items and changes in
working capital, including depreciation and amortization, of P1,556 million, additions to
deferred project cost of P17 million, a net increase in working capital of P362 million, interest
and finance charges paid of P859 million, interest received of P18 million and income tax
payment of P816 million. The net increase in working capital was mainly due to increase in
trade receivables of P249 million, increase in prepayment of P2 million due to insurance
premiums paid in advance and a decrease in current liabilities of P110 million due to lower
trade payables at year end.
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
January to December 2014
The net cash flows used in investing activities of P331 million was mainly for the placement
of short-term investments of P313 million and the procurement of property and equipment
which includes RFID and other toll equipment for P19 million.
January to December 2013
The net cash flows used in investing activities of P17 million was mainly for procurement of
property and equipment which includes RFID and other toll equipment for P18 million offset
by a decrease in other noncurrent assets of P1 million due to adjustment for current portion
of prepaid lease.
January to December 2012
The net cash flows used in investing activities of P170 million was mainly for procurement of
toll and office equipment of P7 million and increase in interest reserve account of P165
million offset a decrease in other noncurrent assets of P2 million due to decrease in deposits
and prepaid lease for the adjustment of the current portion.
Net Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities
January to December 2014
Net cash flows used in financing activities of P2,989 million consisted of the payment of
dividends of P1,613 million and payment of annual principal amortization on the long term
debt of P1,375 million.
January to December 2013
Net cash flows used in financing activities of P2,632 million consisted of the payment of
dividends of P1,532 million and payment of annual principal amortization on the long term
debt of P1,100 million.
January to December 2012
Net cash flows used in financing activities of P1,206 million consisted of the settlement of the
short term debt of P10,715 million through the issuance of corporate notes amounting to
P11,000 million, payment of dividends of P1,158 million, and payment of first annual
principal amortization on the long term debt of P550 million offset by refund of upfront fee of
P218 million in relation to the short term debt.
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Key Performance Indicators
The following are major financial indicators being used by SLTC:

2014 2013 2012
LIQUIDITY RATIO:
Current Ratio

1.5

LOAN COVENANT RATIOS:
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

2.29 2.14 1.76

Leverage Ratio

2.19 2.87 3.46

1.4

1.7

The manner by which the Company calculates the above indicators is as follows:

Current Ratio

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Cashflow
Debt Service

Leverage Ratio

Borrowings
EBITDA

Liquidity and Indebtedness
For the years 2014 and 2013, the main source of liquidity of SLTC was from cash from toll
operations. It expects to meet its working capital requirements, capital expenditures, funding
for periodic repairs and dividend payments. SLTC may seek other sources of funding for its
future capital expenditures, traffic enhancement and project improvement programs, and the
construction of the TR4, which may include debt and/or equity financing, depending on its
needs and market conditions.

89

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes the maturity analysis of the contractual obligations of SLTC
based on undiscounted payments:
Amount in P Millions
As of December 31, 2014

Carrying
amount
Accounts payable and other current liabilities………

Contractual
cash flow

1 year or More than 1
less
year

204

204

204

Long-term debt……………………………………………………….

7,929

8,830

2,062

6,768

Total

8,134

9,034

2,266

6,768

Capital Resources
The primary objective of the capital management policy of SLTC is to achieve strong credit
ratings and capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
SLTC manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies and process from the previous years.
SLTC has cash and cash equivalents of P2,554 million as of December 31, 2014.
As of December 31, 2014, long term debt net of unamortized debt issuance costs amounted
to P7,929 million. The long term debt is covered by the assignment of bank accounts,
material contracts and receivables related to the SLEX project.
SLTC is in compliance with the debt covenants as of the date of this Prospectus.
As of December 31, 2014, SLTC has current assets of P3,182 million and current liabilities
of P2,124 million. Working capital (current assets less current liabilities) as of the same date
is P1,058 million.
As of the same date, SLTC has 3,625 million common shares with par value of P1 per share.
Capital Expenditures
SLTC invested P78 million, P27 million and P25 million in capital expenditures during the
years 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively. The amounts were used to enhance the toll
collection system with the use of RFID, procure guardrails as safety measures and pursue
several pre-construction activities for the TR4. It also spent a total of P117 million and P62
million on periodic repairs, road rehabilitation and flood mitigation and control measures in
2014 and 2013 respectively, to maintain the toll roads within the specified standard of
service at all times.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
SLTC does not have material off-balance sheet arrangements with other entities.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The principal financial instruments of SLTC comprise of cash and cash equivalents, interest
reserve account, short-term investments, long-term debt, and obligations under finance
lease and due to related parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the operations of the Company. The Company has other financial assets and
liabilities such as receivables and accounts payable and other current liabilities, which arise
directly from its operations.
The relevant risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are those pertaining
to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. SLTC maintains a U.S. dollar account to
manage its foreign currency-denominated transactions.
The US dollar-denominated monetary asset of the Company and its Philippine peso
equivalent follow:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

US Dollar
$2,862,068
7,008,184
$9,870,252

2014
Peso
Equivalent
P
= 127,991,716
313,405,975
P
= 441,397,691

US Dollar
$10,520,082
—
$10,520,082

2013
Peso
Equivalent
P
= 467,039,040
—
P
= 467,039,040

The objective of the Company is to reduce the exposure to foreign currency risk at a
minimum since revenue from toll operations is Philippine peso-denominated.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the income
before income tax or value of financial instruments of SLTC. The exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt with floating interest rate. To
manage future interest fluctuations on their obligations, SLTC maintains the required
amounts of cash that are available when the interests become due.
The policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rate available and to manage its interest
costs and borrowings.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that SLTC will incur a loss because its counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations.
With respect to credit risk arising from financial assets, the exposure of the Company to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these financial assets.
Since the revenue source is mainly collected in cash, the credit risk is considerably
lessened. Trade receivables arise from the reconciliation of inter-concession transactions
with a related party, pertaining to toll collections by the related party of revenues of SLTC.
Settlement is normally within 30 days after the collection month.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its obligations when they
fall due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, the Company closely
monitors its cash flows and ensures that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations
when they fall due. The Company also has a committed line of credit that it can access to
meet liquidity needs.
Other Matters


There are no unusual items as to nature and amount affecting assets, liabilities, equity,
net income or cash flows, except those stated in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Position and Financial Performance.



There were no material changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial
years.



There were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will
have a material impact on the liquidity of SLTC.



There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are
reasonably expected to have a favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues
or income from continuing operation.



There were no known events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to SLTC, including any default or acceleration of an obligation and there were
no changes in contingent liabilities and contingent assets since the last annual reporting
date.



There were no material off statements of financial position transactions, arrangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationship of SLTC with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.



The effects of seasonality or cyclicality on the operations of the business of the Company
are not material.
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MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS
The table below sets forth each member of the Board of Directors of the Company as of the
date of this Prospectus:
Name

Position

Citizenship

Year Appointed

Chairman

Filipino

2012

Ery Shadik Wahono

Director

Indonesian

2012

Mario K. Surio

Director

Filipino

2012

Jose P. de Jesus

Director

Filipino

2013

Lorenzo G. Formoso III

Director

Filipino

2015

Fema C. Q. Piramide-Sayson

Director

Filipino

2012

Nadiya W. Stamboel

Director

Indonesian

2012

Roberto B. Tan

Director

Filipino

2015

Toni Angeli V. Coo

Director

Filipino

2014

Consuelo Ynares-Santiago

Independent
Director

Filipino

2015

Francisco H. Villaruz

Independent
Director

Filipino

2015

Ramon S. Ang

Certain information on the business and working experiences of the Directors for the last five
(5) years set out below.
Ramon S. Ang, Filipino, born 1954, has served as the Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company since 2012. He is also the Chairman of the Executive Committee and
Compensation Committee of the Company. Within the past five (5) years, he has been
elected or appointed to the following positions, among others: Vice Chairman, Chief
Operating Officer and President of SMC; Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc., San Miguel
Yamamura Packaging Corporation, SMC Global Power Holdings Corp., and Liberty
Telecoms Holdings, Inc.; Chairman and Executive Director of San Miguel Properties, Inc.;
Executive Director of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (“GSMI”); Vice Chairman of San Miguel Pure
Foods Company, Inc. (“SMPFC”); President and CEO of Petron Corporation; and President
and CEO of Top Frontier Investment Holdings Inc. (“Top Frontier”); and Director of other
subsidiaries and affiliates of SMC in the Philippines and the Southeast Asia Region. Of the
companies in which Mr. Ang currently holds directorships, SMC, Petron Corporation, Liberty
Telecoms, GSMI, SMPFC and Top Frontier are also listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange. Mr. Ang has a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the
Far Eastern University.
Ery Shadik Wahono, Indonesian, born 1962, has served as the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 2012. He is the President and Chief Executive
Officer of CMMTC since April 2010. Mr. Wahono is a graduate of Business Administration.
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Mario K. Surio, Filipino, born 1946, has served as a Director of the Company since 2012.
He is the President of Cement Management Corporation, Triple One Construction
Corporation and CEMA Consultancy Services, Inc. since 1985. He is also working as a
Technical Consultant with SMC since 1985. Mr. Surio has a Bachelor of Science degree in
Chemical Engineering from University of Santo Tomas.
Jose P. De Jesus, Filipino, born 1934, has served as a Director of the Company since
2013. He is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Nationwide Development
Corporation. He was the President and Chief Operating Officer of MERALCO from February
2009 to June 2010, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation and Communications
from July 2010 to June 2011, and the President and Chief Executive Officer of Manila North
Tollways Corporation from January 2000 to December 2008. He was a Lux in Domino
Awardee (Most Outstanding Alumnus) of the Ateneo de Manila University in July 2012. He is
also a Director of Nationwide Development Corporation and KingKing Gold & Copper Mines,
Inc. He is a Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation, Eisenhower Fellowship
Association of the Philippines, Kapampangan Development Foundation and Holy Angel
University. Mr. de Jesus is a graduate of AB Economics and holds a Master of Arts in Social
Psychology from the Ateneo de Manila University. He also finished Graduate Studies in
Human Development from the University of Chicago.
Lorenzo G. Formoso III, born 1961, is the Vice President of San Miguel Corporation. He
has served as a Director of the Company since 2015. He is also a Director, President and
Chief Operating Officer of Universal LRT Corporation (BVI) Limited since 2010, a Director of
Trans Aire Development Holdings Corp. since 2010, Alloy Manila Toll Expressways, Inc.
since 2012, MTD Manila Expressways, Inc. since 2012, Chairman and Director of Skyway
O&M Corporation since 2012, Rapid Thoroughfares Inc. since 2010, Private Infra Dev Corp.
since 2009, Director and Vice Chairman of Manila North Harbour Port Inc. since 2010 and
Director of Citra Central Expressway Corp. since 2015, He served as the Assistant Secretary
in the Department of Transportation and Communications from 2006 to 2009, and Deputy
Commissioner of the Commission on Information and Communications Technology under
the Office of the President from 2005 to 2006. He was the Corporate Counsel and
Compliance Officer of Chikka Holdings Ltd British Virgin Islands, Chikka Private Ltd
Singapore and Chikka Asia, Inc. Manila from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Formoso was also the
Founding Partner of Bocobo Rondain Mendiola Cruz & Formoso from 1992 to 2000, an
associate of Angara Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz from 1990 to 1992 and an associate
of Neumiller & Beardslee from 1987 to 1990. He obtained his law degree from the University
of California, Davis School of Law in 1987 and was admitted to the State Bar of California in
1987 and to the Philippine Bar in 1992.
Fema C. Q. Piramide-Sayson, Filipino, born 1964, has served as a Director of the
Company since 2012. She is also a Director of CMMTC and Citra Intercity Tollways, Inc.
since 2010 and 2014, respectively. Currently, she is the Vice President for Corporate Legal
Affairs of CMMTC, the Chairperson of Rural Bank of Maasin (Southern Leyte), Inc. and a
Trustee of Siliman University. Ms. Piramide-Sayson graduated in 1984 from Siliman
University with a bachelor degree in Business Administration, major in Accounting (magna
cum laude). She passed the Certified Public Accountants Board Examination in 1985. She
also obtained her law degree in 1989 from the Ateneo de Manila University with honors
where she ranked 4th of the graduating class and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1990.

94

Nadiya W. Stamboel, Indonesian, born 1960, has served as a Director of the Company
since 2012. She is also a Director in CMMTC since 2010. She served as a Director of
SOMCO from 2008 to 2012. Since 2006, she is the Deputy Chief Executive Officer for
Finance of CMMTC. She previously worked as an Internal Audit Manager with PT Citra
Marga Nusaphala Persada Tbk, a private toll road operator of Jakarta Intra Urban Tollways.
She graduated from the University of Indonesia in 1985 with a degree in Economic Faculty,
majoring in Accounting.
Roberto B. Tan, Filipino, born 1954, has served as a Director of the Company since
February 2015. He is re-appointed Treasurer of the Philippines in January 2015.
Concurrently, he is the Officer-in-Charge of the International Finance Group of the
Department of Finance. He was first appointed as Treasurer of the Philippine in July 2008
and became World Bank Executive Director in November 2012. He has an extensive
experience in public finance, having assumed several key positions in the Department of
Finance, including Undersecretary from 2005 to 2008, Assistant Secretary from 1999 to
2005, and Director in the early 1990s for the International Finance Group. He also assumed
the post of Advisor to the Executive Director of the Asian Development Bank. He holds a
Master’s degree in Economics from the Fordham University, New York, where he also
pursued doctoral studies. He obtained his MBA from the Ateneo de Manila University where
he likewise received his Bachelor’s degree in Economics.
Toni Angeli V. Coo, Filipino, born 1981, has served as a Director of the Company since
2014. She is the Officer-in-charge of the Office of the Chief Privatization Officer and Deputy
Privatization Officer, Marketing Division of the Privatization and Management Office (“PMO”)
since 2013. She was the Deputy Privatization Officer for the Legal Department of the PMO
from August to November 2013. She previously worked as a Legal Counsel in PMO. Ms.
Coo graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Social
Sciences with minor concentrations in Cultural Heritage and Hispanic Studies in 2002 and
obtained his law degree from the University of the Philippines in 2006. She was admitted to
the Philippine Bar in 2007.
Consuelo Ynares-Santiago, Filipino, born 1939, has served as an Independent Director of
the Company since 2015. She is also an Independent Director of SMC Global Power
Holdings Corp. since 2011, Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corporation since 2012, Phoenix
Petroleum Phil. Inc., and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc., since 2013. She served as
an Associate Justice of the Supreme Court from 1999 to 2009; Associate Justice of the
Court of Appeals from 1990 to 1999; Regional Trial Court Judge of Makati, Branch 149 from
1986 to 1990; Metropolitan Trial Court Judge of Pasig, Brach 69 from 1983 to 1984 and of
Caloocan City, Branch 41 from January to October 1983, a Municipal Judge in Cainta, Rizal
from 1973 to 1983; and as a Legal Officer of the Securities and Exchange Commission from
February 1986 to July 1973. She obtained her law degree from the University of the
Philippines in 1962.
Francisco H. Villaruz, Filipino, born 1943, has served as an Independent Director of the
Company since 2015. He served as Presiding Justice of the Sandiganbayan from 2011 to
2013, and Associate Justice (Chairperson, Third Division; Chairperson, Special Division) of
the Sandiganbayan from 2001 to 2011. He is an Independent Director of Ginebra San
Miguel Inc. and Bank of Commerce. He was also a director of the Securities and Exchange
Commission from January to October 2001; reviewer of the MTRCB from 2000 to 2001. Mr.
Villaruz served as the Vice-President and General Counsel of La Tondeña Distillers’ Inc.
(now Ginebra San Miguel Inc.) from 1993 to 1999, and Assistant Vice-President and
Associate General Counsel of San Miguel Corporation from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Villaruz
obtained his law degree from the University of the Philippines in 1967.
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Set below are the names, positions and years of appointment of the Executive Officers and
senior management of the Company as of the date of this Prospectus.
Name

Position

Year Position was
Assumed

Ramon S. Ang

Chairman of the Board

2012

Ery Shadik Wahono

President and Chief Executive
Officer

2012

Virgilio S. De Guzman

Treasurer

2012

Cynthia M. Laureta

Corporate Secretary

2005

Shaina Anella B. Ramirez

Assistant Corporate Secretary

2013

Certain information on the business and working experiences of the Executive Officers and
Senior Management for the last five (5) years set out below.
Virgilio S. De Guzman, Filipino, born 1957, has served as the Treasurer of the Company
since 2012. He is currently a finance consultant for SMHC. He is also the Deputy Chief
Finance Officer of CMMTC, where he also served as its Treasurer from November 2012 to
April 2015. He has served as the Comptroller and Treasurer of PIDC since October 2012.
He was Executive Assistant to the Chief Finance Officer of Manila Electric Company in 2009
and was the Vice President and Chief Finance Officer of Coca-Cola Bottlers Phils. Inc. from
2002 to 2007. He has served as the Vice President and Treasurer of San Miguel Beverages
Inc. from 2007 to 2009. He has also held various positions in the San Miguel Beer Division
as its Vice President and Deputy Chief Finance Office from August to December 2002, Vice
President for Finance, International Operations and Chief Finance Officer for China Business
Operations from August 2001 to July 2002, Assistant Vice President and Manager for
Internal Operations, Finance and Chief Finance Officer for Greater China Operations from
2000 to 2001, Assistant Vice President and Manager for Philippine Operations, Finance in
1999, Assistant Vice President and Chief Finance Officer of San Miguel Brewing Philippines,
and Assistant Vice President and Manager, Finance, Philippine Operations of the San
Miguel Brewing Group from 1996 to 1998.
Cynthia M. Laureta, Filipino, born 1962, has served as a Director of the Company since
2005. She is also a Director and Corporate Secretary of MATES, Skyway O&M Corporation
(“SOMCO”), MTDME, Alloy Manila Toll Expressways, Inc. (“AMTEX”), MTD Philippines, Inc.,
and a Corporate Secretary of Solutions, Inc., Solutions Brokers, Inc., and Celebrity Sports
Plaza, Inc. She has been a practicing lawyer since her admission to the Philippine Bar in
1987, and is currently in solo practice since leaving her previous law firm, Tan &
Concepcion, in 2011, where she was a senior partner. Ms. Laureta graduated from the
University of the Philippines College of Business Administration in 1982 with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration. She obtained her law degree from the University
of the Philippines College of Law in 1986, graduating 4th in her class. She was a member of
the Order of the Purple Feather (honors society) throughout her four (4) years in the College
of Law.
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Shaina Anella B. Ramirez, Filipino, born 1982, has served as the Assistant Corporate
Secretary of the Company since 2013. She is currently an Associate General Counsel of
San Miguel Holdings Corp. and assists in the duties of the corporate secretary of the toll
road companies which it indirectly owns. She also serves as the Assistant Corporate
Secretary of MATES, SOMCO, MTDME, AMTEX, CMMTC and CCEC. She was a junior
associate in the Corporate and Special Projects Department of Villaraza Cruz Marcelo &
Angangco from 2010 to 2013 and of Nisce Mamuric Guinto Rivera & Alcantara from 2008 to
2010. She obtained her law degree from the University of the Philippines College of Law in
2008 and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2009. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts in
Public Administration from the National College of Public Administration and Governance
from the same university in 2002.
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
The Company has no significant employee or personnel who was not an executive officer
but is expected to make a significant contribution to the business.
FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS
There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or
affinity among directors and/or executive officers of the Company.
INVOLVEMENT OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is not aware that any one of the incumbent directors and executive officers
and persons nominated to become a director and executive officer has been the subject of a
bankruptcy petition or a conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or
foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses, or has been by judgment or
decree found to have violated securities or commodities law and enjoined from engaging in
any business, securities, commodities or banking activities for the past five years until the
date of this Prospectus.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
From the years 2013 to 2015E, except for Mr. Ramon M. Borromeo, Senior Executive Vice
President of SLTC, the executive officers of the Company do not receive any compensation
from SLTC.
The following table summarizes the aggregate compensation paid or estimated to be paid to
the executive officers and directors of the Company during the periods indicated below (in
million pesos):
Name

(1) Senior Executive Vice President
(Mr. Ramon M. Borromeo)

(2) All other officers and managers
as a group (excluding the
Senior Executive Vice
President)

Year

Salary
(P millions)

Bonus
(P millions)

2015E
2014
2013

P3.21
P3.21
P1.60

P0.50
P0.50
P0.25

2015E
2014
2013

P4.44
P4.04
P2.70

P0.45
P0.40
P0.23

Standard Arrangements
The executive officers are covered by standard employment contracts and employees’
retirement plan and can be terminated upon appropriate notice. Other than reasonable per
diem, the directors of the Company have not received any salary or compensation for their
services as directors. There are no other special arrangements pursuant to which any
director was compensated. There is no compensatory plan or arrangement for the
termination, resignation, or retirement of a member of the Board.
Other Arrangements
There are no other arrangements for which the Directors are compensated by the Company
for services other than those provided as a Director.
Employment Contract
In lieu of an employment contract, the Directors are elected at the annual meeting of
stockholders for one year term. Any Director elected in the interim will serve for the
remaining term until the next annual meeting.
Warrants or Options Outstanding
There are no warrants or options held by Directors or Executive Officers.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICIAL
OWNERS
(a)

Security Ownership of Certain Records and Beneficial Owners of more than
5% as at December 31, 2014
Title of
Class

Common

Name and Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with Issuer

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

MTD Manila Expressways Same as record
Inc.
owner
Sitio Latian, Brgy.
Mapagong, Calamba City

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

%
of Outstanding

Filipino

2,899,999,993

80.00%

Filipino

724,999,998

20.00%

Nature of Relationship:
Parent

Common

Republic of the
Philippines
c/o Department of
Finance, Roxas Blvd.,
Manila

Same as record
owner

Nature of Relationship:
No relation to the Issuer

(b)

Security Ownership of Directors and Management as at December 31, 2014
Title of
Class

Name of Beneficial Owner

Amount and
Nature of
Ownership

Citizenship

%
of Outstanding

Common

Ramon S. Ang

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Ery Shadik Wahono

1 (of record)

Indonesian

0.00%

Common

Mario K. Surio

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Jose P. de Jesus

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Cynthia M. Laureta

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Fema C.Q. Piramide-Sayson

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Nadiya W. Stamboel

1 (of record)

Indonesian

0.00%

Common

Rosalia V. De Leon

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Toni Angeli V. Coo

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%
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(c)

Security Ownership of Certain Records and Beneficial Owners of more than
5% as of date of this Prospectus
Title of
Class

Name and Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship with Issuer

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

%
of Outstanding

Same as record
owner

Filipino

2,899,999,991

80.00%

Common Republic of the Philippines Same as record
c/o Department of Finance, owner
Roxas Blvd., Manila

Filipino

724,999,998

20.00%

Common MTD Manila Expressways
Inc.
Sitio Latian, Brgy.
Mapagong, Calamba City

Name of
Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship
with Record
Owner

Nature of Relationship:
Parent

Nature of Relationship:
No relation to the Issuer

(d) Security Ownership of Directors and Management as of date of this Prospectus
Title of
Class

Name of Beneficial Owner

Amount and
Nature of
Ownership

Citizenship

%
of Outstanding

Common

Ramon S. Ang

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Ery Shadik Wahono

1 (of record)

Indonesian

0.00%

Common

Mario K. Surio

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Jose P. de Jesus

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Lorenzo G. Formoso III

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Fema C.Q. Piramide-Sayson

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Nadiya W. Stamboel

1 (of record)

Indonesian

0.00%

Common

Roberto B. Tan

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Toni Angeli V. Coo

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Consuelo Ynares-Santiago

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

Common

Francisco H. Villaruz

1 (of record)

Filipino

0.00%

None of the members of the Board of Directors and Management of SLTC own 2.0% or
more of the outstanding capital stock of SLTC.
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(e)

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

SLTC is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of common shares under a
voting trust or similar agreement.
(f)

Changes in Control

Other than the acquisition of SMHC of a majority stake in AAIBV, the Company is not
aware of any change in control or arrangement that may result in a change in control of
the Company since the beginning of its last fiscal year.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The Company, in the ordinary course of business, has entered into transactions with
stockholders, affiliates and other related parties principally consisting of advances and
reimbursement of expenses, construction contracts, and development, management,
underwriting, marketing, leasing and administrative service agreements. Sale and purchase
of goods and services to and from related parties are made on an arm’s length basis and at
current market prices at the time of the transactions.
Except for the transactions discussed in Note 13 (“Related Party Transactions”) to the
accompanying financial statements, there were no other material related party transactions
during the last three financial years, nor are there any material transactions currently
proposed between SLTC and any: (i) director or executive officer, direct or indirect owner of
10% or more of the outstanding shares in SLTC; (ii) close family member of such director,
executive officer or owner; (iii) associates of SLTC; (iv) enterprises controlling, controlled by
or under common control with SLTC; or (v) enterprises in which a substantial interest in the
voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by any director, executive officer or owner of
10% or more of the outstanding shares in SLTC or any close family member of such director,
executive officer, or owner.
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DESCRIPTION OF DEBT
On March 2012, the Company entered into a Corporate Notes Facility and Security
Agreement with various local financial institutions for floating-rate unsecured notes
amounting to P11.0 billion, with a tenor of five (5) years.
Participating financial institutions include Bank of Commerce, Banco De Oro, Unibank Inc.,
Maybank Philippines, Inc., Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, Philippine National Bank,
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation, and Security Bank Corporation.
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporate Notes has an outstanding balance of P7.150
Billion.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Manual on Corporate Governance
Pursuant to Article 9 of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance, the Manual on
Corporate Governance (the “Manual”) of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on March 5, 2015.
Compliance and Monitoring System
The monitoring of the implementation of the evaluation system of the Company to measure
and determine the adherence to and the level of compliance of the Board of Directors and
top level management with the Manual is vested by the Board of Directors in the Compliance
Officer. To ensure adherence to corporate governance principles and best practices, the
Board of Directors will appoint a Compliance Officer in due course.
The Compliance Officer is responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the
provisions and requirements of the Manual and the rules and regulations of the relevant
regulatory agencies and ensures adherence to corporate principles and best practices. The
Compliance Officer holds the position of a Vice President or its equivalent and has direct
reporting responsibilities to the Chairman of the Board of Directors. In accordance with
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC, the Compliance Officer shall certify whether the
Company has substantially adopted all the provisions of the Manual on Corporate
Governance.
Further, the Company may organize regular seminars or programs on Corporate
Governance for directors and key officers, in accordance with SEC regulations.
Pursuant to its commitment to good governance and business practice, the Company shall
continue to review and strengthen its policies and procedures, giving due consideration to
developments in the area of corporate governance which it determines to be in the best
interests of the Company and its stockholders.
Independent Directors
Under the implementing rules and regulations of the SRC, an independent director is defined
as a person who, apart from his fees and shareholdings, is independent of management and
free from any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived
to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his
responsibilities as a director. An independent director must satisfy the qualifications and
must have none of the disqualifications of an independent director set out in the SRC and its
implementing rules and regulations, the Manual, the amended articles of incorporation and
amended by-laws of the Company.
Under the SRC, the Company is required to have at least two independent directors in its
Board of Directors. The Manual, in turn, requires at least two independent directors to serve
on the Audit Committee of the Company and one independent director on each of the
Nomination and Hearing Committee and Executive Compensation Committee.
Justice Consuelo Ynares-Santiago and Justice Francisco H. Villaruz are the independent
directors of the Company.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of SLTC shall be composed of at least three directors, including the
two independent directors.
The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in the performance
of its oversight responsibility for financial reports and financial reporting process, internal
control system, audit process, and in monitoring and facilitating compliance with both the
internal and financial management handbook and pertinent accounting standards, legal and
regulatory requirements. It performs financial oversight management functions, specifically in
the areas of managing credit, market liquidity, operational, legal and other risks of SLTC,
and crisis management.
The committee is currently preparing its charter for approval by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
Nomination and Hearing Committee
The Nomination and Hearing Committee of SLTC shall have at least three voting directors
(one of whom must be independent) and one nonvoting member in the person of the Human
Resources Manager.
The committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board of Directors on
matters relating to the Directors’ appointment, election and succession, with the view of
appointing individuals to the Board of Directors with relevant experience and capabilities to
maintain and improve the competitiveness of the Company and increase its value. It prescreens and shortlists the nominees in accordance with the qualifications and
disqualifications for directors set out in the Manual.
Executive Compensation Committee
The Executive Compensation Committee of SLTC shall be composed of at least three
members, one of whom shall be an independent director.
The committee is responsible for advising and assisting the Board of Directors in the
establishment of formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on executive
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of the officers and directors of SLTC,
and provides oversight over remuneration of senior management and other key personnel,
ensuring that compensation is consistent with the culture, strategy and control environment
of the Company. It designates the amount of remuneration, which shall be in a sufficient
level to attract and retain directors and officers who are needed to run SLTC successfully.
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REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
Toll Regulatory Board
The TRB was created under P.D. No. 1112 for the regulation of toll facilities and operates as
an attached agency of the Department of Transportation and Communications.
Pursuant to Executive Order No. 133 s. 2013, in relation to PD No. 1112, the TRB is
authorized and empowered to enter into contracts or TOA in behalf of the ROP with qualified
persons or entities, for the construction, operation and maintenance of toll facilities such as
but not limited to national highways, roads, bridges, and public thoroughfares. The TOA is
subject to the approval of the President of the Philippines and has a fixed term not
exceeding 50 years.
The TRB is also the issuing authority of Toll Operation Certificates (“TOC”). The TOC is the
authority granted to qualified persons, to develop, improve, upgrade, expand, rehabilitate,
reconstruct, modernize and/or construct/build and operate and maintain a toll facility. The
TOC has a fixed term not exceeding 50 years and may be amended, modified or revoked by
the TRB whenever the public interest so requires subject to the payment of just
compensation, if any is due. The privilege to operate toll facilities in the Philippines is limited
by nationality restrictions. The Constitution provides that a franchise, certificate, or any other
form of authorization for the operation of a public utility can only be granted to Filipino
citizens or corporations or associations organized under Philippine laws at least sixty percent
(60%) of whose capital is owned by Filipinos.
Among the operation and maintenance facilities of toll facilities which may form part of a
TOC or a TOA, include (a) for operation: (i) toll collection system, (ii) traffic control system,
(iii) tollroad patrol and vehicle control with communications system, (iv) facilities for
assistance of disabled vehicles and in case of emergencies, (v) information service and
message sign boards, (vi) vehicle regulation facilities, (vii) telephone and lighting facilities,
and, (viii) emergency operations; and (b) for maintenance (i) patrolling and inspection facility,
(ii) road cleaning and obstruction control, (iii) electricity and water supply, (iv) repavement
facilities, steel bridge painting, bridge strengthening, interchange improvement, parking area
improvement, slope protection, pavement painting and the like, (v) disaster prevention and
reaction facilities, and (vi) environmental enhancement and protection.
Aside from the power to grant an administrative franchise, the TRB is also vested with the
power to issue, modify and promulgate toll rates, and upon notice and hearing, to approve or
disapprove petitions for the increase thereof. The procedures for approval of initial, adjusted
or periodic toll rates as well as approval of provisional toll rates are governed by the 2013
Revised Rules of Procedure of the TRB.
Philippine National Construction Corporation
The PNCC, previously known as the Construction and Development Corporation of the
Philippines, was granted under P.D. No. 1113 the franchise to construct, operate and
maintain toll facilities in the North Luzon (the “NLEX” and SLEX for a period of 30 years from
May 1, 1977 or until May 1, 2007, with the corresponding right to collect fees at such rates
as may be fixed by the TRB.
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In accordance with the requirements of PD No. 1112 and the franchise of PNCC, PNCC
entered into a Toll Operation Agreement dated October 1977 (“PNCC TOA”) with the TRB,
providing for the terms and conditions for the construction and operation of the NLEX and
SLEX.
On December 22, 1983, P.D. 1113 was amended by PD No. 1983, wherein PNCC was
further granted a franchise over the Metro Manila Expressway (the “MMEX”) and all such
extensions, linkages, stretches and diversions from any part of the NLEX, SLEX and MMEX.
The franchise of PNCC over the MMEX and all extensions, linkages, stretches and
diversions that may be constructed after December 22, 1983 shall have a term of 30 years
commencing from the date of completion of the project. As expressly set out in P.D. No.
1113 and reiterated in P.D. No. 1894, PNCC may sell or assign its franchise thereunder
granted or cede the usufruct thereof upon the approval of the President.
For the operation of its franchise areas, the PNCC entered into several joint venture
agreements with various private entities as investor-concessionaires such as the Amended
Joint Venture Agreement dated May 2000 by and between PNCC and Hopewell Crown
Infrastructure, Inc. Thereafter, PNCC entered into supplemental toll operation agreements
with the joint ventures companies to implement the PNCC TOA, including, among others, the
Supplemental Toll Operation Agreement dated February 1, 2006 by and among the Republic
of the Philippines acting through the TRB as Grantor, PNCC, SLTC as Investor, and MATES
as Operator.
On May 1, 2007, the franchise of PNCC under P.D. 1113 expired. The expiration of the
franchise of PNCC under P.D. 1113 resulted in the automatic turn-over, by operation of law,
assets and facilities of the PNCC to the government at no cost. Nevertheless, and
notwithstanding the expiration of the franchise of PNCC under P.D. 1113, the Supreme
Court held in Ernesto B. Francisco, Jr. v. Toll Regulatory Board (G.R. Nos. 166910, 169917,
173630, and 183599 (19 October 2010)) that (a) the joint venture companies formed by
PNCC and its joint venture partners derive authority to operate and maintain the relevant
expressways pursuant to the administrative franchise granted under their respective STOAs
and TOCs issued by the TRB; and (b) the expiration of the franchise of PNCC under P.D.
1113 did not carry with it the cancellation of the franchise of PNCC under P.D. 1894.
On April 25, 2012, SLTC received a written notice from the Department of Finance of the
conveyance of the interest of PNCC in SLTC to the ROP by way of a Deed of Assignment. A
corresponding Certificate Authorizing Registration issued by the BIR of said assignment has
been duly submitted to the Company.
Foreign Investment Act of 1991
The Foreign Investment Act of 1991 (“FIA”) liberalized the entry of foreign investment into
the Philippines. Under the FIA, foreigners can own as much as 100% equity of domestic
market enterprises, except in areas specified in the Foreign Investment Negative List. This
Negative List enumerates industries and activities which have foreign ownership limitations
under the Constitution, and other laws.
Under Article XII, Section 11 of the Constitution, franchise, certificate, or any other form of
authorization for the operation of a public utility may be granted only to citizens of the
Philippines or to corporations or associations organized under the laws of the Philippines at
least sixty per centum of whose capital is owned by such citizens.
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Registration under the Board of Investments
Under the Executive Order No. 226, otherwise known as the Omnibus Investments Code, a
Board of Investments (“BOI”)-registered enterprise enjoy certain incentives provided such
enterprise invests in preferred areas of investment enumerated in the Investment Priorities
Plan annually prepared by the Government. Such incentives may include: (i) income tax
holiday; (ii) additional deduction for labor expenses; (iii) tax exemption on imported capital
equipment; (iv) tax credit on domestic capital equipment; (v) exemption from contractor’s tax;
(vi) simplification of customs procedure; (vii) unrestricted use of consigned equipment; (viii)
employment of foreign nationals; (ix) tax exemption on imported spare parts; and (x)
exemption from wharfage dues and export duties and fees.
The SLEX Project was registered with BOI with Pioneer Project Status on March 3, 2010,
and was granted an income tax holiday incentive on November 28, 2012. The income tax
holiday incentive granted by BOI for the SLEX Project was for a period of six (6) years from
January 2011, the start of its commercial operations.
Local Government Code
Republic Act No. 7160, otherwise known as the Local Government Code (“LGC”) establishes
the system and powers of provincial, city, municipal, and barangay governments in the
country. The LGC general welfare clause states that every local government unit (“LGU”)
shall exercise the powers expressly granted, those necessarily implied, as well as powers
necessary, appropriate, or incidental for its efficient and effective governance, and those
which are essential to the promotion of the general welfare.
The power to tax and police power is exercised by the LGU through their respective
legislative bodies. Specifically, the LGU, through its legislative body, has the authority to
enact such ordinances as it may deem necessary and proper for sanitation and safety, the
furtherance of the prosperity, and the promotion of the morality, peace, good order, comfort,
convenience, and general welfare of the locality and its inhabitants. Ordinances can
reclassify land, impose real property taxes, order the closure of business establishments,
and require permits and licenses from businesses operating within the territorial jurisdiction
of the LGU.
Labor and Employment
The Department of Labor and Employment (“DOLE”) is the Philippine government agency
mandated to formulate policies, implement programs and services, and serves as the policycoordinating arm of the Executive Branch in the field of labor and employment. The DOLE
has exclusive authority in the administration and enforcement of labor and employment laws
such as the Labor Code of the Philippines and the Occupational Safety and Health
Standards, as amended, and such other laws as specifically assigned to it or to the
Secretary of the DOLE.
Social Security System, PhilHealth and the Pag-IBIG Fund
An employer or any person who uses the services of another person in business, trade,
industry or any undertaking is required under the Social Security Act of 1997 to ensure
coverage of employees following procedures set out by the law and the Social Security
System (“SSS”). Under the said law, an employer must deduct from its employees their
monthly contributions based on a given schedule, pay its share of contribution and remit
these to the SSS within a period set by law and/ or SSS regulations.
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Employers are likewise required to ensure enrollment of its employees in a National Health
Program administered by the Philippine Health Insurance Corporation a government
corporation attached to the DOH tasked with ensuring sustainable, affordable and
progressive social health insurance pursuant to the provisions of the National Health
Insurance Act of 1995.
Under the Home Development Mutual Fund Law of 2009, all employees who are covered by
the Social Security Act of 1997 must also be registered with and covered by the Home
Development Mutual Fund, more commonly referred to as the Pag-IBIG Fund.
Environmental Matters
Presidential Decree No. 1586 established the “Environmental Impact Statement System,”
which provides a regulatory framework for any project or undertaking that is either (a)
classified as environmentally critical or (b) is situated in an environmentally critical area. The
Department of Environment and Natural Resources (“DENR”), through its regional offices or
through the Environmental Management Bureau (the “EMB”), determines whether a project
is environmentally critical or located in an environmentally critical area and processes all
applications for an Environmental Compliance Certificate (“ECC”).
The law requires an entity that will undertake any such declared environmentally critical
project or operate in any such declared environmentally critical area to submit an
Environmental Impact Statement (“EIS”) which is a comprehensive study of the significant
impacts of a project on the environment. The EIS serves as an application for the issuance
of an ECC, if the proposed project is environmentally critical or situated in an
environmentally critical area; or for the issuance of a Certificate of Non-Coverage, if
otherwise. An ECC is a Government certification that, among others, (i) the proposed
project or undertaking will not cause significant negative environmental impact; (ii) the
proponent has complied with all the requirements of P.D No. 1586 in connection with the
project; and (iii) the proponent is committed to implement its approved Environmental
Management Plan (“EMP”) in the EIS. The EMP details the prevention, mitigation,
compensation, contingency and monitoring measures to enhance positive impacts and
minimize negative impacts and risks of a proposed project or undertaking.
Project proponents that prepare an EIS are required to establish an Environmental
Guarantee Fund when the ECC is issued for projects determined by the DENR to pose a
significant public risk to life, health, property and the environment or where the project
requires rehabilitation or restoration. The Environmental Guarantee Fund is intended to
meet any damage caused by such a project as well as any rehabilitation and restoration
measures. Project proponents also required to establish an Environmental Monitoring Fund
(“EMF”) when an ECC is eventually issued. The EMF is to support the activities of the team
monitoring the project proponent's compliance with ECC conditions, EMP and applicable
laws, rules and regulations.
The construction of major roads and bridges are considered environmentally critical projects
for which an EIS and an ECC are mandatory.
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PHILIPPINE TAXATION
The following is a discussion of the material Philippine tax consequences of the acquisition,
ownership and disposition of the Bonds. This general description does not purport to be a
comprehensive description of the Philippine tax aspects of the Bonds and no information is
provided regarding the tax aspects of acquiring, owning, holding or disposing of the Bonds
under applicable tax laws of other applicable jurisdictions and the specific Philippine tax
consequence in light of particular situations of acquiring, owning, holding and disposing of
the Bonds in such other jurisdictions. This discussion is based upon laws, regulations,
rulings, and income tax conventions (treaties) in effect at the date of this Prospectus.
The tax treatment of a holder of Bonds may vary depending upon such holder’s particular
situation, and certain holders may be subject to special rules not discussed below. This
summary does not purport to address all tax aspects that may be important to a Bondholder.
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR
OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE
OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF A BOND, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND
EFFECT OF ANY LOCAL OR FOREIGN TAX LAWS.
As used in this section, the term “resident alien” refers to an individual whose residence is
within the Philippines and who is not a citizen thereof; a “non-resident alien” is an individual
whose residence is not within the Philippines and who is not a citizen of the Philippines. A
non-resident alien who is actually within the Philippines for an aggregate period of more than
180 days during any calendar year is considered a “non-resident alien doing business in the
Philippines,” otherwise, such non-resident alien who is actually within the Philippines for an
aggregate period of 180 days or less during any calendar year is considered a “non-resident
alien not doing business in the Philippines.” A “domestic corporation” is a corporation
created or organized in the Philippines or under its laws. A “resident foreign corporation” is a
non-Philippine corporation engaged in trade or business within the Philippines; and a “nonresident foreign corporation” is a non-Philippine corporation not engaged in trade or
business within the Philippines.
TAXATION OF INTEREST
The National Internal Revenue Code of 1997, as amended, provides that interest-bearing
obligations of Philippine residents are Philippine-sourced income subject to Philippine
income tax. Interest income derived by Philippine residents and resident aliens from the
Bonds is thus subject to income tax, which is withheld at source, at the rate of 20%.
Generally, interest on the Bonds received by non-resident foreign individuals engaged in
trade or business in the Philippines is subject to a 20% withholding tax while that received by
non-resident foreign individuals not engaged in trade or business is taxed at the rate of 25%.
Interest income received by domestic corporations and resident foreign corporations is
subject to a 20% final withholding tax. Interest income received by non-resident foreign
corporations is subject to a 30% final withholding tax. The tax withheld constitutes a final
settlement of Philippine income tax liability with respect to such interest.
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The foregoing rates are subject to further reduction by any applicable tax treaties in force
between the Philippines and the country of residence of the non-resident owner. Most tax
treaties to which the Philippines is a party generally provide for a reduced tax rate of 10% or
15% in cases where the interest arises in the Philippines and is paid to a resident of the
other contracting state. However, most tax treaties also provide that reduced withholding tax
rates shall not apply if the recipient of the interest who is a resident of the other contracting
state, carries on business in the Philippines through a permanent establishment and the
holding of the relevant interest-bearing instrument is effectively connected with such
permanent establishment.
TAX-EXEMPT STATUS
Bondholders who are exempt from or are not subject to final withholding tax on interest
income may claim such exemption by submitting the necessary documents. Said
Bondholder shall submit the following requirements to the Registrar, or to the underwriters or
selling agents (together with their completed Application to Purchase) who shall then forward
the same to the Registrar: (i) certified true copy of the tax exemption certificate or ruling
issued by the Bureau of Internal Revenue; (ii) a duly notarized undertaking, in prescribed
form, executed by (a) the Corporate Secretary or any authorized representative, who has
personal knowledge of the exemption based on his official functions, if the Applicant
purchases the Bonds for its account, or (b) the Trust Officer, if the Applicant is a universal
bank authorized under Philippine law to perform trust and fiduciary functions and purchase
the Bonds pursuant to its management of tax-exempt entities (i.e. Employee Retirement
Fund, etc.), declaring and warranting its tax-exempt status, undertaking to immediately
notify the Issuer of any suspension or revocation of the tax exemption certificate and
agreeing to indemnify and hold the Issuer free and harmless against any claims, actions,
suits, and liabilities resulting from the non-withholding of the required tax; and (iii) such other
documentary requirements as may be required under the applicable regulations of the
relevant taxing or other authorities; provided further that, all sums payable by the Issuer to
tax-exempt entities shall be paid in full without deductions for Taxes, duties, assessments, or
government charges, subject to the submission by the Bondholder claiming the benefit of
any exemption or reasonable evidence of such exemption to the Registrar.
Bondholders may sell their Bonds at any time, regardless of tax status of the transferor vis-àvis the transferee. Should a transfer between Bondholders of different tax status occur on a
day which is not an Interest Payment Date, tax exempt entities trading with non-tax exempt
entities shall be treated as non-tax exempt entities for the interest period within which such
transfer occurred. Transfers taking place in the Register of Bondholders after the Bonds are
listed on the PDEx shall be allowed between non-tax exempt and tax exempt entities without
restriction and observing the tax exemption of tax exempt entities, if and/or when so allowed
under and in accordance with the relevant rules, conventions and guidelines of the PDEx
and PDTC.
A Bondholder claiming tax-exempt status is required to submit a written notification of the
sale or purchase to the Trustee and the Registrar, including the tax status of the transferor or
transferee, as appropriate, together with the supporting documents, specified under the
Section entitled “Payment of Additional Amounts; Taxation,” within three days of such
transfer.
VALUE-ADDED TAX
Gross receipts arising from the sale of the Bonds in the Philippines by Philippine-registered
dealers in securities and lending investors shall be subject to a 12% value-added tax. The
term “gross receipt” means gross selling price less cost of the securities sold.
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GROSS RECEIPTS TAX
Bank and non-bank financial intermediaries are subject to gross receipts tax on gross
receipts derived from sources within the Philippines in accordance with the following
schedule:
On interest, commissions and discounts from lending activities as well as income from
financial leasing, on the basis of remaining maturities of instruments from which such
receipts are derived:
Maturity period is five years or less
Maturity period is more than five years

5%
1%

In case the maturity period referred above is shortened through pre-termination, then the
maturity period shall be reckoned to end as of the date of pre-termination for purposes of
classifying the transaction and the correct rate shall be applied accordingly.
Net trading gains realized within the taxable year on the sale or disposition of the Bonds
shall be taxed at 7%.
DOCUMENTARY STAMP TAX
A documentary stamp tax is imposed upon the issuance of debentures and certificates of
indebtedness issued by Philippine companies, such as the Bonds, at the rate of P
= 1 for each
P
= 200, or fractional part thereof, of the issue price of such debt instruments; provided that, for
debt instruments with terms of less than one year, the documentary stamp tax to be
collected shall be of a proportional amount in accordance with the ratio of its term in number
of days to 365 days.
The documentary stamp tax is collectible wherever the document is made, signed, issued,
accepted, or transferred, when the obligation or right arises from Philippine sources, or the
property is situated in the Philippines. Any applicable documentary stamp taxes on the
original issue shall be paid by the Issuer for its own account.
No documentary stamp tax is imposed on the subsequent sale or disposition of the Bonds.
TAXATION ON SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS
Income Tax
The Bondholder will recognize gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition (including a
redemption at maturity) of the Bonds in an amount equal to the difference between the
amount realized from such disposition and such basis of the Bondholders in the Bonds.
Such gain or loss is likely to be deemed a capital gain or loss assuming that the Bondholder
has held the Bonds as capital assets.
Under the Tax Code, any gain realized from the sale, exchange or retirement of securities,
debentures and other certificates of indebtedness with an original maturity date of more than
five years (as measured from the date of issuance of such securities, debentures or other
certificates of indebtedness) shall not be subject to income tax.
In case of an individual taxpayer, only 50% of the capital gain or loss is recognized upon the
sale or exchange of a capital asset if it has been held for more than 12 months.
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Any gains realized by non-residents on the sale of the Bonds may be exempt from Philippine
income tax under an applicable tax treaty, subject to the filing of a tax treaty relief application
with the Philippine Bureau of Internal Revenue, or if they are sold outside the Philippines.
Estate and Donor’s Tax
The transfer of the Bonds by succession, whether the deceased is a Philippine resident or
non-Philippine resident, shall be subject to an estate tax which is levied on the net estate of
the deceased at progressive rates ranging from 5% to 20%, if the net estate is over P
=
200,000. A Bondholder shall be subject to donor’s tax on the transfer of the Bonds by gift at
either (i) 30%, where the donee or beneficiary is a stranger, or (ii) at progressive rates
ranging from 2% to 15% if the net gifts made during the calendar year exceed P
= 100,000 and
where the donee or beneficiary is other than a stranger. For this purpose, a “stranger” is a
person who is not, in reference to the donor, a: (a) brother, sister (whether by whole or halfblood), spouse, ancestor and lineal descendant; or (b) relative by consanguinity in the
collateral line within the fourth degree of relationship.
The estate tax and the donor’s tax, in respect of the Bonds, shall not be collected (a) if the
deceased, at the time of death, or the donor, at the time of the donation, was a citizen and
resident of a foreign country which, at the time of his death or donation, did not impose a
transfer tax of any character in respect of intangible personal property of citizens of the
Philippines not residing in that foreign country; or (b) if the laws of the foreign country of
which the deceased or donor was a citizen and resident, at the time of his death or donation,
allows a similar exemption from transfer or death taxes of every character or description in
respect of intangible personal property owned by citizens of the Philippines not residing in
the foreign country.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following pages set forth the audited financial statements of SLTC as at December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
South Luzon Tollway Corporation
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Luzon Tollway Corporation
(an 80%-owned entity of MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.), which comprise the statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, and the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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-2Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
South Luzon Tollway Corporation as at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Aileen L. Saringan
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 72557
SEC Accreditation No. 0096-AR-3 (Group A),
January 18, 2013, valid until January 17, 2016
Tax Identification No. 102-089-397
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-58-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 4751323, January 5, 2015, Makati City
March 18, 2015
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SOUTH LUZON TOLLWAY CORPORATION
(An 80%-Owned Entity of MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31
2014

2013

2012

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 5 and 11)
Interest reserve account (Note 11)
Short-term investments (Note 5)
Receivables (Notes 6, 11 and 13)
Prepayments and other current assets (Notes 9 and 13)
Total Current Assets

P
=2,553,666,621
166,113,493
313,405,975
110,247,838
38,909,916
3,182,343,843

=2,888,957,611
P
165,575,638
–
24,318,805
34,256,703
3,113,108,757

=2,383,035,635
P
165,021,137
–
392,999,299
23,095,514
2,964,151,585

Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 7)
Concession right (Notes 8 and 11)
Deferred income tax asset (Note 16)
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 9 and 16)
Total Noncurrent Assets

26,699,256
11,583,539,124
33,261,094
903,346,295
12,546,845,769

22,560,186
12,133,013,079
–
850,211,537
13,005,784,802

14,877,952
12,682,432,539
–
846,855,503
13,544,165,994

ASSETS

=16,118,893,559 P
=16,508,317,579
P
=15,729,189,612 P

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
(Notes 10 and 13)
Current portion of:
Long-term debt (Note 11)
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance
obligation (Note 12)
Dividends payable (Note 17)
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent portion of:
Long-term debt (Note 11)
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance
obligation (Note 12)
Obligation under finance lease (Note 10)
Accrued retirement benefits cost (Note 15)
Deferred income tax liability (Note 16)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Capital stock - P
=1 par value
Authorized - 4,000,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding - 3,625,000,000 shares
Retained earnings (Note 17)
Cumulative re-measurement on defined benefit plan
(Note 15)
Total Equity

P
=283,730,929

P
=293,597,335

P
=262,554,871

1,626,698,532

1,348,025,318

1,071,318,225

213,765,176
—
2,124,194,637

76,352,632
507,500,000
2,225,475,285

44,883,430
371,562,500
1,750,319,026

6,302,774,314

7,929,472,846

9,277,498,164

319,145,695
—
2,628,738
11,094,468
6,635,643,215
8,759,837,852

314,770,841
–
1,800,221
10,507,220
8,256,551,128
10,482,026,413

267,823,441
968,572
1,675,000
–
9,547,965,177
11,298,284,203

3,625,000,000
3,343,668,223

3,625,000,000
2,011,002,993

3,625,000,000
1,584,579,259

683,537
6,969,351,760

864,153
5,636,867,146

454,117
5,210,033,376

=16,118,893,559 P
=16,508,317,579
P
=15,729,189,612 P

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTH LUZON TOLLWAY CORPORATION
(An 80%-Owned Entity of MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2013
2014

2012

REVENUE FROM TOLL OPERATIONS

=4,195,133,153 =
P3,958,698,245
P
=4,400,854,239 P

COSTS AND EXPENSES (Notes 13 and 14)

(1,574,960,934) (1,640,542,564) (1,578,197,589)
2,825,893,305 2,554,590,589 2,380,500,656

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest expense and other financing charges
(Notes 11, 12 and 14)
Interest income (Note 5)
Foreign exchange gain – net
Other income

(454,767,322)
18,628,961
4,906,467
15,430,152

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX

2,410,091,563

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX (Note 16)

(28,198,667)

NET INCOME

2,438,290,230

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive item not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods - re-measurement gain
(loss) on defined benefit plan (Note 15)

(180,616)

(510,209,705)
14,980,835
35,292,032
14,082,277
2,108,736,028
14,812,294

(865,584,892)
17,959,033
165,214,396
13,029,040
1,711,118,233
(462,388,108)

2,093,923,734

2,173,506,341

410,036

298,992

=2,094,333,770 =
P2,173,805,333
P
=2,438,109,614 P

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTH LUZON TOLLWAY CORPORATION
(An 80%-Owned Entity of MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

Capital
Stock
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2011

Cumulative
Re-measurement
Retained
on defined
Earnings
benefit plan
(Note 17)
(Note 15)

Total

P
=3,625,000,000

P
=940,447,918

P
=155,125

P
=4,565,603,043

Net income

—

2,173,506,341

—

2,173,506,341

Other comprehensive income

—

—

298,992

298,992

Total comprehensive income

—

2,173,506,341

298,992

2,173,805,333

Dividends declaration

—

(1,529,375,000)

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

—

(1,529,375,000)

3,625,000,000

1,584,579,259

454,117

5,210,033,376

Net income

—

2,093,923,734

—

2,093,923,734

Other comprehensive income

—

—

410,036

410,036

Total comprehensive income

–

2,093,923,734

410,036

2,094,333,770

Dividends declaration

–

(1,667,500,000)

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

3,625,000,000

Net income

2,011,002,993

–
864,153

2,438,290,230
—

—

(180,616)

Total comprehensive income (loss)

–

2,438,290,230

(180,616)

Dividends declaration

–

(1,105,625,000)

P
=3,625,000,000

P
=3,343,668,223

5,636,867,146
2,438,290,230

Other comprehensive loss

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

(1,667,500,000)

–
P
=683,537

(180,616)
2,438,109,614
(1,105,625,000)
P
=6,969,351,760

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTH LUZON TOLLWAY CORPORATION
(An 80%-Owned Entity of MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
2013
2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Amortization of concession right (Notes 8 and 14)
Interest expense and other financing charges
(Notes 11, 12 and 14)
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance
obligation (Notes 12 and 14)
Interest income (Note 5)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7 and 14)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain – net
Retirement benefits cost (Note 15)
Operating income before working capital changes
Additions to deferred project cost (Note 9)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables
Prepayments and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other
current liabilities
Net cash generated from operations
Interest expense and other financing charges paid
Interest received
Payment for resurfacing and maintenance obligation
(Note 12)
Income tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

2012

P
=2,410,091,563

=2,108,736,028
P

=1,711,118,233
P

549,473,955

549,419,460

536,024,107

454,767,322

510,209,705

865,584,892

241,890,410
(18,628,961)
14,927,779
(3,462,100)
647,901
3,649,707,869
(59,139,536)

119,145,895
(14,980,835)
10,417,335
(35,024,065)
535,257
3,248,458,780
(9,133,933)

146,881,305
(17,959,033)
5,523,150
18,975,914
533,892
3,266,682,460
(17,318,200)

(85,929,033)
(4,653,213)

368,680,494
(11,161,189)

(249,352,828)
(2,264,099)

5,494,734
3,505,480,821
(425,605,954)
18,628,961

61,767,766
3,658,611,918
(491,525,454)
14,980,835

(110,311,816)
2,887,435,517
(858,960,154)
17,959,033

(117,211,478)
—
2,981,292,350

(61,686,907)
—
3,120,380,392

—
(815,900,414)
1,230,533,982

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term investments
Additions to property and equipment (Note 7)
Decrease in other noncurrent assets
Increase in interest reserve account
Net cash used in investing activities

(313,405,975)
(19,066,849)
1,529,599
(537,855)
(331,481,080)

—
(18,099,569)
1,472,825
(554,501)
(17,181,245)

—
(7,349,721)
2,643,209
(165,021,137)
(169,727,649)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availment of (payments of):
Dividends (Note 17)
Long-term debt (Note 11)
Obligation under finance lease
Long-term debt (Note 11)
Short-term loan payable (Note 11)
Receipt of upfront fee (Note 11)
Net cash used in financing activities

(1,613,125,000)
(1,375,000,000)
(439,360)
—
—
—
(2,988,564,360)

(1,531,562,500)
(1,100,000,000)
(738,736)
—
—
—
(2,632,301,236)

(1,157,812,500)
(550,000,000)
(1,178,197)
11,000,000,000
(10,715,441,731)
218,050,000
(1,206,382,428)

NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3,462,100
(335,290,990)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR (Note 5)

35,024,065

(18,975,914)

505,921,976

(164,552,009)

2,888,957,611

2,383,035,635

2,547,587,644

P
=2,553,666,621

P
=2,888,957,611

P
=2,383,035,635

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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SOUTH LUZON TOLLWAY CORPORATION
(An 80%-Owned Entity of MTD Manila Expressways, Inc.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information
Corporate Information
South Luzon Tollway Corporation (the Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on
July 26, 2000, by virtue of a joint venture agreement (JVA) between MTD Manila Expressways,
Inc. (MTDME) and the Philippine National Construction Corporation (PNCC), primarily to
engage in the rehabilitation, construction and expansion of the South Luzon Expressway (SLEX)
from Alabang viaduct to Lucena, Quezon (“SLEX Project”) and other allied businesses necessary
or otherwise engaging in any work upon the toll roads.
The Company is an 80%-owned entity of MTDME (the Parent Company), a domestic corporation
engaged in general construction, project management and administration. As of
December 31, 2014, Company’s ultimate parent company is Atlantic Aurum Investments, B.V.
(AAIBV), a company incorporated in Netherlands. On March 5, 2015, San Miguel Holdings Corp.
(SMHC), a 100% owned subsidiary of San Miguel Corporation, acquired shares of AAIBV
resulting to SMHC owning 95% of the outstanding shares of AAIBV.
The registered business address of the Company is Sitio Latian, Barangay Mapagong, Calamba
City, Laguna.
Supplemental Toll Operation Agreement (“STOA”)
On February 1, 2006, the Company executed the STOA with the Manila Toll Expressway
Systems, Inc. (MATES), PNCC and the Republic of the Philippines (ROP or the Grantor) through
the Toll Regulatory Board (TRB). The STOA authorizes the Company by virtue of a joint venture
to carry out the rehabilitation, construction and expansion of the SLEX Project, comprising of Toll
Roads (TR) 1 (Alabang viaduct), TR 2 (Filinvest to Calamba, Laguna), TR 3 (Calamba, Laguna to
Sto. Tomas, Batangas) and TR 4 (Sto. Tomas, Batangas to Lucena City). The concession granted
shall expire 30 years from February 1, 2006.
On December 14, 2010, the TRB issued the Toll Operations Certificate for Phase I of the SLEX
i.e. TR1, TR2 and TR3, and approved the implementation of the Company’s initial toll rate, for
the said Phase I. The initial toll rate had been implemented on a staggered basis from January to
March 2011, with full implementation starting April 1, 2011.
Approval and Authorization for the Issuance of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors
(BOD) on March 18, 2015.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and presented in Philippine
peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the
nearest peso, except for the number of shares or when otherwise indicated.
The financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 were prepared by
management in connection with the Company’s plan of a retail bond offering (see Note 21).
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-2Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).
Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the following new and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretations which became
effective on January 1, 2014:
·

Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements)
These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation
requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. The
amendments must be applied retrospectively, subject to certain transition relief.
These
amendments have no impact to the Company since it has no investment entity under PFRS 10.

·

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)
These amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’
and the criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for
offsetting and are applied retrospectively. These amendments have no significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

·

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective
application is required. These amendments have no impact on the Company since the
Company has no novation of derivatives.

·

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments)
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, on the disclosures required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments
require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for
which impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period. The application of
these amendments has no material impact on the disclosure in the Company’s financial
statements.

·

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application is
required for IFRIC 21. This interpretation has no impact on the Company as it has applied
the recognition principles under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, consistent with the requirements of IFRIC 21 in prior years.
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-3Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
In the 2010 – 2012 annual improvements cycle, seven amendments to six standards were
issued, which included an amendment to PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The amendment
to PFRS 13 is effective immediately and it clarifies that short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of
discounting is immaterial. This amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial
statements.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
In the 2011 – 2013 annual improvements cycle, four amendments to four standards were
issued, which included an amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards–First-time Adoption of PFRS. The amendment to PFRS 1 is effective
immediately. It clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either standard is
applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
statements. This amendment has no impact on the Company as it is not a first time PFRS
adopter.
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
out below:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
·
·
·

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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-4All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
·
·
·

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company has no non-financial asset carried at fair
value. In addition, the Company has neither assets nor liabilities with recurring and non-recurring
fair value measurements.
Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition
The Company recognizes a financial asset or liability in the statement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using
settlement date accounting.
Initial Recognition and Classification of Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities are included in the initial
measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL).
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits.
“Day 1” Difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the statement of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases
where use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price
and model value is only recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.
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-5Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments or available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets. The
Company determines the classification at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
each financial year-end.
The Company has no financial assets at FVPL, HTM investments and AFS financial assets as of
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
transaction costs and fees that are integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. Loans and
receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve months from reporting date.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, interest reserve account and
receivables are classified under this category (see Notes 5 and 6).
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories: financial liabilities at FVPL or
other financial liabilities. The Company determines the classification at initial recognition and
reevaluates this designation at each financial year-end.
The Company has no financial liabilities at FVPL as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities pertain to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or designated
as FVPL upon inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or
borrowings. The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently
carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method
of amortization for any related premium, discount and any debt issue costs. Gains or losses are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the amortization process. Other financial liabilities are included in current liabilities if
maturity is within twelve months from the reporting date or the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer payment for at least twelve months from the reporting date.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.
The Company’s accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables),
dividends payable and long-term debt are classified under this category (see Notes 10 and 11).
Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented at gross amounts in the statement of financial position.
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-6Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence of impairment may include
indications that a borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and when observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
Loans and Receivables
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Loans and receivables, together
with the associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss increases or decreases and the
increase or decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. Additional impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost at reversal date.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:
·
·
·

the Company’s right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or,
the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or,
the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has
entered into a “pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the asset is
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-7recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Prepayments
Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset before they are utilized. This
account comprises prepaid rent, insurance premiums, taxes and other prepaid items. The
prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged to the
appropriate accounts in the statement of comprehensive income when incurred. Prepayments that
are expected to be realized for no more than twelve months after the reporting date are classified
as current assets otherwise these are classified as other noncurrent assets.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of such property and equipment when the cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met.
The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the property and equipment to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the year such costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized
as an additional cost of property and equipment.
When each major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Such major repairs and maintenance is capitalized and amortized over a period until the
next major repairs and maintenance activity.
Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the property and equipment as follows:
Number of Years
3–5
3-5
3–5
3–3

Vehicles
Computer and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Toll machinery and equipment

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the improvements (3 years) or the terms of
the lease, whichever is shorter.
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-8The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment. The residual value,
if any, is also reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in
use and no further depreciation is charged against operations.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either they have been disposed or
whenever the property and equipment is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from this disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of property
and equipment is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the year of retirement
or disposal.
Service Concession Arrangements
The Company accounts for its concession arrangement under the intangible asset model as it
receives the right to charge users of public service. Under Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12,
Service Concession Arrangements, the Company in substance, provides construction services in
exchange for an intangible asset (the right to charge the users of the toll roads). During the
construction of the toll road, construction revenue is recognized by reference to the percentage of
completion measured on the basis of the proportion of costs incurred as of reporting date over the
total estimated cost of the construction. The Company estimates that the aggregate amount of the
construction costs paid to the outside contractors approximates that fair value of the intangible
asset upon completion of the toll road construction. Thus, the construction revenue recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income approximates the construction costs recognized.
Intangible Assets - Concession Right
Concession right represents the construction costs, including borrowing costs during the
construction period, of the SLEX Project. Concession right is recognized initially at the fair value
of the construction services. Following initial recognition, the concession right is carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditures or
replacement of part of it, are normally recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as
these are incurred to maintain the expected future economic benefits embodied in the concession
right unless it can be demonstrated that the expenditures will contribute to the increase in revenue
from toll operations which meet the definition of an intangible asset.
The concession right is amortized on a straight-line basis over the years stated in the STOA which
is approximately 26 years from start of commercial operations and is being assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end or more frequently
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Changes in the term of the
contract or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
is accounted for by changing the amortization period and method, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible
assets.
The concession right will be derecognized upon turnover to the ROP. There will be no gain or
loss upon derecognition as the concession right which is expected to be fully amortized by then,
will be handed over to the ROP with no consideration.
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-9Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the nonfinancial
asset like property and equipment, concession right, and deferred project cost may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher between the asset or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In determining fair value less costs to
sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples or other available fair value indicators. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Any impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the expense category consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment loss may no longer exists or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization
charges are adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deductions from proceeds, net of
tax.
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income, net of any dividend declared,
and effects of changes in accounting policy.
Dividend Distributions
Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from retained earnings
when approved by the shareholders of the Company. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Revenue from Toll Operations. Revenue is recognized upon the use of the toll road and the toll is
paid by way of cash or charges against an E-Pass account.
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- 10 Construction. The Company recognizes revenue relating to construction or upgrade services by
reference to the percentage of completion (POC) of the contract as of the reporting date. Under
this method, the contract price is recognized as revenue considering the relationship of actual costs
incurred to total estimated cost of the contract. POC is made by reference to the stage of
completion of the projects and contracts determined based on the proportion of the contract costs
incurred to date and the estimated costs to complete. When it is probable that the total contract
costs will exceed the total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense
immediately.
Interest. Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues using the effective interest rate
method.
Other Income
Revenue is recognized when there is an incidental economic benefit, other than the usual business
operations, that will flow to the Company through an increase in asset or reduction in liability.
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss) comprises items of income and expenses, including
reclassification adjustments, which are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by
other standard.
Costs and Expenses
Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other
than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Operation and maintenance fee and costs
and expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the period these are
incurred.
Construction cost includes all direct materials and labor cost and those indirect costs related to the
performance of incidental services under the construction contract. Construction costs are
recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the construction activity as of the reporting
date. Since the Company subcontracted the work to third parties, the construction costs equal the
construction revenue.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
Leases where the lessee does not substantially obtain all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
assets are classified as operating leases. Operating leases are recognized as expense in the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased property, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly against the statement of comprehensive income.
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- 11 Capitalized assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term.
Retirement Benefits Cost
The Company accrues retirement benefits cost for all regular full-time employees based on the
requirements of Republic Act (RA) No. 7641. Retirement benefits cost is actuarially determined
using the projected unit credit method. This method considers each period of service as giving
rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each separately to build up the final
obligation.
Retirement benefits costs comprise the following:
· Service cost
· Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
· Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on nonroutine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.
Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
The amount recognized as retirement benefits liability is the aggregate of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan
assets, if any, adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The
asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity that the amounts recognized in the
financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at
reporting date.
Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of “Concession right” if they are directly attributable to the
construction of the qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the
activities to prepare for the assets are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are
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- 12 incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.
If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Borrowing costs include interest expense, amortization of debt issuance costs and other costs
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs not qualified for
capitalization are expensed as incurred.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso using the
applicable exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the closing exchange rate at the reporting
date. Exchange rate differences arising on the settlement and restatement of monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income in the year such difference arises.
Income Taxes
Current Income Tax/Prepaid Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.
Current income tax payable
Current income tax for the current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as a
liability and is presented as “Income tax payable” in the statement of financial position. If the
amount already paid in respect of the current and prior period exceeds the amount due for those
periods, the excess shall be recognized as an asset.
Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences at
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.
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- 13 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and same tax authority.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and, a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contact, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.
Provision for Resurfacing and Maintenance Obligation
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance obligation pertains to the Company’s obligation under
the concession agreement to maintain the toll roads such that the toll road can deliver the specified
standard of service at all times. Provision for resurfacing and maintenance obligation requires an
estimation of the periodic cost, generally estimated to be every five to six years or the expected
maintenance dates, to restore the assets to a level of serviceability during the concession term and
in good condition before turnover to the ROP. This is based on the best estimate of management
to be the amount expected to be incurred to settle the obligation at every maintenance dates
discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money. On the other hand, routine repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when
material.
Segment Information
The Company is engaged in the rehabilitation, construction and expansion of SLEX and considers
such as its primary and only operating segment. The Company’s asset producing revenues are
located in the Philippines.

3. Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company will adopt, where applicable, the following standards and interpretations when
these become effective.
·

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments – Classification and Measurement (2010 version)
PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to
be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value
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- 14 option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows
and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit or loss.
Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to
changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have
been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the
criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial assets, but will potentially
have no impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of
PFRS 9 was adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such
adoption, however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).
·

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is
issued by the IASB and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard
against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed. Adoption of the
interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the financial statements
of the Company.

The following new standards and amendments issued by the IASB were already adopted by the
FRSC but are still for approval by BOA.
Effective January 1, 2015
·

PAS 19, Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments)
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they
should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that,
if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is
permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in
which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. It is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Company since it has no defined
benefit plans with contributions from employees or third parties.
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- 15 Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company. They
include:
·

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment – Definition of Vesting Condition
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:
- a performance condition must contain a service condition
- a performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service
- a performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group
- a performance condition may be a market or non-market condition
- if the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting
period, the service condition is not satisfied.

·

PFRS 3, Business Combinations – Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination
The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after July 1, 2014. It clarifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified
as equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls
within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (or
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, if early adopted). The Company shall consider this
amendment for future business combinations.

·

PFRS 8, Operating Segments – Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:
- An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used to assess
whether the segments are ‘similar’.
- The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosure for segment liabilities.

·

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets – Revaluation Method
– Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset
may be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying
amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between
the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

·

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures – Key Management Personnel
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management services.
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The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company. They
include:
·

PFRS 3, Business Combinations – Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRS 3:
- Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
- This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

·

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement – Portfolio Exception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13
can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of PAS 39.

·

PAS 40, Investment Property
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description of
ancillary services in PAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset
or business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates
between investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and
equipment).

Effective January 1, 2016
·

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets – Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments)
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company
given that the Company has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current
assets.

·

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture – Bearer Plants
(Amendments)
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to
have any impact to the Company as the Company does not have any bearer plants.
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PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments)
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

·

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in
PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain
or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a
subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that
do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments
are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

·

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
(Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company.

·

PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rateregulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial
position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures
on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that
rate-regulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016. Since the Company is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard
would not apply.
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The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company. These
include:
·

PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations – Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

·

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such that
the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need to be
done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for
any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments.

·

PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent
annual report.

·

PAS 19, Employee Benefits – regional market issue regarding discount rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

·

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting – disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim
financial report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective January 1, 2018
·

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments – Hedge Accounting and Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)
PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
accounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
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- 19 replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on
the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect
of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the
hedged item, not only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the
risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value
of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread
to be excluded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and
accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge
accounting.
PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC. The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.
The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
·

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)
In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was issued. PFRS 9 reflects
all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.
PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is
not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is permitted if the date of
initial application is before February 1, 2015. The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have
any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The following new standard issued by the IASB has not yet been adopted by the FRSC:
·

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date once adopted locally.

The Company continues to assess the impact of the foregoing new and amended accounting
standards and interpretations effective subsequent to December 31, 2014 on the Company’s
financial statements in the period of initial application. Additional disclosures required by these
amendments will be included in the financial statements when these amendments are adopted.
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4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and the accompanying notes. In preparing the financial statements, management has
made its best judgments and estimates relating to certain amounts, giving due consideration to
materiality. The estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Such estimates will be adjusted
accordingly when the results become determinable.
Accounting estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made judgments,
apart from those involving estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements.
Assessment of Service Concession Arrangements
As discussed in Note 1, the Company was awarded by the ROP, through TRB, with the SLEX
Project. Under the STOA, toll is regulated by the TRB and upon expiry of the concession period,
the Company shall hand over to the ROP the SLEX Project, including the road right of way, toll
road facilities and all equipment found in and directly used in connection with the operation and
maintenance of the SLEX Project, without cost, free from all liens and encumbrances, fully
operational and in good working order and condition.
In applying Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, management has made a judgment and determined
that the STOA for the SLEX Project is within the scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12
accounted for under the intangible asset model, with respect to the Company’s authority to
finance, design and construct and the assignment to MATES of the usufruct to operate and
maintain the SLEX Project. The SLEX toll roads and toll road facilities are recognized as an
intangible asset and are presented in the statement of financial position as “Concession right” in
accordance with PAS 38, Intangibles, and are amortized using the straight-line method over the
life of the concession period. The carrying values of the concession right amounted to
P
=11.58 billion, =
P12.13 billion, and P
=12.68 billion as of December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively (see Note 8).
Evaluation of Lease Commitments
The evaluation of whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on its substance. An
arrangement is, or contains a lease, when fulfillment of the arrangement depends on specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
The Company, as a lessee, has entered into a long-term lease of its office space. Management has
determined that all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property which the Company
leases, remain with the lessor. Accordingly, the said lease is accounted for as operating lease. Rent
expense amounted to P
=1.71 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012 (see Note 13d).
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- 21 Assessment of Contingencies
The Company is a party to certain claims arising from the normal course of business. The
estimate of probable costs of possible claims has been developed in consultation with the
Company’s legal counsel and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The Company
recognized other contingencies amounting to =
P31.17 million and =
P24.88 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (nil as of December 31, 2012) (see Notes 10 and 14).
Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporting dates that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance obligation
The Company recognizes provisions based on estimates on whether it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle an obligation. Where the final outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognized, such differences will impact the
financial performance in the current period when such determination is made. The provision for
resurfacing and maintenance obligation requires an estimation of the periodic cost, generally
estimated to be every five years or the expected major repair dates, to restore the assets to a level
of serviceability during the concession term and in good condition before the turnover to the ROP.
This is based on the best estimate of management to be the amount expected to be incurred to
settle the obligation at every major repair dates. In calculating the present value of payments to
settle the provision for resurfacing and maintenance obligation, the Company adjusts the cash
flows for the risk and discounts the adjusted cash flows at the risk-free discount rate. The key
assumptions used to determine the resurfacing and maintenance obligation are further explained in
Note 12.
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance obligation amounted to P
=532.91 million,
=
P391.12 million, and P
=312.71 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively (see
Note 12).
Estimation of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Provisions are made using a combination of specific and collective assessment approaches, with
impairment losses determined for each risk grouping identified by the Company. The level of this
allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship
with its debtors, the debtors’ payment behavior and known market factors.
Provision for doubtful accounts amounting to P
=0.06 million was recognized in 2014 (nil in 2013 and
2012). The carrying value of receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts amounting to
=
P1.56 million as of December 31, 2014 and =
P1.5 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012)
amounted to P
=110.25 million, =
P24.32 million, and P
=393.00 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively (see Note 6).
Estimation of Useful Life of Concession Right
The useful life of the concession right is approximately 26 years from the start of commercial
operations until the end of the concession period, as defined in the STOA. The estimated useful
life of concession right is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ materially from
previous estimates due to changes in the term of the STOA, pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits and legal or other limitations on the use of the concession right. The amounts
and timing of recording of expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors
and circumstances.
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The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the service
concession rights may be impaired. The factors that would trigger an impairment review include
the following, among others:
·
·
·

Decline in toll rates as a result of government imposition or other events
Significant decline in number of motorists passing through the toll roads
Significant change in foreign exchange rate of peso versus US dollar since this will affect the
toll rate adjustments

Based on management’s assessment, the concession right does not have any indication of
impairment. The carrying values of the concession right amounted to P
=11.58 billion,
P
=12.13 billion, and P
=12.68 billion as of December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively
(see Note 8).
Assessment of Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income, future tax planning
strategies and type of deductions to be availed in the future (either itemized deductions or optional
standard deductions).
As of December 31, 2014, the Company recognized gross deferred income tax assets which
amounted to =
P33.26 million to the extent that the future taxable income will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized (see Note 16b).
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments
a. Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand and in banks (Note 11)
Cash equivalents (Note 11)

2014
P
=1,841,337,132
712,329,489
P
=2,553,666,621

2013
=1,446,402,529
P
1,442,555,082
=2,888,957,611
P

2012
=2,383,035,635
P
–
=2,383,035,635
P

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are shortterm investments that are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the prevailing short-term
investment rates.
b. Short-term investments which amounted to P
=313.41 million as of December 31, 2014 consist
of time deposits with interest rate of 1.75% in 2014. The deposits were placed on August 5,
2014 and have a maturity of two years with an option to pre-terminate and withdraw the
principal amount and accrued interest at the end of the sixth month and anytime thereafter.
The Company expects to realize the investments within twelve months from the reporting
date.
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=18.63 million, =
P14.98 million and =
P17.96 million in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

6. Receivables
Trade - related party (Note 13e)
Due from related parties (Note 13)
Others
Less allowance for doubtful
accounts on other receivables

2014
P
=87,705,323
–
24,098,315
111,803,638

2013
=5,269,639
P
–
20,549,166
25,818,805

2012
=204,840,331
P
168,374,087
21,284,881
394,499,299

1,555,800
P
=110,247,838

1,500,000
=24,318,805
P

1,500,000
=392,999,299
P

Trade receivables are normally collected within 30 days and pertain to the Company’s receivables
from Citra Metro Manila Tollway Corporation (CMMTC) in relation to the Company’s toll
revenue from the usage of SLEX collected by CMMTC (see Note 13e).
Other receivable mostly pertains to advance payments made for the construction of extension lines
and additional facilities along SLEX and claims from third party arising from the Company’s
other income. Other receivables are usually settled the following year.
Movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts on other receivables that are individually
assessed to be impaired follows:
2014
P
=1,500,000
55,800
P
=1,555,800

Beginning balances
Provisions (Note 14)
Ending balances

2013
=1,500,000
P
−
=1,500,000
P

2012
=1,500,000
P
−
=1,500,000
P

The Company assessed the quality of receivables by reference to historical information about
debtors’ responsiveness, bankruptcy, insolvency and other economic issues.

7. Property and Equipment
As of December 31, 2014:

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 14)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value

Toll
Machinery
and
Equipment

Total

Vehicles

Computer
and Office
Equipment

P
= 20,201,072
–
20,201,072

P
= 6,783,017
692,578
7,475,595

P
= 4,911,433
–
4,911,433

P
= 1,929,943
–
1,929,943

P
= 31,041,924
18,374,271
49,416,195

P
= 64,867,389
19,066,849
83,934,238

18,768,781

5,241,808

4,199,139

1,854,391

12,243,084

42,307,203

491,072
19,259,853
P
= 941,219

966,700
6,208,508
P
= 1,267,087

590,959
4,790,098
P
= 121,335

75,552
1,929,943
P
=–

12,803,496
25,046,580
P
= 24,369,615

14,927,779
57,234,982
P
= 26,699,256
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- 24 As of December 31, 2013:

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 14)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value

Toll
Machinery
and
Equipment

Total

Vehicles

Computer
and Office
Equipment

P
=20,201,072
–
20,201,072

P
=5,626,718
1,156,299
6,783,017

P
=4,904,290
7,143
4,911,433

P
=1,929,943
–
1,929,943

P
=14,105,797
16,936,127
31,041,924

P
=46,767,820
18,099,569
64,867,389

18,134,851

4,231,527

3,141,383

1,735,234

4,646,873

31,889,868

633,930
18,768,781
P
=1,432,291

1,010,281
5,241,808
P
=1,541,209

1,057,756
4,199,139
P
=712,294

119,157
1,854,391
P
=75,552

7,596,211
12,243,084
P
=18,798,840

10,417,335
42,307,203
P
=22,560,186

Vehicles

Computer
and Office
Equipment

Furniture
Leasehold
and Fixtures Improvements

Toll
Machinery
and
Equipment

Total

P
=19,986,786
214,286
20,201,072

P
=4,575,658
1,051,060
5,626,718

P
=4,730,157
174,133
4,904,290

P
=1,898,336
31,607
1,929,943

P
=8,227,162
5,878,635
14,105,797

P
=39,418,099
7,349,721
46,767,820

17,655,501

3,428,088

2,098,470

1,718,801

1,465,858

26,366,718

479,350
18,134,851
P
=2,066,221

803,439
4,231,527
P
=1,395,191

1,042,913
3,141,383
P
=1,762,907

16,433
1,735,234
P
=194,709

3,181,015
4,646,873
P
=9,458,924

5,523,150
31,889,868
P
=14,877,952

Furniture
Leasehold
and Fixtures Improvements

As of December 31, 2012:

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 14)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value

The Company acquired a vehicle through financing in 2011 amounting to P
=2.20 million at an
annual effective interest rate of 8.84%. The net book value of the said vehicle amounted to
=
P0.94 million, =
P1.43 million and =
P1.92 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively (see Note 10).

8. Concession Right
Cost
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization (Note14)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value

2014
P
=13,983,769,072
1,850,755,993
549,473,955
2,400,229,948
P
=11,583,539,124

F-31

2013
=13,983,769,072
P

2012
=13,983,769,072
P

1,301,336,533
549,419,460
1,850,755,993
=12,133,013,079
P

765,312,426
536,024,107
1,301,336,533
=12,682,432,539
P
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9. Other Noncurrent Assets
This account consists of:
Prepaid income tax (Note 16a)
Prepaid land lease - net of current
portion (Note 13d)
Deferred project cost
Others

2014
P
=773,430,251

2013
=777,723,491
P

2012
=781,763,533
P

34,373,398
92,046,501
3,496,145
P
=903,346,295

36,084,936

37,796,475

32,906,965

23,773,032

3,496,145
=850,211,537
P

3,522,463
=846,855,503
P

Deferred project cost represents costs incurred in the planning and development of TR4 Project.
As of December 31, 2014, no actual construction has yet commenced on TR4 Project.
The details of prepaid land lease are as follows:
Prepaid land lease
Less current portion*
Noncurrent portion

2013
=37,796,474
P
1,711,538
=36,084,936
P

2012
=39,508,013
P
1,711,538
=37,796,475
P

2014

2013

2012

P
=62,301,325
44,920,359

=74,912,920
P
38,214,337

=75,768,604
P
9,974,437

71,957,007
7,500,211
48,454,255
31,174,445
16,324,219
1,099,108
P
=283,730,929

86,878,787
3,008,063
47,646,598
24,879,776
16,324,219
1,732,635
=293,597,335
P

117,833,925
2,398,306
38,794,475
—
16,324,219
1,460,905
=262,554,871
P

2014
P
=36,084,936
1,711,538
P
=34,373,398

*Included under “Prepayments and other current assets” account.

10. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Trade:
Related parties (Note 13)
Third parties
Accrued expenses:
Interest (Note 11)
Others
Withholding and other taxes payable
Contingencies
Commitment fee payable
Other current liabilities

Trade payables, accrued expenses, withholding and other taxes payable, commitment fee payable
and other current liabilities are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within one year.
Obligation under finance lease (included under other current liabilities) pertains to the lease of
vehicle with a three-year lease term until November 2014 (see Note 7). As of December 31, 2013
and 2012, the future minimum lease payments together with the present value of the minimum
lease payments are as follows (nil as of December 31, 2014):
Within one year
After one year but not more than three years
Total future minimum lease payments
(Forward)
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2013
P
=734,005
–
734,005

2012
=858,300
P
734,005
1,592,305
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Less amount representing interest expense
Present value of future minimum lease payments
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

2013
P
=24,880
709,125
709,125
P
=–

2012
P
=119,435
1,472,870
504,298
=968,572
P

Interest expense on obligation under finance lease recognized in the statements of comprehensive
income amounted to P
=25,215, =
P94,555 and =
P161,478 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see
Note 14).
The Company recognized other contingencies arising from certain claims in the normal course of
business. The outstanding balance is included under “Contingencies”. The information usually
required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, is not disclosed as
it may prejudice the Company’s negotiation with the third party. Movement in provision for other
contingencies follows:
Balance at beginning of the year
Provision (Note 14)
Balance at end of the year

2014
P
=24,879,776
6,294,669
P
=31,174,445

2013
P
=—
24,879,776
P
=24,879,776

2012
P
=—
—
P
=—

11. Short-Term Loan Payable and Long-term Debt
a. Short-term loan payable
In December 2011, the Company entered into an Operating Company loan facility agreement
(OPCO Facility) with a foreign bank, in the amount of $250 million (P
=10.73 billion). The OPCO
Facility was covered by the assignment of material contracts and receivables and assignment of
bank accounts.
In relation to the OPCO Facility, the Company paid an upfront fee of =
P218.05 million
($5 million) which was refunded to the Company in April 2012 after the successful
syndication of its Corporate Notes Facility.
Interest rates on the OPCO Facility range from 3.24% to 3.54% and are based on the London
Inter-Bank Rate (LIBOR) plus 3% margin. Interest expense and other financing charges
amounted to =
P372.98 million in 2012 (see Note 14).
In April 2012, the outstanding balance of the OPCO Facility amounting to $250 million
(P
=10.73 billion) as of March 31, 2012 was settled in full.
b. Long-term debt
In March 2012, Company entered into a Corporate Notes Facility and Security Agreement
with various financial institutions amounting to =
P11.00 billion. The drawdown was made in
April 2012. The proceeds of the loan were used to refinance the $250 million (P
=10.73 billion)
Operating Company Loan Facility agreement with a foreign bank obtained in December 2011.
The outstanding balance of Corporate Notes Facility presented as “Long-term debt” in the
statements of financial position is presented below.
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- 27 As of December 31, 2014:
Principal
Less unamortized debt issue cost

Current
=1,650,000,000
P
23,301,468
=1,626,698,532
P

Noncurrent
=6,325,000,000
P
22,225,686
=6,302,774,314
P

Total
=7,975,000,000
P
45,527,154
=7,929,472,846
P

Current
=1,375,000,000
P
26,974,682
=1,348,025,318
P

Noncurrent
=7,975,000,000
P
45,527,154
=7,929,472,846
P

Total
=9,350,000,000
P
72,501,836
=9,277,498,164
P

Current
=1,100,000,000
P
28,681,775
=1,071,318,225
P

Noncurrent
=9,350,000,000
P
72,501,836
=9,277,498,164
P

Total
=10,450,000,000
P
101,183,611
=10,348,816,389
P

As of December 31, 2013:
Principal
Less unamortized debt issue cost

As of December 31, 2012:
Principal
Less unamortized debt issue cost

The principal shall be repaid in various periods from six months to 60 months after the issue date.
Repayments of the Corporate Notes Facility are as follows:
Within one year
After one year but not more than
five years

2014
P
=1,650,000,000

2013
=1,375,000,000
P

2012
=1,100,000,000
P

6,325,000,000
P
=7,975,000,000

7,975,000,000
9,350,000,000
=9,350,000000 P
P
=10,450,000,000

Interest rate is payable quarterly based on the higher of (i) a spread of 3% per annum over the
Base Rate of PDST-F benchmark yield for three-month treasury securities and (ii) the BSP
Overnight Borrowing Rate plus 0.75% per annum on the Interest Rate Setting Date. Interest
expense and other financing charges in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P
=437.63 million,
=
P489.16 million, and =
P481.99 million, respectively (see Note 14). Interest payable amounted to
P
=71.96 million, P
=86.88 million and P
=117.83 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively (see Note 10).
The Corporate Notes Facility is covered by the assignment of (i) material contracts and receivables
related to the SLEX project, as permitted by the STOA, (ii) revenue and operating bank accounts
opened with Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) and the revenue account opened with Maybank
Global City, and (iii) the interest reserve account opened with Standard Chartered Bank under the
Corporate Notes Facility. The interest reserve account is opened and/or maintained within the
specific purposes and terms allowed under the Corporate Notes Facility.
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Included in cash and cash equivalents
(Note 5):
SCB revenue account
Maybank revenue account
SCB peso operating account
Interest reserve account - SCB interest
reserve account

2014

2013

2012

P
=839,210,193
368,571,787
168,875,999
1,376,657,979

=531,179,196
P
320,621,243
216,334,159
1,068,134,598

=461,818,794
P
308,230,464
35,343,614
805,392,872

166,113,493
P
=1,542,771,472

165,575,638
=1,233,710,236
P

165,021,137
=970,414,009
P

The designated accounts under cash and cash equivalents are available on demand to meet shortterm cash needs of the Company. In the event of the Company’s default, the Security Agent shall
have the right to automatically appropriate, takeover, operate and maintain or otherwise deal with
the designated accounts in such manner as it sees fit, including without limitation, the right to take
all the monies, including any credit balances, in the designated accounts and to apply such funds
in accordance with the Corporate Notes Facility and Security Agreement.
Meanwhile, the interest reserve account is set aside for interest payment and at all times should not
be less than the amount of interest payable on the immediately succeeding Interest Payment
Date. No withdrawal shall be made other than to pay off any amount of interest due.
Under the Corporate Note Facility, the Company is required to meet (a) Debt Service Cover Ratio
of not less than 1.35 to 1.00; and (b) Leverage in respect of any Relevant Period not to exceed 3.50
to 1.00. The Company is in compliance with the debt covenants as of December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012.
12. Provision for Resurfacing and Maintenance Obligation
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance obligation pertains to the present value of the estimated
contractual obligations of the Company to undertake the financing of the periodic maintenance
which include periodic repavement, renewal and restoration of the SLEX toll roads and toll road
facilities, as defined in the STOA.
Movements in this account are as follows:
Balance at beginning of year
Provision for the period (Note 14)
Accretion of interest (Note 14)
Utilization of provision
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

2014
P
=391,123,473
241,890,410
17,108,466
(117,211,478)
532,910,871
213,765,176
P
=319,145,695
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2013
=312,706,871
P
119,145,895
20,957,614
(61,686,907)
391,123,473
76,352,632
=314,770,841
P

2012
=155,374,209
P
146,881,305
10,451,357
–
312,706,871
44,883,430
=267,823,441
P
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as follows:
2014
6 years
2.43% to 3.08%
4%

Replacement period
Discount rate range
Price increase

2013
5 years
2.93% to 4.92%
4%

2012
5 years
2.93% to 5.79%
4%

Discount rates represent the interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in Philippine
currency in which the obligation will be paid, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the
expected payment of resurfacing obligation.
Price increase rate is obtained from published indices for the Philippines from which materials are
sourced.

13. Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to, directly or indirectly, control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These include: (a) enterprises or individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or under common control with the Company;
(b) associates; and, (c) enterprises or individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company and close
members of the family of any such individual.
The Company’s transactions with related parties are summarized as follows:
Related
Parties
MATES

Note 13
a

ROP/PNCC
CMMTC

c
e

AMTEX
MTDME

d
g

Nature of
Relationship
Associate of Parent
Stockholder
Fellow Subsidiary
of Parent
Associate of Parent
Parent Company

Nature of
Transaction
Operation and
maintenance fee
PNCC share
Inter-concession
Receivables
Rent expense
Advances

2014

2013

2012

P
=600,000,000
77,014,949

P
=740,166,062
73,414,830

P
=711,707,926
69,890,919

87,705,323
1,711,539
—

5,269,639
1,711,539

204,840,331
1,711,539
88,953,850

—

The outstanding balances and related terms and conditions are as follows:

Related
Parties

Note 13

Period
Ended

Terms and
Conditions
Outstanding balances:
MATES
a
ROP/PNCC

c

Toll
Receivables
(Note 6)
30-days term,
non-interest
bearing,
unsecured,
not impaired

2014
2013
2012
2014
2013
2012

P
=–
–
–
–
–

Due From
Related
Parties
(Note 6)

Trade Payable
(Note 10)

Prepaid
land lease
(Note 9)

non-interest
bearing,
unsecured,
not impaired

on demand
non-interest
bearing,
unsecured

based on
the terms of
the lease

P
=–
–
–
–
–
–

P
=55,000,000
68,448,496
69,088,669
7,301,325
6,464,424
6,679,935

P
=–
–
–
–
–

(Forward)

F-36

*SGVFS011263*

- 30 -

Related
Parties

Note 13

Period
Ended

Terms and
Conditions
AMTEX

d, f

CMMTC

e

MTDME

g

2014
2013
2012
2014
2013
2012
2014
2013
2012
2014
2013
2012

Toll
Receivables
(Note 6)
30-days term,
non-interest
bearing,
unsecured,
not impaired
P
=–
–
–
87,705,323
5,269,639
204,840,331
–
–
–
P
=87,705,323
P
=5,269,639
P
=204,840,331

Due From
Related
Parties
(Note 6)

Trade Payable
(Note 10)

Prepaid
land lease
(Note 9)

non-interest
bearing,
unsecured,
not impaired
P
=–
–
79,420,235
–
–
–
–
–
88,953,852
P
=–
=
P–
P
=168,374,087

on demand
non-interest
bearing,
unsecured
P
=–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=62,301,325
P
=74,912,920
P
=75,768,604

based on
the terms of
the lease
P
=36,084,936
37,796,474
39,508,013
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=36,084,936
P
=37,796,474
P
=39,508,013

Agreements
a. MATES is engaged in the operation and maintenance of the rehabilitated and expanded SLEX
Project pursuant to the STOA. On May 14, 2008, the Company and MATES entered into an
Operation and Maintenance Agreement to set out the parameters and scope of the operation
and maintenance of the SLEX Project, commencing upon the actual or constructive issuance
by the TRB of a Toll Operation Permit. The actual hand over of the operation and
maintenance of TR 1 and TR 2 from PNCC took place on May 2, 2010. On December 14,
2010, TRB confirmed its approval of the issuance of the Toll Operations Certificate for the
entire Phase 1 of the SLEX Project.
b. On May 28, 2010, the Company, with MATES, CMMTC and Skyway O & M Corporation
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement on Inter-operability of Toll Collection System to
ensure the inter-operability of their respective toll collection system and traffic operations in
accordance with the TRB guidelines for seamless traffic system and improved quality of
service to the motorists throughout the SLEX and the SMMS.
In relation to the aforesaid agreement, the Company and CMMTC also entered into a
Memorandum of Agreement on the Financial Requirements for the Inter-operability of the
SLEX and SMMS, and established an interoperability escrow fund in the total amount of
P
=500 million in accordance therewith. The said fund is being used to defray the costs of the
new toll collection system and infrastructure to be installed and commissioned for the SLEX
and SMMS. The Company contributed =
P300 million to the said fund which was capitalized as
part of “Concession right” in 2011 (see Note 8). The toll collection system became
operational in July 2011.
c. Under the amended JVA, in consideration of the assignment by PNCC of its usufructuary
rights, interests and privileges under its franchise, PNCC is entitled to receive payment
equivalent to 1.75% of the gross toll revenue for the first 5 years, and 3% of the gross toll
revenue for the sixth year and onwards, counted from the date of the issuances to MATES of
the Toll Operation Permit for the SLEX Project (PNCC Share).
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- 31 On April 25, 2012, the Company received a letter from the Department of Finance dated
February 14, 2012 informing the Company of the conveyance by PNCC to the ROP
of its shares of stock in the Company, by way of a Deed of Assignment dated also
February 14, 2012. On June 4, 2012, the Company also received the Declarations of Trust
signed by the individual nominees of PNCC, in favor of the ROP, in which each nominee
affirmed their holding of single, qualifying share in the Company in favor of the ROP.
On April 18, 2012, the Company received a letter from the TRB, including the TRB
Memorandum Order No. 2012-2 and the TRB Directors’ Certificate for the resolution of the
Board of TRB passed on March 22, 2012, approving the Interim Guidelines for the remittance
of the PNCC share, as follows:
· All amounts due to be remitted to the National Government as of the date of the
Memorandum Order No. 2012-2, shall be immediately remitted to the TRB for the National
Treasury;
· 10% of the PNCC Share shall be remitted to PNCC while 90% of the PNCC Share shall be
remitted to the TRB for the National Treasury, in accordance with the interim agreement
between the TRB and PNCC.
The Company remits the PNCC share to the National Government and to PNCC in accordance
with TRB Memorandum Circular No. 2012-2.
d. The Company leases with AMTEX a parcel of the land (approximately 50,000 square meters)
located at Calamba, Laguna, where its office building for the toll operation center and
appurtenant facilities are located. The contract of lease commenced in 2010 after the
completion of the toll operation center and shall be coterminous with the concession period,
unless sooner terminated in accordance with the applicable provisions of the contract of lease.
The Company paid the rental for the entire lease term amounting to P
=44.50 million and
recognized this under “Prepaid land lease” account (see Note 9).
e. The Company has toll receivable from CMMTC resulting from the offsetting of the
collections (i.e., cash and E-Pass transactions) made by the Company in behalf of CMMTC
and those collected by CMMTC for the account of the Company.
f.

In December 2011, the Company paid the amount of P
=79.42 million, which remained
outstanding as of December 31, 2012, to a stockholder of AMTEX for and on behalf of
AMTEX. The Company’s receivables from AMTEX are noninterest-bearing and payable on
demand. The amount was fully settled in December 2013.

g. The Company granted cash advances to MTDME amounting to P
=88.95 million in February
2012. The cash advances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are payable on demand. The
amount was fully settled in May 2013.
h. Compensation of key management personnel of the Company amounted to P
=8.77 million,
P
=5.10 million, and =
P2.87 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There are no
termination benefits, share-based payments or other long-term employee benefits given to key
management personnel.
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14. Costs and Expenses, Interest Expense and Other Financing Charges
Costs and Expenses
Costs:
Operations and maintenance fee (Note 13a)
Amortization of concession right (Note 8)
Provision for resurfacing and maintenance
obligation (Note 12)
PNCC share (Note 13c)
Insurance
Expenses:
Salaries and other employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization (Note 7)
Repairs and maintenance
Taxes and licenses
Outside services
Other contingencies (Note 10)
Communication, light and water
Transportation and travel
Rent (Note 13d)
Entertainment, amusement and recreation
Retirement benefits cost (Note 15)
Office supplies
Insurance
Advertising
Others

2014

2013

2012

P
=600,000,000
549,473,955

P740,166,062
=
549,419,460

P711,707,926
=
536,024,107

241,890,410
77,014,949
21,784,078
1,490,163,392

119,145,895
73,414,830
29,416,106
1,511,562,353

146,881,305
69,890,919
35,243,148
1,499,747,405

17,910,908
14,927,779
13,842,930
13,109,937
8,362,614
6,294,669
3,753,465
1,922,045
1,711,539
696,217
647,901
510,904
97,823
6,000
1,002,811
P
=84,797,542

13,012,633
10,417,335
3,654,290
59,488,684
6,901,695
24,879,776
3,615,366
2,357,337
1,731,759
887,145
535,257
300,808
254,942
231,617
711,567
=128,980,211
P

10,113,805
5,523,150
5,243,009
36,918,359
6,298,964
—
5,030,673
3,067,749
1,725,824
1,630,998
533,892
912,979
652,432
21,600
776,750
=78,450,184
P

Interest Expense and Other Financing Charges
Interest expense:
Long-term debt (Note 11b)
Accretion of interest on provision for
repairs and maintenance (Note 12)
Obligation under finance lease
(Note 10)
OPCO Facility (Note 11a)
Amortization of debt issue cost
Long-term debt (Note 11b)
OPCO Facility (Note 11a)
Other financing charges (Note 11b)

2014

2013

2012

P
=405,172,316

=454,315,760
P

=459,815,828
P

17,108,466

20,957,614

10,451,357

25,215
–

94,555
–

161,478
122,597,270

26,971,959
–
5,489,366
P
=454,767,322

28,681,775
–
6,160,001
=510,209,705
P

22,178,889
250,380,070
–
=865,584,892
P

Other financing charges consist of structuring fee, documentary stamp taxes, security agency fees
and legal fees.

15. Retirement Benefits Cost
Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act No. 7641, The Minimum Retirement Pay
Law, requires a provision of retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of
any retirement plan in the entity, provided that the employee’s retirement benefits under any
collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law.
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- 33 The law does not require minimum funding of the plan. The Company’s retirement benefits are
unfunded. The retirement benefit is equal to a certain percentage of the monthly final salary for
every year of service. The latest actuarial valuation report is dated December 31, 2014.
The components of retirement benefits cost recognized in profit or loss follow:
2013
=437,437
P
97,820
=535,257
P

2012
=430,383
P
103,509
=533,892
P

2014

2013

2012

P
=1,800,221
647,901

P
=1,675,000
535,257

P
=1,440,100
533,892

180,616
P
=2,628,738

(410,036)
=1,800,221
P

(298,992)
=1,675,000
P

2014
P
=575,172
72,729
P
=647,901

Current service cost
Interest cost

The changes in accrued retirement benefits cost follow:
Present value of defined benefit
obligation (PVDBO)
Retirement benefits cost
Re-measurement of defined
benefit obligation [actuarial
loss (gain) charged against
(credited to) other
comprehensive income]

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation follow:
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain):
Experience adjustments
Change in demographic
assumptions
Change in financial
assumptions
Balance at end of year

2014
P
=1,800,221
575,172
72,729

2013
=1,675,000
P
437,437
97,820

2012
=1,440,100
P
430,383
103,509

280,999

(354,261)

(302,017)

(64,649)

(56,533)

–

(35,734)
P
=2,628,738

758
=1,800,221
P

3,025
=1,675,000
P

Sensitivity analysis of the present value of defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 to changes in assumptions follows:
Increase (decrease) in present value of defined benefit obligation follows:
Discount rate
Salary rate

Movement
+100 basis points
-100 basis points
+100 basis points
-100 basis points

2014
(P
=220,637)
252,661
218,708
(196,132)

2013
(P
=190,129)
221,645
196,203
(173,166)

The Company does not maintain a fund for its retirement benefit obligation. While funding is not a
requirement of law, there is a risk that the Company may not have sufficient cash if several
employees retire within the same year.
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Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:
2014:
Payable in the next 5 years

Expected benefit
P
=3,255,171

Percentage
100%

Expected benefit
=1,630,913
P
1,132,553
=2,763,466
P

Percentage
59%
41%
100%

2013:
Payable in the next 5 years
Payable in the next 6 - 10 years

The principal assumptions used to determine retirement benefits cost and obligation are as
follows:
2014
4.19%
6.00%

Discount rates
Rates of increase in compensation

2013
4.04%
6.00%

2012
5.84%
8.00%

16. Income Tax and Registration with BOI
a. On March 3, 2010, the Company is registered with the BOI for the rehabilitation, construction
and expansion of the SLEX Project under RA No. 6957 “Build-operate-transfer” law as
amended by RA No. 7718 on a pioneer status under the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987,
otherwise known as Executive Order No. 226. As a registered enterprise, the Company is
entitled to certain fiscal and non-fiscal incentives.
On November 13, 2012, the Company was granted an Income Tax Holiday (ITH) incentive of
six (6) years with reckoning date of January 1, 2011. The Company is required to comply
with the general and specific terms and conditions prior to ITH availment such as Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) projects/activities.
As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company has spent =
P5.0 million on CSR
activities involving informal settlers along the SLEX, as approved by the BOD. These are the
implementation of the Resettlement Action Plan for seventy eight (78) affected families
located in Brgy. Turbina, Sto. Tomas Batangas and the implementation of the Comprehensive
Action Plan for one hundred eighty six (186) families transferred from various barangays
along the SLEX. To date, the Company helped secure the approval from the Land
Registration Administration (LRA) on the acquisition of property as relocation site. The
Company is committed to ensure transfer of the land titles to the relocated families within a
reasonable period.
The details of provision for income tax are as follows:

Current
Current - adjustment due to ITH
Deferred

2014
P
=4,475,179
–
(32,673,846)
(P
=28,198,667)
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2013
=4,305,074
P
–
10,507,220
=14,812,294
P

2012
P57,816,524
=
(536,193,094)
15,988,462
(P
=462,388,108)
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- 35 Due to the retroactive affectivity of the ITH, the Company recognized prepaid income tax
resulting from its payment of income taxes for periods January 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012. As of
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, prepaid income tax, included under “Other noncurrent
assets” account in the statement of financial position amounted to P
=773.43 million,
P
=777.72 million and =
P781.76 million, respectively. The tax benefit from the ITH incentive
amounted to P
=793.44 million, P
=664.82 million and P
=395.78 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
b. The Company’s deferred income tax asset (liability) is as follows (nil in 2012):

Provision for resurfacing and maintenance
obligation
Unrealized foreign exchange gain

2014

2013

P
=33,261,094
(11,094,468)
P
=22,166,626

P
=—
(10,507,220)
(P
=10,507,220)

The deferred income tax assets and liability were measured using the effective income tax rate
of 18% [based on optional standard deductions (OSD)] or 30% statutory income tax rate, as
applicable, in 2014, and the 30% statutory income tax rate (based on itemized deductions) in
2013.
c. The reconciliation of the income computed at the statutory income tax rate of 30% to the
provision for income tax as shown in the statements of comprehensive income is summarized
as follows:
Income computed at statutory income
tax rate
Income tax effects of:
Net income under ITH
Benefit of using optional standard
deduction
Interest income subjected to final tax
Other income subjected to final tax
Unrecognized deferred income tax
assets
Unallowable interest expense and
others
Adjustment in current provision due
to ITH

2014

2013

2012

30.00%

30.00%

30.00%

(29.52%)

(29.08%)

(31.55%)

(1.38%)
(0.23%)
(0.04%)

—
(0.22%)
—

(0.31%)
—

–

–

4.18%

—

—

0.13%

—
(1.17%)

—
0.70%

(29.47%)
(27.02%)

17. Retained Earnings
a. On August 16, 2012, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to =
P750 million (P
=0.21 per share) which was paid on September 1, 2012.
b. On December 13, 2012, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to P
=779.38 million (P
=0.215 per share), of which P
=407.82 million was paid on
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- 36 December 21, 2012. Dividends payable which amounted to P
=371.56 million as of
December 31, 2012 was paid on March 13, 2013.
c. On May 24, 2013, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to =
P870 million (P
=0.24 per share) which was paid in two (2) equal tranches on
June 27, 2013 and September 11, 2013.
d. On November 28, 2013, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to =
P797.50 million (P
=0.22 per share), of which P
=290 million was paid on
December 20, 2013.
Dividends payable which amounted to P
=507.5 million as of
December 31, 2013 was paid on March 12, 2014.
e. On April 3, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to P
=435 million (P
=0.12 per share) which was paid on June 25, 2014.
f.

On August 20, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to P
=670.63 million (P
=0.185 per share) which was paid in two (2) equal tranches on
September 11, 2014 and December 19, 2014.

g. On February 11, 2015, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends to stockholders
amounting to P
=500.25 million (P
=0.138 per share).

18. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, interest
reserve account, short-term investments, short-term loan payable, long-term debt, and obligations
under finance lease and due to related parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to finance the Company’s operations. The Company has other financial assets and liabilities such
as receivables and accounts payable and other current liabilities, which arise directly from its
operations.
The relevant risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are those pertaining to
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD is responsible for
the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk strategies and principles. The
BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each risk and they are summarized below.
Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has transactional currency exposure arising
from its cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments denominated in U.S. dollar. The
Company maintains a U.S. dollar account to manage its foreign currency-denominated
transactions.
The Company’s US dollar-denominated monetary asset and its Philippine peso equivalent follow:
2013

2014
US Dollar
Cash and cash
equivalents
Short-term investments

Peso
Equivalent

$2,862,068 P
=127,991,716
7,008,184 313,405,975
$9,870,252 P
=441,397,691
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US Dollar

2012
Peso
Equivalent

$10,520,082 P
=467,039,040
—
—
$10,520,082 P
=467,039,040

US Dollar

Peso
Equivalent

$10,543,013 P
=432,790,683
—
—
$10,543,013 P
=432,790,683
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- 37 In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary asset into Philippine peso amounts, the
exchange rates used were P
=44.72, =
P44.40 and =
P41.05, the Philippine peso to U.S. dollar exchange
rate as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar
exchange rate with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before income tax
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012.
Changes in Foreign
Currencies
Exchange Rates
+P
=0.46
-0.46
+P
=1.00
-1.00
+P
=1.00
-1.00

Movement
Increase
Decrease
Increase
Decrease
Increase
Decrease

2014
2013
2012

Effect on
Income Before
Income Tax
P
=4,540,316
(4,540,316)
P
=10,520,082
(10,520,082)
P
=10,543,013
(10,543,013)

There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than those already affecting the statements of
comprehensive income.
The Company’s objective is to reduce the exposure to foreign currency risk at a minimum since
revenue from toll operations is Philippine peso-denominated.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the Company’s
income before income tax or value of its financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt with
floating interest rate. The Company’s policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rate available
and to manage its interest cost by limiting its borrowings. To manage future interest fluctuations
on their obligations, the Company maintains significant amount of cash that are available when the
interests become due.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates
on long-term debt, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before income
tax:

Change in
Basis Points
Increase
Decrease

2014
Effect on
Income
Before
Income Tax

Change in
Basis Points

2013
Effect on
Income
Before
Income Tax

+50 (P
=46,750,000)
-50
46,750,000

+50 (P
= 39,875,000)
-50
39,875,000

Change in
Basis Points

2012
Effect on
Income
Before
Income Tax

+90 (P
=94,050,000)
-90
94,050,000

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the
Company’s best estimate of expected change considering future trends, showing a significantly
lower volatility than in previous years.
There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than those already affecting the statements of
comprehensive income.
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Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations.
The Company manages and controls credit risk by trading only with related parties and
recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy that all counterparties who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. For transactions that involve
special credit terms arrangement, the Company requires approval of the BOD.
Since the Company trades only with related parties and recognized, creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. With respect to credit risk arising from financial assets, the
Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of these financial assets.
The credit quality of loans and receivables follows:
As of December 31, 2014:

Cash and cash equivalents*
Interest reserve account
Short-term investments
Receivables

Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Grade Standard Grade
P
=—
P
=2,551,282,521
—
166,113,493
—
313,405,975
110,247,838
—
P
=3,030,801,989
P
=110,247,838

Impaired
Total
P
=– P
=2,551,282,521
–
166,113,493
—
313,405,975
1,555,800
111,803,638
P
=1,555,800 P
=3,142,605,627

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to =
P 2,384,100

As of December 31, 2013:

Cash and cash equivalents*
Interest reserve account
Receivables

Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Grade Standard Grade
P
=—
P
=2,886,542,611
165,575,638
—
24,318,805
—
=3,052,118,249
P
=24,318,805
P

Impaired
Total
P
=– P
=2,886,542,611
–
165,575,638
1,500,000
25,818,805
=1,500,000 P
P
=3,077,937,054

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to =
P 2,415,000

As of December 31, 2012:

Cash and cash equivalents*
Interest reserve account
Receivables

Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Grade Standard Grade
P
=2,380,620,635
P
=—
165,021,137
—
392,999,299
—
=2,545,641,772
P
=392,999,299
P

Impaired
Total
P
=– P
=2,380,620,635
–
165,021,137
1,500,000
394,499,299
=1,500,000 P
P
=2,940,141,071

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to =
P 2,415,000

Cash and cash equivalents, interest reserve account and short-term investments are placed with
reputable banks in the Philippines, hence considered high grade.
Standard grade accounts are active accounts with little or no instance of payment default. These
accounts are typically not impaired as the counterparties generally responded to credit actions and
update their payments accordingly.
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its obligations when they fall
due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, the Company closely monitors its
cash flows and ensures that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The Company also has a committed line of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.
The following tables summarize the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial assets held for
managing liquidity and other financial liabilities as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 based
on contractual undiscounted receipts and payments.
As of December 31, 2014:
Within
3 Months

On Demand
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest reserve account
Short-term investments
Receivables
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities*
Long-term debt**
Liquidity position (gap)

More than
3 Months
to 1 Year

More
than 1 Year

Total

P
= 1,841,337,132
166,113,493
—
87,705,323
2,095,155,948

P
= 712,329,489
—
313,405,975
520,221
1,026,255,685

=
P—
—
—
22,022,294
22,022,294

=
P—
—
—
—
—

P
= 2,553,666,621
166,113,493
313,405,975
110,247,838
3,143,433,927

62,301,325
—
62,301,325
P
= 2,032,854,623

71,957,007
109,545,486
181,502,493
P
= 844,753,192

69,843,897
1,952,522,917
2,022,366,814
(P
= 2,000,344,520)

—
6,767,657,378
6,767,657,378
(P
= 6,767,657,378)

204,102,229
8,829,725,781
9,033,828,010
(P
= 5,890,394,083)

* Excluding nonfinancial liabilities amounting to P
=79,628,700
** Including interest payable to maturity amounting to =
P 854,725,781

As of December 31, 2013:

On Demand
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest reserve account
Receivables
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities*
Dividends payable
Obligation under finance lease
Long-term debt**
Liquidity position (gap)

Within
3 Months

More than
3 Months
to 1 Year

More
than 1 Year

Total

P
=1,377,364,029
–
5,269,639
1,382,633,668

P
=1,511,593,582
165,575,638
9,217,309
1,686,386,529

=
P–
–
9,831,857
9,831,857

=
P–
–
—
—

P
=2,888,957,611
165,575,638
24,318,805
3,078,852,054

50,058,161
–
–
–
50,058,161
P
=1,332,575,507

153,961,466
507,500,000
214,575
101,551,389
763,227,430
P
=923,159,099

16,342,219
–
519,430
1,664,460,417
1,681,322,066
(P
=1,671,490,209)

–
–
–
8,650,829,688
8,650,829,688
(P
=8,650,829,688)

220,361,846
507,500,000
734,005
10,416,841,494
11,145,437,345
(P
=8,066,585,291)

* Excluding nonfinancial liabilities amounting to P
=73,235,489
** Including interest payable to maturity amounting to =
P 1,066,841,494

As of December 31, 2012:

On Demand
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest reserve account
Receivables

P
=2,383,035,635
–
–
2,383,035,635

Within
3 Months
=
P–
165,021,137
215,394,829
380,415,966

More than
3 Months
to 1 Year
=
P–
–
177,604,470
177,604,470

More
than 1 Year
=
P–
–
–
–

Total
P
=2,383,035,635
165,021,137
392,999,299
2,941,056,071

(Forward)
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On Demand
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities*
Dividends payable
Obligation under finance lease
Long-term debt**
Liquidity position (gap)

P
=3,840,020
–
–
–
3,840,020
P
=2,379,195,615

More than
3 Months
to 1 Year

Within
3 Months

P
=213,553,747
371,562,500
214,575
–
585,330,822
(P
=204,914,856)

More
than 1 Year

Total

P
=5,862,331
=
P–
P
=223,256,098
–
–
371,562,500
1,377,730
–
1,592,305
1,782,468,792
11,330,447,262
13,112,916,054
1,789,708,853
11,330,447,262
13,709,326,957
(P
=1,612,104,383) (P
=11,330,447,262) (P
=10,768,270,886)

* Excluding nonfinancial liabilities amounting to P
=39,298,773
** Including interest payable to maturity amounting to =
P 2,662,916,054

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to achieve strong credit ratings
and capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. The Company is not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies and process from the previous years.
The capital considered by the Company is the equity as disclosed in the statements of financial
position.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process during the year ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
19. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Set out below is a comparison by category of the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the
Company’s financial instruments:
Long-term debt (current and noncurrent portion)

Obligation under finance lease*

Carrying Amount
2014 P
=7,929,472,846
2013
9,277,498,164
2012 10,348,816,389
2014
2013
2012

=–
P
709,125
1,472,870

Fair Value
P8,468,465,277
=
9,676,257,375
10,546,064,073
=–
P
772,381
1,516,881

*Included under other current liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Interest Reserve Account, Short-term investments, Receivables,
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities and Due to Related Parties
Carrying amounts approximate the fair values at reporting dates due to the short-term maturities of
these accounts.
Long-term Debt and Obligation under Finance Lease
Estimated fair values have been calculated on the instruments’ expected cash flows using the
prevailing rate that are specific to the tenor of the instruments’ cash flows at reporting date
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- 41 (Level 3). Discount rates used range from 2.55% to 6.22%, 3.42% to 6.09% and 3.88% to 7.03%
as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there were no financial instruments carried at fair
value. There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements in
2014, 2013 and 2012.

20. Operating Segment Information
The Company is engaged in rehabilitation, construction and expansion of SLEX and considers
such as its primary activity and only operating segment.
The Company has only one geographical segment as all of its assets are located in the Philippines.
The Company operates and derives principally all of its revenue from domestic operations. Thus
geographical business operation is not required.
Segment assets, liabilities and revenue and expenses are measured in accordance with PFRS. The
presentation and classification of segment revenue and expenses are consistent with the statements
of comprehensive income. The presentation and classification of segment assets and liabilities are
consistent with the statements of financial position.
Segment information are as follows:
Segment revenue
Segment net income
Interest income
Interest expense and other
financing charges
Amortization of concession right
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for (benefit from)
income tax
Provision for resurfacing and
maintenance obligation
Total assets
Total liabilities

2014
P
=4,400,854,239
2,438,290,230
18,628,961

2013
=4,195,133,153
P
2,093,923,734
14,980,835

2012
=3,958,698,245
P
2,173,506,341
17,959,033

(454,767,322)
549,473,955
14,927,779

(510,209,705)
549,419,460
10,417,335

(865,584,892)
536,024,107
5,523,150

(28,198,667)

14,812,294

(462,388,108)

241,890,410
15,729,189,612
8,759,837,852

119,145,895
16,118,893,559
10,482,026,413

146,881,305
16,508,317,579
11,298,284,203

In 2014, 2013, and 2012, the Company does not have a customer for which 10% or more of the
revenue were derived from.
21. Events After the Reporting Period
On March 5, 2015, the Company’s BOD authorized the Company to issue, offer and sell to the
public in the Philippines, bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to =
P7.3 billion to be issued
in three tranches. The BOD also authorized the management to further negotiate, agree on and
approve the final terms and conditions of the bonds and execute any and all documents necessary,
to implement the retail bond issue.
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